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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

In thousands, except unit and per share dara 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
R Homes sold 15,197 16,880 17,517 11,134 8,982
' Homes closed 14,72 15,101 16,673 15,392 10,319
- Homes backlog 5.841 7,620 8,464 4,206 2,869
Revenues $ 3444129 S 3,951,821 S 4817566 5 4757216 $ 3,032,594
REERES Ner earnings (loss) 5 2q1692 5 320545 5 447052 § 359942 S (333,526)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share S 456 S 636 S 9.03 % 783 S (7-92)
Stockholders” equity 5 Bag342 5 10563834 5 1376021 § 1,511,166 § 1,124,726
Stockholders’ equity per share S 16.98 3§ 2232 S 29.68 S 3546 5 26.68
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CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

The Pinckney model in Pembroke ar Park West

DEAR STOCKHOLDERS,

2007 was a turbulent year for the housing industry. Faced with the
shrinking availability of mortgage products, an oversupply of unsold
homes and waning consumer confidence, homebuilders’ strength,

strategies and agility were tested.

Though Ryland reported our first net loss in 12 years, [ am confident
that we are well-positioned for the downturn and the long-term, thanks
to a solid strategy, experienced leadership and a demonstrated ability to

adapt to market challenges.

Ryland’s 2007 results reflect the broader slowdown in the housing

and mortgage markets, with revenues of $3.0 billion, new home orders
totaling 8,982, closings of 10,319, and a net loss of $333.5 million, or
$7.92 per share. The company’s loss was impacted by $673.9 million

in inventory, tax valuation adjustments and other write-offs. Excluding
these charges, net earnings for the year would have been $107.2

million, or $2.49 per share.

Our long-term, risk-averse strategy gave Ryland an edge during the
downturn and enabled the company to take fewer impairment charges
in 2007 than most of the major public homebuilders. We limited risk by
being spread geographically throughout 28 of the nation’s best housing
markets, targeting our capital investments at no more than 10 percent
in each market, keeping a shorter land supply than many competitors,

and adhering to high return requirements for land acquisitions.

As the downturn deepened, Ryland adjusted our business to maximize
our performance. We implemented aggressive marketing campaigns
and incentives that helped lower our spec home inventory by 52.8
percent in 2007. We reduced the number of lots under control from
60,318 to 39,900. We lowered overhead expenses and negotiated
additional concessions with our vendors and subcontractors. We
reviewed our product offerings and price points to ensure they were

in line with government agency loan limits wherever possible, and
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within qualifying range for our first-time and move-up homebuyer
base. Ryland Mortgage Company also enabled us to respond effectively

to changes in the mortgage-lending climate.

Throughout 2007, we worked diligently to preserve our strong balance
sheet. Ryland ended the year with $243.6 million in cash on hand, a net
debt-to-capital ratio of 34.6 percent and no borrowings against our

$750.0 million credit facility.

It is clear that the industry faces another trying year in 2008. Though

it is difficult to predict how long this housing market correction will

R, Crap DREER last, | am confident that the long-term fundamentals supporting the
Chairman, President and

homebuilding industry are strong. Mortgage rates are still reasonably
Chief Executive Officcr
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low, household incomes and wealth have grown, and experts predict
that the nation will need at least 1.8 million new housing units each

year through 2014.

Most of all, I am confident that Ryland is positioned strategically and
financially to remain a leader through the slowdown and to emerge
even stronger when the market recovers. Guiding my optimism is
Ryland’s proven strategy, experienced and stable leadership, dedicated
employees, excellent homes and services, and solid 41-year history as

a leading national builder.

I wish to thank Ryland’s board of directors, employees, customers and
stockholders for their instrumental role in our company and for sharing

my excitement for the future.

R. CHaDp DREIER
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
The Ryland Group, Inc.
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PART 1
Item 1. Business

With headquarters in Southern California, The Ryland Group, Inc., a Maryland corporation (the
“Company’), is one of the nation’s largest homebuilders and a mortgage-finance company. The
Company is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “RYL.” Founded in 1967, the
Company has built more than 275,000 homes. In addition, Ryland Mortgage Company and its
subsidiaries (“RMC") has provided mortgage financing and related services for more than 230,000
homebuyers. The Company consists of six operating business segments: four geographically
determined homebuilding regions; financial services; and corporate.

The Company’s operations span all significant aspects of the homebuying process—from design,
construction and sale to mortgage origination, title insurance, escrow and insurance services. The
homebuilding operations are, by far, the most substantial part of its business, comprising
approximately 98 percent of consolidated revenues in fiscal year 2007. The homebuilding segments
generate nearly all of their revenues from the sale of completed homes, with a lesser amount from the
sale of land and lots. In addition to building single-family detached homes, the homebuilding segments
also build attached homes, such as town homes, condominiums and some mid-rise buildings that share
common walls and roofs. The Company builds homes for entry-level buyers, as well as for first- and
second-time move-up buyers. Its prices generally range from $100,000 to more than $600,000, with the
average price of a home closed during 2007 being $285,000. The financial services segment offers
mortgage, title, escrow and insurance services to the Company’s homeowners and subcontractors.

Over the last 14 years, the Company has concentrated on expanding its operations by investing its
available capital in both existing and new markets. The Company focuses on achieving a high return
on invested capital and establishing profitable operations in every one of its markets. New
communities are evaluated based on return and profitability benchmarks, and both senior and local
management are incentivized based on their ability to achieve such returns. Management continually
monitors the land acquisition process, sales revenues, margins and returns achieved in each of the
Company’s markets as part of its capital evaluation process. (See discussion in “*Part I, Item 1A. Risk
Factors.”)

The Company is highly diversified throughout the United States, and attempts to have no more than
10 percent of its deployed capital allocated to any given market. It believes diversification not only
minimizes its exposure to economic and market fluctuations, but also enhances its growth potential.
Capiral is strategically allocated to avoid concentration in any given geographic area and to circumvent
the accompanying risk associated with excessive dependence on local market anomalies. Subject to
macroeconomic and [ocal market conditions, the Company plans to either manage its exposure or 1o
expand its presence in its existing markets in an effort to be among the largest builders in each of
those markets. It may continue diversification by selectively entering new markets, primarily through
establishing start-up or satellite operations in markets near its existing divisions.

The Company’s national scale has provided increased opportunities for negotiation of volume
discounts and rebates from material suppliers. Additionally, it has greater access to a lower cost of
capital due to the strength and transparency of its balance sheet, as well as to its lending and capital
markets relationships. The Company’s economies of scale and diversification have contributed to
significant improvements in its operating margins during periods of growth and mitigated its overall
risk in periods of declining housing demand.

Committed to product innovation, the Company conducts ongoing research into consumer preferences
and trends. It is constantly adapting and improving its house plans, design features, customized
options and mortgage programs. It strives to offer value, selection, location and quality 1o all
homebuyers.

The Company is dedicated to building quality homes and customer relationships. With customer
satisfaction as a major priority, it continues to make innovative enhancemenis designed to attract
homebuyers. The Company continues to develop its ability to collect customer feedback via its Web
site, which includes online systems for wracking requests, processing issues and improving customer




interaction. In addition, it uses a third party to analyze customer feedback in order to better serve its
homebuyers’ needs.

The Company enters into land development joint ventures, from time to time, as a means of building
lot positions, reducing its risk profile and enhancing its return on capital. It periodically partners with
developers, other homebuilders or financial investors to develop finished lots for sale to the joint
ventures’ members or other third parties.

Aside from being an added value to customers, the financial services segment generates a profit for the
Company while limiting its risk. A competitively high capture rate for mortgage financing and other
services allows the Company to monitor its backlog and closing process. Risk is further reduced
because the majority of all loans are sold to a third party, who services and manages the loans,
assuming substantially all of the credit risk of borrower default.

Homebuilding

General

The Company’s homes are built on-site and marketed in four major geographic regions, or segments.
The Company operated in the following metropolitan areas at December 31, 2007:

Region/Segment Major Markets Served

North Baltimore, Chicago, Cincinnati, Delaware, Indianapolis, Minneapolis and
Washington, D.C.

Southeast Atlanta, Charleston, Charlotte, Fort Myers, Greensboro, Greenville, Jacksonville,
Myrtle Beach, Orlando and Tampa

Texas Austin, Dallas, Houston and San Antonio

West California’s Central Valley, California’s Coachella Valley, California’s Inland

Empire, Denver, Las Vegas, Phoenix and Sacramento

The Company has decentralized operations to provide more flexibility to its local division presidents
and management teams. Each of its 21 homebuilding divisions across the country generally consists of
a division president, a controller and other management personnel focused on land entitlement,
acquisition and development, sales, construction, customer service, and purchasing; as well as
accounting and administrative personnel. The Company’s operations in each of its homebuilding
markets may differ due to a number of market-specific factors. These factors include regional economic
conditions and job growth; land availability and local land development; consumer preferences;
competition from other homebuilders; and home resale activity. The Company not only considers each
of these factors upon entering into new markets, but also in determining the extent of its operations
and capital allocation in existing markets. The Company’s local management teams are familiar with
these factors, and their market experience and expertise are critical in making decisions regarding local
operations.

The Company provides oversight and centralizes key elements of its homebuilding business through its
corporate and regional offices. The Company has four regional offices, each generally consisting of a
region president; a chief financial officer; and additional management personnel focused on human
resources, real estate legal support, marketing and operations. Regional offices provide oversight and
standardization where appropriate. The staff in each of these offices monitors activities by using
various operational metrics in order to achieve Company return benchmarks.

The Company markets attached and detached single-family homes, which are generally targered to
entry-level and first- and second-time move-up buyers. Its diverse product line is tailored to the local
styles and preferences found in each of its geographic markets. The product line offered in a particular
community is determined in conjunction with the land acquisition process and is dependent upon a
number of factors, including consumer preferences, competitive product offerings and development
costs. Architectural services are generally outsourced to increase creativity and to ensure that the
Company’s home designs are consistent with local market trends.

Homebuyers are able to customize certain features of their homes by selecting from numerous options
and upgrades displayed in the Company's model homes and design centers. These design centers,
which are conveniently located in most of the Company’s markets, also represent an increasing source




of additional revenue and profit for the Company. Custom options contributed approximately
14.8 percent of revenues in 2007 and resulted in significantly higher margins in comparison to base
homes.

Land Acquisition and Development

The Company’s objective is to control a portiolio of building lots sufficient to meet its anticipated
homebuilding requirements for a period of approximately four to five years. The Company acquires
land only after completing due diligence and feasibility studies. The land acquisition process is
controlled by a corporate land approval committee to help ensure thar transactions meet the
Company’s standards for financial performance and risk. In the ordinary course of its homebuilding
business, the Company utilizes both direct acquisition and option contracts to control building lots for
use in the sale and construction of homes. The Company’s direct land acquisition activities include the
bulk purchase of finished lots from developers and the purchase of undeveloped entitled land from
third parties. The Company generally does not purchase unentitled or unzoned land.

Although control of lot inventory through the use of option contracts minimizes the Company’s
investment, such a strategy is not viable in certain markets due to the absence of third-party land
developers. In other markets, competitive conditions may prevent the Company from controlling
quality lots solely through the use of option contracts. In such situations, the Company may acquire
undeveloped entitled land and/or finished lots on a bulk basis. The Company utilizes the selective
development of land to gain access to prime locations, increase margins and position itself as a leader
in the area through its influence over a community’s character, layout and amenities. After determining
the size, style, price range, density, layout and overall design of a community, the Company obtains
governmental and other approvals necessary to begin the development process. Land is then graded;
roads, utilities, amenities and other infrastructures are installed; and the individual home sites are
created.

Materials Costs

Substantiatly all materials used in construction are available from a number of sources but may
fluctuate in price due to various factors. To increase purchasing efficiencies, the Company not only
standardizes certain building materials and products, but also acquires such products through national
supply contracts. The Company has, on occasion, experienced shortages of certain materials. If
shortages were to occur in the future, such shortages could result in longer construction times and
higher costs than those experienced in the past.

Construction

Substantially all on-site construction is performed for a fixed price by independent subcontractors
selected on a competitive-bid basis. The Company generally requires a minimum of three competitive
bids for each phase of construction. Construction activities are supervised by the Company's
production team, which schedules and coordinates subcontractor work, monitors quality, and ensures
compliance with local zoning and building codes. The Company requires substantially all of its
subcontractors to have workmans compensation insurance and general liability insurance, including
construction defect coverage. Construction time for homes depends on weather, availability of labor or
subcontractors, materials, home size, geological conditions and other factors. The duration of the
home construction process is generally between three and six months. The Company has an integrated
financial and homebuilding management system that assists in scheduling production and controliing
costs. Through this system, the Company monitors construction status and job costs incurred for each
home during each phase of construction. The system provides for detailed budgeting and allows the
Company to track and control actual costs, versus construction bids, for each community and
subcontractor. The Company has, on occasion, experienced shortages of skilled labor in certain
markets. If shortages were to occur in the future, such shortages could result in longer construction
times and higher costs than those experienced in the past.

The Company, its subcontractors and its suppliers maintain insurance, subject to deductibles and
self-insured amounts, to protect against various risks associated with homebuilding activities, including,
among others, general liability, “‘all-risk” property, workmans compensation, automobile and employee
fidelity. The Company accrues for its expected costs associated with the deductibles and self-insured
amounts.




Marketing

The Company generally markets its homes to entry-level and first- and second-time move-up buyers
through targeted product offerings in each of the communities in which it operates. The Company’s
marketing strategy is determined during the land acquisition and feasibility stage of a community’s
development. Employees and independent real estate brokers sell the Company’s homes, generally by
showing furnished models. A new order is reported when a customer’s sales contract has been signed
by the homebuyer and approved by the Company and a deposit is taken, subject to cancellation. The
Company normally starts construction of a home when a customer has selected a lot, chosen a floor
plan and received preliminary morigage approval. However, construction may begin prior to this in
order to satisfy market demand for completed homes and to facilitate construction scheduling and/or
cost savings. Homebuilding revenues are recognized when home sales are closed, title and possession
are transferred to the buyer, and there is no significant continuing involvement.

The Company advertises directly to potential homebuyers through the internet and in newspapers and
trade publications, as well as with marketing brochures and newsletters, It also uses billboards, radio
and television advertising, and its Web site to market the location, price range and availability of its
homes. The Company also attempts to operate in conspicuously located communities that permit it to
take advantage of local traffic patterns. Model homes play a significant role in the Company’s
marketing efforts by not only creating an attractive atmosphere, but also by displaying options and
upgrades.

The Company’s sales contracts typically require an earnest money deposit. The amount of earnest
money required varies between markets and communities. Additionally, buyers are generally required
to pay additional deposits when they select options or upgrades for their homes. Most of the
Company’s sales contracts stipulate that when homebuyers cancel their contracts with the Company, it
has the right to retain the homebuyers’ earnest money and option deposits; however, its operating
divisions may choose to refund a portion of such deposits. The Company’s sales contracts may also
include contingencies that permit homebuyers to cancel and receive a refund of their deposits if they
cannot obtain mortgage financing at prevailing or specified interest rates within a specified time
period. The Company’s contracts may also include other contingencies, such as the sale of an existing
home. The length of time between the signing of a sales contract for a home and delivery of the home
to the buyer may vary, depending on customer preferences, permit approval and construction cycles.

Customer Service and Warranties

The Company’s operating divisions are responsible for pre-closing quality control inspections and
responding to homebuyers’ post-closing needs. The Company believes that prompt and courteous
acknowledgment of its homebuyers’ needs during and afier construction reduces post-closing repair
costs, enhances its reputation for quality and service, and ultimately leads to repeat and referral
business. The subcontractors, who perform most of the actual construction, also provide warranties on
workmanship.

The Company provides each homeowner with product warranties covering workmanship and materials
for one year, certain mechanical systems for two vears and structural systems for ten years from the
time of closing, The Company believes its warranty program meets or exceeds terms customarily
offered in the homebuilding industry.

Seasonality

The Company experiences seasonal variations in its quarterly operating results and capital
requirements, Historically, new order activity is higher during the spring and summer months. ‘This is
primarily due to the preference of many homebuyers to act during those periods. As a result, it
typically has more homes under construction, closes more homes, and has greater revenues and
operating income in the third and fourth quarters of a fiscal year.

Financial Services

The Company’s financial services segment provides mortgage-related products and services, as well as
insurance services, to its homebuyers and subcontractors. The Company's financial services segment
includes RMC, Ryland Homes Insurance Company (“RHIC’"), LPS Holdings Corporation and its
subsidiaries (*'LPS") and Columbia National Risk Retention Group, Inc. (*CNRRG”}. By aligning its




operations with the Company’s homebuilding segments, the financial services segment leverages this
relationship to provide lending services to homebuyers, In addition to being a valuable asset to
customers, the financial services segment generates a profit for the Company. Providing mortgage
financing and other services to its customers allows the homebuilding segments to better monitor its
backlog and closing process. Currently, the majority of all loans are sold to a third party within one
business day of the date they close. The third party then services and manages the loans, assuming the
credit risk of borrower default. Recently, the Company entered into a mortgage warehouse facility in
order to finance its mortgage loans and increase the number of investors to which it sells the loans it
originates, These investors also service and manage these loans, assuming the credit risk of borrower
default. The Company also provides construction-related insurance to subcontractors in its western
markets. Additionally, the financial services segment provides insurance for liability risks, specifically
homeowners’ warranty coverage, arising in connection with the homebuilding business of the
Company.

Loan Origination

In 2007, RMC’s mortgage origination operations consisted primarily of the Company’s homebuilder
loans, which were originated in connection with the sale of the Company’s homes. During the vear,
mortgage operations originated 7,653 loans, totaling $1.9 billion, of which 99.6 percent was for
purchases of homes built by the Company and the remaining amount was for either purchases of
homes built by others, purchases of existing homes or the refinancing of existing morigage loans.

RMC arranges various types of mortgage financing, including conventional, Federal Housing
Administration (“FHA") and Veterans Administration (‘‘VA') mortgages, with various fixed- and
adjustable-rate features. RMC is approved to originate loans that conform to the guidelines established
by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (“FHLMC”") and the Federal National Mortgage
Association (“FNMA”). The Company sells the loans it originates, along with the related servicing
rights, to others.

Title and Escrow Services

Cornerstone Title Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of RMC, doing business as Rytand Title
Company, provides title services and acts as a title insurance agent primarily for the Company’s
homebuyers. At December 31, 2007, it provided title services in Arizona, Colorado, Delaware, Florida,
Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Minnesota, Nevada, North Carolina, South Carolina, Texas and Virginia. The
Company also operates Ryland Escrow Company, which performs escrow and closing functions for the
Company’s homebuyers in California. During 2007, Ryland Title Company and Ryland Escrow
Company provided these services to 90.8 percent of the Company’s homebuyers in the markets in
which they operate, compared to 96.3 percent during 2006.

LPS is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and was formed to operate certain limited purpose
subsidiaries, including Ryland Escrow Company.

Insurance Services

Ryland Insurance Services (““R1S"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of RMC, provides insurance services to

the Company’s homebuyers. At December 31, 2007, RIS was licensed to operate in all of the states in
which the Company’s homebuilding segments operate. During 2007, it provided insurance services to
54.2 percent of the Company’s homebuyers, compared to 62.4 percent during 2006.

RHIC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company that provides insurance services to the
homebuilding segments’ subcontractors in certain markets. RHIC is registered and licensed under
Section 431, Article 19 of the Hawaii Revised Statutes and is required to meet certain minimum capital
and surplus requirements. Additionally, no dividends may be paid without prior approval of the Hawaii
Insurance Commissioner.

CNRRG is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and some of its affiliates. CNRRG was established
to directly insure liability risks, specifically homeowners’ warranty coverage, arising in connection with
the homebuilding business of the Company and its affiliates.




Corporate

Corporate is a non-operating business segment whose purpose is to support operations. Corporate
departments are responsible for establishing operational policies and internal control standards;
implementing strategic initiatives; and monitoring compliance with policies and controls throughout
the Company’s operations. Corporate acts as an internal source of capital and provides financial,
human resource, information technology, insurance, legal, marketing, national purchasing and tax
compliance services. In addition, it performs administrative functions associated with a publicly traded
entity.

Real Estate and Economic Conditions

The Company is significantly affected by fluctuations in economic activity, interest rates and levels of
consumer confidence. The effects of these fluctuations differ among the various geographic markets in
which the Company operates. Higher interest rates and the availability of homeowner financing may
affect the ability of buyers to qualify for mortgage financing and decrease demand for new homes. As a
result, rising interest rates generally will decrease the Company’s home sales and mortgage
originations. In addition, during 2007, a significant decrease in the availability of mortgage products,
due to a tightening of credit standards, negatively impacted the Company’s ability to attract
homebuyers. The Company’s business is also affected by local economic conditions, such as
employment rates and housing demand, in the markets in which it operates. Some of these markets
have experienced a significant decline in housing demand.

Inventory risk can be substantial for homebuilders. The market value of land, lots and housing
inventories fluctuates as a result of changing market and economic conditions. The Company must
continuously locate and acquire land not only for expansion into new markets, but also for
replacement and expansion of land inventory within current markets. The Company employs various
measures designed to control inventory risk, including a corporate land approval process and a
continuous review by senior management. It cannot, however, assure that these measures will avoid or
eliminate this risk.

Competition

The Company competes in each of its markets with a large number of national, regional and local
homebuilding companies. The strength and expanded presence of national homebuilders, plus the
continued viability of regional and local homebuilders, has increased competition in many markets.
The Company also competes with other housing alternatives, including existing homes and rental
properties. Principal competitive factors in the homebuilding industry include price; design; quality;
reputation; relationships with developers; accessibility of subcontractors; availability and location of
lots; and availability of customer financing. The Company’s financial services segment competes with
other mortgage bankers to arrange financing for homebuyers. Principal competitive factors include
interest rates and other features of mortgage loan products available to the consumer.

Employees
At December 31, 2007, the Company had 2,026 employees. The Company considers its employee
relations to be good. No employees are represented by a collective bargaining agreement.

Web Site Access to Reports

The Company files annual, quarterly and special reports; proxy statements; and other information with
the U.8. Securities and Exchange Commission (**SEC”) under the Exchange Act and the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”). Any document the Company files may be read at the SEC’s
public reference room, Room 1580 at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC
toll-free at 1-800-SEC-0330 for information regarding its public reference room. The Company files
information electronically with the SEC. The Company's SEC filings are available from the SEC’s Web
site at wwuw.sec.gov. Reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding
issuers that file electronically are readily obtainable there.

Stockholders, securities analysts and others seeking information about the Company’s business
operations and financial performance can receive copies of its 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K,
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, all amendments to those reports and
other documents filed with the SEC, without charge, by contacting the Corporate Secretary’s office at




(818) 223-7500; by writing to The Ryland Group, Inc., Investor Relations, 24025 Park Sorrento,

Suite 400, Calabasas, California 91302; or via e-mail at investors@ryland.com. In addition, all filings
with the SEC, news releases and quarterly earnings announcements, including live audio and replays of
the most recent quarterly earnings conference calls, can be accessed free of charge on the Company’s
Web site at www. ryland.com. Information on the Company’s Web site is not part of this report. The
Company makes its Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports

on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of
the Exchange Act available on its Web site as soon as possible after it electronically files such material
with, or furnishes it to, the SEC. To retrieve any of this information, visit www.ryland. com, select
“Investors” and scroll down the page to “SEC Filings.”

Itemm 1A. Risk Factors

The bomebuilding industry is cyclical in nature and bas experienced downturns, which bave in the
past and may in the future cause the Company to incur losses in financial and operating results.

The Company is affected by the cyclical nature of the homebuilding industry which is sensitive to many
factors, including fluctuations in general and local economic conditions, interest rates, housing
demand, employment levels, levels of new and existing homes for sale, demographic trends, availability
of homeowner financing and levels of consumer confidence. In 2007, many of the markets served by
the Company and the U.S. homebuilding industry as a whole continued to experience a significant and
sustained decrease in demand for new homes and an oversupply of new and existing homes available
for sale. The homebuilding industry has been impacted by lack of consumer confidence, housing
aftordability and large supplies of resale and new home inventories which has resulted in an industry-
wide softening of demand for new homes. In addition, an oversupply of alternatives to new homes,
such as rental properties and existing homes, has depressed prices and reduced margins for the sale of
new homes. These trends resulted in overall fewer home sales, greater cancellations of home purchase
agreemenis by buyers, higher inventories of unsold homes and the increased use by homebuilders of
discounts, incentives, price concessions and other marketing efforts to close home sales in 2007
compared to the past several vears. Reflecting these demand and supply trends, the Company
experienced a large drop in net orders, a decline in the selling price of new homes sold and a
reduction in margins in 2007 relative to prior years. The Company cannot predict how long these
market conditions will continue and what affect they might have on the Company’s financial and
operating performance.

Because almost all of the Company’s bomebuyers finance the purchase of their homes, the terms and
availability of mortgage financing can affect the demand for and the ability to complete the
purchase of a bome as well as the Company’s future operating and financial results.

The Company’s business and earnings depend on the ability of its homebuyers to obtain financing for
the purchase of their homes. Many of the Company’s homebuyers must sell their existing homes in
order to buy a home from the Company. During 2007, the mortgage lending industry experienced
significant instability due to, among other things, defaults on subprime loans and a resulting decline in
the market value of such loans. In light of these developments, lenders, investors, regulators and other
third parties questioned the adequacy of lending standards and other credit requirements for several
loan programs made available to borrowers in recent years. This has led to tightened credit
requirements and reduced liquidity. Deterioration in credit quality among subprime and other
nonconforming loans has caused most lenders to eliminate subprime mortgages and most other loan
products that do not conform to Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, FHA or VA standards. Fewer loan products
and tighter loan qualifications in turn make it more difficult for some categories of borrowers to
finance the purchase of new homes or the purchase of existing homes from potential move-up buyers
who wish 1o purchase one of the Company’s homes. In general, these developments have resulted in a
reduction in demand for the homes sold by the Company and have delaved any general improvement
in the housing market. Futhermore, they have resulted in a reduction in demand for the mortgage
loans that the Company originates through RMC. If the Company’s potential homebuyers or the buyers
of the homebuyers’ existing homes cannot obtain suitable financing, the result will have an adverse
effect on the Company’s operating and financial results and performance.
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The Company is subject to inventory risk for its land, options for land, building lots and bousing
inventory.

The market value of the Company'’s land, building lots and housing inventories fluctuates as a result of
changing market and economic conditions. In addition, inventory carrying costs can result in losses in
poorly performing projects or markets. Changes in economic and market conditions have caused the
Company to dispose of land, options for land and housing inventories on a basis that has resulted in a
loss and required the Company to write down or reduce the carrying value of its inventory. During the
12-month peried ended December 31, 2007, the Company decided not to pursue development and
construction in certain areas where it held land or had made option deposits, which resulted in

$77.2 million in recorded write-offs of option deposits and preacquisition costs. In addition, market
conditions led to recorded land-retated impairments on communities and land in the aggregate
amount of $504.0 million during the same period. The Company can provide no assurance thart it will
not need 1o record additional write-offs in the future.

In the course of its business, the Company makes acquisitions of land. Although it employs varicus
measures, including its land approval process and continued review by senior management designed
to manage inventory risks, the Company cannot assure that these measures will enable it to avoid or
¢liminate its inventory risk.

Construction costs can fluctuate and impact the Company’s margins.

The homebuilding industry has from time to time experienced significant difficulties, including:
shortages of qualified trades people; reliance on local subcontractors who may be inadequately
capitalized; shortages of materials; and volatile increases in the cost of materials, particularly increases
in the price of lumber, drywall and cement, which are significant components of home construction
costs. The Company may not be able to recapture increased costs by raising prices either because of
market conditions or because it fixes its prices at the time home sales contracts are signed.

Fluctuations in interest rates can affect the Company's business and profitability.

Interest rates can significantly affect the Company's lines of business. Higher interest rates affect the
ability of buyers to qualify for mortgage financing and decrease demand for new homes. As a result,
rising interest rates can decrease the Company’s home sales and mortgage originations. Any of these
factors could have an adverse impact on the Company’s results of operations or financial position.

Because the bomebuilding industry is competitive, the business practices of other bomebuilders can
bave an impact on the Company’s financial results and cause these resulls to decline,

The residential housing industry is highly competitive. The Company competes in each of its markets
with a large number of national, regional and local homebuilding companies. In 2007, this competition
caused the Company 1o adjust selling prices in response to competitive conditions in the markets in
which it operates and required the Company 1o increase selling incentives. We cannot predict whether
these measures will be successful or if additional incentives will be made in the future. The Company
also competes with other housing alternatives, including existing homes and rental housing. Principal
competitive factors in homebuilding are home price, availability of customer financing, design, qualiry,
reputation, relationship with developers, accessibility of subcontractors, and availability and location of
homesites. Any of the foregoing factors could have an adverse impact on the Company's financial
performance and results of operations.

The Company’s financial services segment competes with other mortgage bankers to arrange financing
for homebuyers, Principal competitive factors include interest rates and other features of mortgage
loan products available to the consumer.

Because the Company’s business is subject to various regulatory and environmental limitations, it
may not be able to conduct its business as planned.

The Company’s homebuilding segments are subject to various local, state and federal laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations concerning zoning, building design, construction, stormwater
permitting and discharge and similar mauers, as well as open space, wetlands and ¢nvironmentally
protected areas. These include local regulations that impose restrictive zoning and density
requirements in order to limit the number of homes that can be built within the boundaries of a
particular area, as well as other municipal or city land planning restrictions, requirements or
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limitations. The Company may also experience periodic delays in homebuilding projects due to
regulatory compliance, municipal appeals and other government planning processes in any of the areas
in which it operates.

With respect 1o originating, processing, selling and servicing mortgage loans, the Company’s financial
services segment is subject to the rules and regulations of the FHA, FHLMC, FNMA, VA and U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Mortgage origination activities are further subject to
the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, Federal Truth-in-Lending Act and the Real Estate Settlement
Procedures Act and their associated regulations. These and other federal and state statutes and
regulations, prohibit discrimination and establish underwriting guidelines which include provisions for
audits, inspections and appraisals, require credit reports on prospective borrowers, fix maximum loan
amounts and require the disclosure of certain information concerning credit and settlement costs. The
Company is required to submit audited financial statements annually, and each agency or other entity
has its own financial requirements. The Company’s affairs are also subject to examination by these
entities at all times to assure compliance with applicable regulations, policies and procedures.

The Company's ability to continue to grow the business and operations of the Company depends to a
significant degree upon the Company’s ability to access capital on favorable terms.

The ability to access capital on favorable terms has been an important factor in growing the Company’s
business and operations in a profitable manner. In December 2007, Moody’s lowered the Company’s
debt rating to one level below investment grade with a negative outlook, and S&P reaffirmed the
Company’s investment grade rating, but revised its outlook to negative. The loss of investment grade
rating could affect the cost of borrowing, capacity and covenants under the Company’s revolving credit
facility, and make it more difficult and costly for the Company to access the debt capital markets for
funds that may be required to implement the Company’s business plans and achieve growth objectives.

Natural disasters may bave a significant impact on the Company’s business.

The climates and geology of many of the states in which the Company operates present increased risks
of natural disasters. To the extent that hurricanes, severe storms, tornadoes, earthquakes, droughts,
floods, wildfires or other natural disasters or similar events occur, its business in those states may be
adversely affected.

Because this report contains forward-looking statements, it may not prove to be accurate.

This report and other Company releases and filings with the SEC may contain forward-looking
statements. The Company generally identifies forward-looking statements using words like *‘believe,”
“intend,” “expect,” “may,” “should,” “plan,” “project,” “contemplate,” “anticipate,” “‘target,”
“estimate,” “‘foresee,” “‘goal,” “likely,” “will” or similar statements. Because these statements reflect its
current views concerning future events, they involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions, including the
risks and uncertainties identified in this report. Actual results may differ significantly from the resuits
discussed in these forward-looking statements. The Company does not undertake to update its
forward-looking statements or risk factors to reflect future events or circumstances.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties

The Company leases office space for its corporate headquarters in Calabasas, California and for its IT
Department and RMC’s operations center in Scottsdale, Arizona. In addition, the Company leases office
space in the various markets in which it operates.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Contingent liabilities may arise from obligations incurred in the ordinary course of business or from
the usual obligations of on-site housing producers for the completion of contracts.

The Company is party to various other legal proceedings generally incidental to its businesses. Based
on evaluation of these matters and discussions with counsel, management believes that liabilities
arising from these matters will not have a material adverse ¢ffect on the financial condition of the
Company.




Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

During the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, there were no matters
submitted to a vote of security holders.

PART 11
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities

Market for Common Equity, Common Stock Prices and Dividends

The Company lists its common shares on the NYSE, trading under the symbol “RYL.” The latest
reported sale price of the Company’s common stock on February 12, 2008, was $28.45, and there
were approximately 2,003 common stockholders of record.

The table below presents high and low market prices and dividend information for the Company.

DIVIDENDS DIVIDENDS

DECLARED DECLARED
2007 HIGH LOW  PER SHARE 2006 HIGH LOW  PER SHARE
First quarter $ 60.13 $ 4196 $ 0.12  First quarter $ 8237 § 0483 & 012
Second quarter 48.61 37.22 0.12  Sccond guarter 73.24 41.64 0.12
Third quarter 39.33 20.19 0.12  Third quarter 46.16 34.82 0.12
Fourth quarter 29.67 19.51 0.12  Fourth quarter 56.48 42.69 0.12

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
The following table summarizes the Company's purchases of its own equity securities each quarter
during the year ended December 31, 2007:

(tn thousands, except share data}

TOTAL NUMBER OF APPROXIMATE DOLLAR

TOTAL SHARES PURCHASED VALUE OF SHARES

NUMBER OF AVERAGE AS PART OF PUBLICLY THAT MAY YET BE

SHARES PRICE PAID ANNOUNCED PLANS PURCHASED UNDER THE

PERIOD PURCHASED PER SHARE OR PROGRAMS PLANS OR PROGRAMS

January 1—March 31 895,000 $ 4851 895,000 $ 158,175

April 1—June 30 370,000 42.89 370,000 142,307

July 1—September 30 - - - 142,307

October 1—December 31 - - - 142,307
Total 1,265,000 $ 46.86 1,265,000

On December 12, 2005, the Company announced that it had received authorization from its Board of
Directors to purchase shares totaling $250.0 million, or approximately 3.5 million shares, based on the
Company’s stock price on that date. During 2007, there were approximately 518,000 shares
repurchased in accordance with this authorization. At December 31, 2007, there were no shares
available for purchase in accordance with this authorization.

On December 6, 2006, the Company announced that it had received authorization from its Board of
Directors to purchase shares totaling $§175.0 million, or approximately 3.1 million shares, based on the
Company’s stock price on that date. As of December 31, 2007, approximately 747,000 shares had been
repurchased in accordance with this authorization. At December 31, 2007, there were approximately
5.2 million more shares available for purchase in accordance with this authorization based on the
Company’s stock price on that date. This authorization does not have an expiration date.
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Performance Graph

The following performance graph and related information shall not be deemed *‘soliciting material” or
be “filed” with the SEC, nor shall such information be incorporated by reference into any future filing
under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, except to the extent that the Company specifically
incorporates it by reference into such filing.

The following graph compares the Company’s cumulative total stockholder returns since December 31,
2002 to the Dow Jones U.S. Home Construction and the S&P 500 indices for the calendar years ending
December 31:

COMPARISON OF 5-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among The Ryland Group, Inc., The S&P 500 Index
And The Dow Jones US Home Construction Index
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$200 -
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T T 1
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—+8— The Ryland Group, Inc. —A— S&P 500 --© - Dow Jones US Home Construction

* $100 invested on 12/31/02 in stock or index-including reinvestment of dividends.

Securities Authorized for Issnance Under Equity Compensation Plans
The Company's equity compensation plan information as of December 31, 2007, is summarized as
follows:

NUMBER OF SECURITIES

REMAINING AVAILABLE FOR

FUTURE ISSUANCE UNDER

NUMBER OF SECURITIES TO WEIGHTED-AVERAGE EXERCISE EQUITY COMPENSATION

BE ISSUED UPON EXERCISE OF PRICE OF QUTSTANDING PLANS (EXCLUDING
OUTSTANDING OPTIONS, OPTIONS, WARRANTS AND  SECURITIES REFLECTED IN
PLAN CATEGORY WARRANTS AND RIGHTS RIGHTS COLUMN (a))
(a) (b} <}
Equity compensation plans approved
by stockholders 4,276,166 $  35.d44 1,680,725

Equity compensation plans not
approved by stockholders! - - -

I Rylund does not bave any cquity compensation plans that have not been approved by stockbolders.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

¢in millions, except per share data) unaudited 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
ANNUAL RESULTS
REVENUES
Homebuilding 2,960 3§ 4,654 4,726 $ 3867 § 3,355
Financial services 72 103 92 85 89
TOTAL REVENUES 3,032 4,757 4,818 3,952 3,444
Cost of sales 3,034 3,640 3,538 2,504 2,616
Selling, general and administrative expenses 418 542 551 467 427
Expense related to early retirement of debt - 8 8 - 5
Earnings (loss) before taxes (420) 567 721 521 396
Tax expense (benefit) (86) 207 274 201 154
NET EARNINGS (LOSS) (334) § 360 447 8§ 320 § 242
YEAR-END POSITION
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 244 & 215 461 § 88 § 317
Housing inventorics 1,813 2,772 2,580 2,024 1,397
Other assets 485 430 346 313 294
TOTAL ASSETS 2,542 3,417 3,387 2,425 2,008
LIABILITIES
Debt 839 950 922 559 574
Other liabilities and minority interest 578 956 1,089 809 609
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,417 1,906 2,011 1,368 1,183
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 1,125 § 1,511 1,376 § 1,057 § 825
PER COMMON SHARE DATA
NET EARNINGS (LOSS)
Basic (7.92) $ 814 952 § 672 § 480
Diluted (7.92) 7.83 9.03 6.36 4,56
DIVIDENDS DECLARED 048 $ 048 030 $ 021 $ 008
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 26.68 § 3546 2968 $ 2232 § 1698
OTHER FINANCIAL DATA
Adjusted EBITDA! 260 8 744 814 $ 604 $ 480
Adjusted EBITDA/interest incurred? 4.2X 10.3X 122X 11.4X 9.6X
Return on beginning equity® (22.1)% 26.2% 42.3% 38.9% 35.5%
Nert debt-to-capital? 34.6% 32.7% 25.1% 30.8% 23.8%

-

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization and impairments (“Adjusted EBITDA") is a measure cormnonly used in the
bomebuilding industry and is presented to assist in understanding the ability of the operations of the Company to generate cash beyond that
which is needed to service existing interest requirements and ongoing tax obligations, Adjusted EBITDA equals net earnings (loss) before

(a) interest expense; (b) previously capitalized interest amortized to cost of sales; (c) income taxes; (d) depreciation and amortization; and
(e) inventory and other asset impairment charges and write-offs. Adjusted EBITDA is not a financial measure recognized in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP"). Adjusted EBITDA should neither be constdered an alternative to net earnings determined
in accordance with GAAP as an indicator of operating performance nor an alternative to cash flotws from operating activities determined in
accordance with GAAP as a measure of liguidity.

[

Adjusted EBITDA/interest incurred is calculated as Adjusted EBITDA (defined above) divided by total interest incurred, which is the sum of
interest expense and capitalizved interest for the period.

(™

Return on beginning equity is calculated as net earnings (loss) divided by total stockbolders™ equity at the beginning of the period,

+

Net debt-to-capital is calculated as debt, net of cash, divided by the sum of debt and total stockbolders® equity, net of cash. The Company
believes the net debt-to-capital ratio is useful in understanding the leverage employed in its operations and in comparing it with other
bomebuilders.
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The following table sets forth the computation of Adjusted EBITDA for each period presented:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Earnings (loss) before taxes $ (420,098) $ 567,108 § 721,051 § 521212 § 396,217
Inventory and other asset impairments and write-offs 583,363 81,314 3,798 1,588 1,210
Interest expense 98 205 738 1,227 7,523
Capitalized interest amortized to cost of sales 41,689 48,708 45,483 41,764 38,263
Depreciation and amortization 54,494 40,731 43,166 38,519 36,436
Adjusted EBITDA $§ 259546 $ 744,066 § 814,236 3 604310 § 479,049

A reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to net cash provided by operations, the most directly comparable
GAAP measure, is provided below for each period presented.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(in thousands} 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $ 228,140 $ 14637 $§ 216,264 § (78,471) % 139,471
(Decrease) increase in inventory (273,355) 263,444 494,769 587,150 241,199
Tax expense {(benefit) (86,572) 207,166 273,999 200,667 154,525
Deferred tax valuation allowance (75,166) - - - -
Interest expense 98 205 738 1,227 7,523
Capitalized interest amortized to cost of sales 41,689 48,708 45,483 41,764 38,263
Net change in other assets, payables and other

liabilities 412,984 217,488 (175,358) (104,424) (67,248)
Stock-based compensation expense (12,257) (25,593) (18,862) (15,208} (16,051)
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options and

vesting of restricted stock 6,714 14,632 (30,505) (17,475) (17,120)
Cther 17,271 3,379 7,708 (10,920) (913)
Adjusted EBITDA $ 259,546 $ 744066 $ 814,236 $ 604310 § 479,649
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Forward-Looking Statements

Note: Certain statements in this Annual Report may be regarded as “‘forward-looking statements”
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, and may qualify for the
safe barbor provided for in Section 21E of the Exchange Act. These forward-looking statements
represent the Company’s expectations and beliefs concerning future events, and no assurance can be
given that the results described in this Annual Report will be achieved. These forward-looking
statements can generally be identified by the use of statements that include words such as
“anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “‘expect,” 'foresee,” “goal,” “intend," “likely,”" “‘may,” "plan,”
“project,” “‘should,” “target,” “will” or other similar words or pbrases. All forward-looking
statements contained berein are based upon information available to the Company on the date of
this Annual Report. Except as may be required under applicable law, the Company does not
undertake any obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of
new information, future evenis or otherwise.

FET]

These forward-looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors, many of which
are outside of the Company’s control, that could cause actual results to differ materially from the
results discussed in the forward-looking statements. The factors and assumptions upon which any
Jorward-looking statements berein are based are subject to risks and uncertainties which include,
among others:

* economic changes nationally or in the Company’s local markets, including volatility and
increases in interest rates, inflation, changes in consumer demand and confidence levels and the
state of the market for bomes in general;

s instability and uncertainty in the morigage lending market, including revisions to underwriting
standards for borrowers;

* the availability and cost of land,

* increased land development costs on projects under development;

* shortages of skilled labor or raw materials used in the production of houses;

* increased prices for labor, land and raw materials used in the production of bouses;

*+ increased competition;

* failure to anticipate or react to changing consumer preferences in home design;

* increased costs and delays in land development or bome construction resulting from adverse
weather conditions;

* potential delays or increased costs in obtaining necessary permils as a result of changes to laws,
regulations or governmental policies (including those that affect zoning, density, building
standards and the environment);

* delays in obtaining approvals from applicable regulatory agencies and others in connection with
the Company’s communities and land activities;

* the risk factors set forth in this Annual Report on Form 10-K; and

* other factors over which the Company bas little or no control.

Results of Operations

Overview

Over the last several vears, the price appreciation of homes was relatively high in most markets and, in
turn, attracted speculation. Beginning in 20006, as appreciation slowed, declining consumer confidence
and demand caused national homebuilders to experience increasing inventories, which resulted in a
dramatic rise in the number of homes available for sale and a softening of demand for new homes.
During the latter half of 2007, a significant decrease in the availability of mortgage products resulting
from increased industry loan delinquencies and foreclosure rates, and the related tightening of credit
standards, further impacted the industry and the Company’s ability to attract qualified homebuyers.
These factors have exacerbated already high inventory levels of new and resale homes, increased
cancellation levels and weakened consumer confidence. As a result, during 2007, the Company
continued to report declines in the volume of homes sold, decreases in prices, high sales contract
cancellation rates and additional valuation adjustments. In an effort to compensate for these
developments, it has amended its operating strategy to focus on cash generation and moderation of
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risk through increased sales price discounts and other incentives; opportunistic land sales; reductions
in excess inventory and commitments to purchase land in the furure through contract renegotiations
and cancellations; controlled development spending; renegotiations of contracts with subcontractors
and suppliers; and reductions in overhead expense to more closely match projected volume levels.
(See discussion in “'Part I, Item 1A, Risk Factors.”)

Due to the Company’s increased use of price reductions and sales incentives, the Company’s
evaluation of its inventory through quarterly impairment analyses during 2007 resulted in

$504.0 million of inventory valuation adjustments. Charges of $77.2 million related to the
abandonment of land purchase option contracts reflect the deterioration of specific related returns and
the assumption that recent price reductions are indicative of price levels for the foreseeable future. In
addition, the Company established a valuation allowance against certain deferred tax assets in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, 109 (“SFAS 109"}, ‘‘Accounting for
Income Taxes.” These assets were largely the result of inventory impairments taken during the year
and reflect uncertainty with regard to the duration of current conditions in housing markets. Should
the Company generate significant taxable income in future years, it will reverse the allowance in the
form of a lower effective income tax rate. Additionally, the Company evaluated the recoverability of its
goodwill. Goodwill decreased from $18.2 million at December 31, 2006, to $2.8 million at

December 31, 2007, due to a $15.4 million impairment charge in the first quarter of 2007, and is now
among the lowest in the industry.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company reported a consolidated net loss of
$333.5 million, or $7.92 per diluted share, compared to earnings of $359.9 million, or $7.83 per
diluted share, for 2006 and $447.1 million, or $9.03 per diluted share, for 2005. Excluding these
impairments and charges, the Company’s earnings for 2007 would have been $107.2 million, or
$2.49 per share. The decrease in earnings for 2007, compared to 2006, was due to a decline in
revenues and lower margins, the latter resulting from inventory valuation adjustments and other
write-offs, as well as from a more competitive sales environment in most markets. The decline in
earnings for 2006, compared to 2003, resulted from a broad trend toward softening demand in
residential housing and a more competitive sales environment in most markets, as well as from
inventory valuation adjustments and write-offs of deposits and preacquisition costs that accompanied
selective local market weakness.

Total revenues were $3.0 billion for the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to $4.8 billion for
the same period in 2006. The decrease was primarily due to a decline in closings, average closing price
and mortgage originations. Total revenues for 2006 decreased from 2005 levels by $60.4 million, or

1.3 percent, primarily due to a decline in closing volume, partially offset by an increase in average
sales price. Homebuilding pretax operating margins were negative 14.4 percent for 2007, compared to
12.3 percent for 2006 and 15.8 percent for 2005. The decreases in margins were primarily due to
increased price concessions and sales incentives in most markets, as well as to inventory and goodwill
valuation adjustments and write-offs.

Excluding noncash impairments, Adjusted EBITDA was $259.5 million for the year ended

December 31, 2007, compared to $744.1 million and $814.2 million for the same periods in 2006 and
2005, respectively. The Company’s ratio of Adjusted EBITDA to interest incurred was 4.2 for the year
ended December 31, 2007, compared to 10.3 for 2006 and 12.2 for 2005. In an effort to position itself
for competitive industry conditions in 2008, the Company generated cash flow from its operations, in
part, by reducing land acquisitions, development activity and its obligations to take down land in the
future. At December 31, 2007, it had 20,418 fewer lots under control, or a 33.9 percent decrease from
year-end 2006.

The Company’s balance sheet continues to reflect its low-risk strategy and transparency. The Company
ended the year with $243.6 million in cash and no borrowings against its revolving credit facility. The
Company is not a significant participant in off-balance sheet financing outside of traditional option
contracts with land developers, and its investments in joint ventures represent 1.2 percent of its total
assets. The Company’s net debt-to-capital ratio was 34.6 percent at December 31, 2007, compared to
32.7 percent for the same period in 2006. As a result of the revaluation of a significant portion of
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inventory and deferred tax assets, and balancing cash flow with inventory management and leverage
objectives, stockholders’ equity per share declined by 24.8 percent to $26.68 in 2007, compared to
$35.46 in 2006. The Company's book value at December 31, 2007, was 99.8 percent tangible.

Homebuilding Overview

The combined homebuilding operations reported pretax losses of $§425.0 million for 2007, compared
to earnings of $573.1 million for 2006 and $744.2 million for 2005. Homebuilding results in 2007
decreased from 2006 primarily due to a decline in closings and margins and to the impact of inventory
valuation adjustments and write-offs. Homebuilding results in 2006 decreased from 2005 due to an
environment of slowing demand that resulted in declining prices and valuations, which led, in turn, to
a decline in gross profit margins, closing volume and average closing price.

STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(35 in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
REVENUES
Housing $ 2,937,435 § 4545594 § 4,628,889
Land and other 22,759 108,326 96,862
TOTAL REVENUES 2,960,194 4,653,920 4,725,751
EXPENSES
Cost of sales
Housing 2,433,426 3,482,142 3,463,788
l.and and other 21,595 83,536 73,011
Valuation adjustments and write-offs 578,778 74,397 804
Total cost of sales 3,033,799 3,640,075 3,537,603
Selling, general and administrative 351,376 440,702 443,938
TOTAL EXPENSES 3,385,175 4,080,777 3,981,541
PRETAX EARNINGS (LOSS) $ (424,981) § 573,143 § 744,210
Closings (urtits) 10,319 15,392 16,673
Housing gross profit margins (2.5)% 21.8% 25.2%
Selling, general and administrative expense 11.9% 9.5% 9.4%

New orders represent sales contracts that have been signed by the homebuyer and approved by the
Company, subject to cancellation. The dollar value of new orders decreased $780.2 million, or

24.3 percent, to $2.4 billion for the year ended December 31, 2007, from $3.2 billion for the year
ended December 31, 2006, primarily due to slowing demand. The dollar value of new orders declined
by 37.5 percent to $3.2 billion in 2006 from $5.1 billion for the same period in 2005, primarily due to
slowing demand and increases in cancellation rates. This decrease in new orders was primarily
attributable to a softening of demand in most markets and a more competitive sales environment.
Additionally, market uncertainty and heightened pricing competition among homebuilders led to rising
cancellation rates by homebuyers and were a major factor in these declines. Cancellation rates totaled
37.0 percent and 37.1 percent for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 20006, respectively. Unit
orders decreased 19.3 percent in 2007 and 36.4 percent in 2006.

Homebuilding revenues fell 36.4 percent for 2007, compared to 2000, due to a 33.0 percent decrease
in closings and a 3.4 percent decrease in average closing price. The decline in closings in 2007 was
due to slowing market trends, changes in the availability of financing for its customers and a more
competitive sales environment in most markets, Homebuilding revenues fell 1.5 percent for 2006,
compared to 2005, due to a 7.7 percent decrease in closings, partially offset by a 6.1 percent increase
in average closing price. The decline in closings in 2006 was due to slowing market trends and a more
competitive sales environment in most markets. The increase in average closing price was primarily
due to the delivery of homes in 2006 that were sold in 2005 under more favorable market conditions.

Consistent with its policy of managing land invesuments according to return and risk targets, the

Company executed several land and lot sales during the year. Homebuilding revenues for the year
ended December 31, 2007, included $21.2 million from land and lot sales, compared to $94.3 million
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for 2006 and $96.9 million for 2003, which contributed net gains of $1.2 million, $24.8 million and
$23.9 million to pretax earnings in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Gross profit margins averaged negative 2.5 percent for 2007, a decrease from 21.8 percent for 2006
and 25.2 percent for 2005. The decline in 2007 was primarily attributable to a more competitive
market that resulted in an increase in price concessions and sales incentives; inventory valuation
adjustments; write-offs of deposits and certain acquisition costs during the year. Gross profit margins,
excluding inventory valuation adjustments and write-offs, totaled 17.1 percent, 23.4 percent and

25.2 percent for the vears ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Price concessions
and sales incentives, as a percentage of revenues, totaled 12.1 percent and 7.1 percent for the years
ended December 31, 2007 and 20006, respectively. The effect of price declines, valuation adjustments
and write-offs was partially offset by the amortization of valuation allowances based on home closings,
which impacted gross margins by 2.6 percent and 0.1 percent, for the years ended December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively.

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144 (“SFAS 144’"), “Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” inventory is reviewed for potential write-downs on an
ongoing basis. SFAS 144 requires that, in the event that impairment indicators are present, impairment
charges are required to be recorded if the fair value of such assets is less than their carrying amounts.
Undiscounted cash flow projections are generated at a community level based on estimates of revenues,
costs and other factors. The Company’s analysis of these communities generally assumes flat revenues
when compared with current sales orders for particular or comparable communities. The Company’s
determination of fair value is primarily based on discounting the estimated cash flows ar a rate
commensurate with inherent risks that are associated with assets and related estimated cash flow
streams. Valuation adjustments are recorded against homes completed or under constructiont, land under
development and improved lots when events or circumstances indicate that the carrying values are
greater than the fair values. Due to continued pressure on home prices symptomatic of excess home
inventories in many markets combined with the industry’s recent predisposition toward a reduction in
land option pipelines, the Company recorded inventory impairment charges of $504.0 million and

£62.9 million during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, in order to reduce the
carrying value of the impaired communities to their estimated fair value. Approximately 88 percent of
these impairment charges were recorded to residential land and lots and land held for development and
approximately 12 percent of these charges were recorded to residential construction in progress and
finished homes in inventory. At December 31, 2007, the fair value of the Company’s inventory subject to
valuation adjustments during the year, net of §304.0 million of impairments, was $388.3 million. There
were 86 communities with write-downs in 2007, compared to 16 communities in 2006. The inventory
impairment charges and write-offs of deposits and acquisition costs reduced toral homebuilding gross
profit, as a percentage of revenues, by 19.6 percent in 2007 and 1.6 percent in 2006. Should market
conditions deteriorate or costs increase, it is possible that the Company’s estimates of undiscounted cash
flows from its communities may decline, resulting in additional future inventory impairment charges.

The Company periodically writes off earnest money deposits and feasibility costs related to land and
lot option contracts that it no longer plans to pursue. During the year ended December 31, 2007, the
Company wrote off $72.6 million and $4.6 million of earnest money deposits and feasibility costs,
respectively, that related to land purchase option contracts which it would not pursue. For the same
period in 2006, write-offs of earnest money deposits and feasibility costs related to land purchase
option contracts that the Company would not pursue were $10.9 million and $6.9 million, respectively.
Should currently weak homebuilding market conditions persist or deteriorate and the Company be
unsuccessful in its efforts to renegotiate certain land purchase contracts, it may write off additional
earnest money deposits and feasibility costs in future periods.

Selling, general and administrative expenses, as a percentage of revenue, were 11.9 percent for 2007,

9.5 percent for 2006 and 9.4 percent for 2005. The percentage increase for 2007, compared to 2006,
was mainly attributable to a goodwill impairment charge of $15.4 million; an $8.3 million charge relating
to severance and relocation costs; charges of $4.06 million for feasibility cost write-offs; and higher
marketing and advertising costs per unit, partially offset by reduced incentive compensation expense.
Selling, general and administrative expense dollars decreased $89.3 million for the year ended
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December 31, 2007, versus the same period in 2006. Selling, general and administrative expenses, as a
percentage of revenue, remained relatively flat in 2006, compared to 2005, due to cost reduction efforts
made in the face of declining revenues in various markets and a decrease in compensation that was
commensurate with lower earnings, partially offset by $6.9 million in feasibility cost write-offs that
resulted from the abandonment of certain projects.

Interest is incurred principally to finance land acquisitions, land development and home construction,
and totaled $62.0 million, $71.8 million and $66.0 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. In
2007, 2006 and 2003, the homebuilding segments capitalized all interest incurred, resulting in no
interest expense being recorded during those periods due to development activity. (See “Housing
Inventories’” within Note A, *Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.’”)

Homebuilding Segment Information
The Company’s homebuilding operations consist of four geographically determined regional reporting
segments: North, Southeast, Texas and West.

Conditions have been increasingly challenging in geographical areas that have previously experienced
the highest price appreciation, such as the California, Florida, Las Vegas, Phoenix and Washington D.C,,
markets. As a result of declining affordability, decreased demand and changes in buyer perception, the
excess supply of housing inventory has reached higher levels in these areas. In an attempt to maintain
market share and reduce inventory investment to match current sales volume levels, the Company has
increased its use of sales discounting and incentives. As a result, it has taken significant additional
impairments in the North, Southeast and West regions. To date, the discounting has been most
pronounced in the Company’s West region due to dramatic price declines resulting from these markets
experiencing more difficult conditions with regard to affordability and mortgage financing availability.
Of the Company’s total lots or homes with valuation adjustments during 2006 and 2007, 1,394 lots
with impairments were taken in the North, 3,170 in the Southeast, 108 in the Texas and 5,633 in the
West regions, respectively. Because the Company has impaired 100.0 percent, 87.8 percent and

100.0 percent of its lots owned in the California, Las Vegas and Phoenix markets, respectively, during
2007 and 2006, lot valuations in these markets at December 31, 2007 were approximately 52.0 percent
of original carrying values and reflect current distressed market conditions. As a result of these
impairments and price discounts, sales declines in the West were more moderate in the fourth quarter
of 2007.

The following table provides a summary of the Company’s inventory impairments taken for the years
ended December 31, 2007 and 2006:

2007 2006

INVENTORY OPTION FEASIBILITY INVENTORY OPTION FEASIBILITY

VALUATION  DEPOSIT COST VALUATION  DEPOSIT COST
(in tbousands) ADJUSTMENTS WRITE-OFFS WRITE-OFFS TOQTAL ADJUSTMENTS WRITE-OFFS WRITE-OFFS TOTAL
North $ 86957 $ 24,697 $ 26408 114,294 § 3694 § 2339 $§ 15148 7,547
Southeast 112,721 24,079 1,171 137,971 1,789 3,209 2,659 7,657
Texas 2,744 501 274 3,519 100 87 161 348
West 301,533 23,308 500 325,338 57,327 5,303 2,583 65,213
Total $ 503,955 $§ 72,582 $ 4,585 ¢ 581,122 § 62910 $ 10938 $ 6917 8§ 80,765

New Orders

New orders for 2007 decreased 16.4 percent in the North, 22.2 percent in the Southeast, 27.1 percent
in Texas and 4.6 percent in the West. New orders for 2006 decreased 31.1 percent in the North,

438 percent in the Southeast, 12.6 percent in Texas and 54.7 percent in the West. In 2007 and 2006,
the decline in new orders was primarily due to a softening of demand in most markets and a more
competitive sales environment. The cancellation rate was 37.0 percent for the year ended

December 31, 2007, versus 37.1 percent and 22.3 percent for 2006 and 20053, respectively.

The Company experiences seasonal variations in its quarterly operating results and capital
requirements. Historically, new order activity is higher in the spring and summer months. As a result, it
typically has more homes under construction, closes more homes, and has greater revenues and
operating income in the third and fourth quarters of its fiscal yvear. This is primarily due to the
preference of many homebuyers to act during those periods.
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The following table is a summary of the Company's new orders (units and aggregate sales value) for
the vears ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

2007 2006 2005

% % % % % %

(3s in millions) UNITS CHG DOLLARS CHG UNITS CHG DOLLARS CHG UNITS CHG DOLLARS CHG
North 2,496 (16.4)% $ 765 (21L.1)% 2987 (3LD% $ 970 (2B4% 4,333 (A.9% L1355 2.8%
Southeast 2,461 (22.2) 653 (29.1) 3,164 (43.8) 921 (43.2) 5,630 124 1,621 32,7
Texas 2,359 (27.1) 494 (24.3) 3,237 (12.6) 633 (3.9 3702 122 680 24.4
West 1,666  (4.6) 518 (22.3) 1,746 (54.7) 666 (55.0y 3852 (7.2) 1,480 99
Total 8,982 (19.3)% $2,430 (24.3)% 11,134 (36.4)% $3,210 (37.5)% 17,517 3.8% $5,136 15.8%

The following table provides the Company’s cancellation percentages for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 20006, and 2005:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2007 2006 2005
North 34.8% 31.5% 19.7%
Southeast 39.7 39.0 17.6
Texas 35.1 322 28.4
West 38.3 48.3 25.3
Total 37.0% 37.1% 22.3%

The canceilation rate for the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2007, was 46.2 percent, compared to
43.0 percent in the third quarter of 2007 and 49.2 percent in the fourth quarter of 2006.

Closings
The following table provides the Company’s closings and average closing prices for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

2007 2006 2005

AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE

(85 in thousands) UNITS PRICE UNITS PRICE UNITS PRICE
North 2,687 $ 318 3,604 $ 320 4,367 $ 310
Southeast 3,154 292 5,126 293 4,887 254
Texas 2,703 210 3,546 193 3,365 177
West 1,775 335 3,116 385 4,054 356
‘Fortal 10,319 $ 285 15,392 $ 295 16,673 $ 278

Qutstanding Contracts

Outstanding contracts denote the Company's backlog of homes sold but not closed, which are
generally built and closed, subject to cancellation, over the subsequent two gquarters. At December 31,
2007, the Company had outstanding contracts for 2,869 units, representing a 31.8 percent decrease
from the same period in 2006. The $786.4 million value of outstanding contracts at December 31,
2007, represented a decrease of 39.2 percent from the same period in 2006, primarily due to a

19.3 percent decline in unit orders. Average sales price decreases resulted primarily from slowing
market trends and a more competitive sales environment. OQutstanding contracts at December 31,
2007, represented approximately 33.8 percent of 2008 targeted closings.

DECEMBER 31, 2007 DECEMBER 31, 2006 DECEMBER 31, 2005

AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE

(§s in thousands) UNITS DOLLARS PRICE UNITS DOLLARS PRICE UNITS DOLLARS PRICE
North 9266 $ 297,909 § 307 1,157 § 386,510 § 334 1,774 % 570,559 § 322
Southeast 946 257,493 272 1,639 526,383 321 3,601 1,106,344 307
Texas 676 155,315 230 1,020 228,415 224 1,329 258,814 195
West 281 75,665 269 390 152,620 391 1,760 686,026 390
Total 2,869 $ 786,382 § 274 4,206 § 1,293,928 § 308 8,464 $ 2,621,743 $ 310
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STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

The following summary provides results for the homebuilding segments for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
NORTH
Revenues $ 857,448 $ 1,196335 § 1,388,208
Expenses
Cost of sales 805,949 917,804 1,023,752
Selling, general and administrative expenses 88,576 107,895 123,273
Total expenses 894,525 1,025,699 1,147,025
Pretax earnings (loss) $ (37,077 & 170,636 § 241,183
Housing gross profit margins 5.9% 23.4% 26.5%
SOUTHEAST
Revenues $ 929,168 $ 1,522,123 $ 1,258373
Expenses
Cost of sales 886,735 1,128,421 962,634
Selling, general and administrative expenses 101,852 140,582 116,497
Total expenses 988,587 1,269,003 1,079,131
Pretax earnings (loss) $ (59,419) $ 253,120 § 179,242
Housing gross profit margins 4.7% 25.9% 23.4%
TEXAS
Revenues $ 571,689 § 695,356 § 619,332
Expenses
Caost of sales 479,802 564,003 509,818
Selling, general and administrative expenses 64,789 71,499 65,206
Total expenses 544,591 635,502 575,024
Pretax earnings $ 27,098 § 50854 § 44,308
Housing gross profit margins 16.1% 18.5% 17.9%
WEST
Revenues $ 601,889 § 1,240,106 § 1,459,838
Expenses
Cost of sales 861,313 1,029,847 1,041,399
Selling, general and administrative expenses 96,159 120,726 138,962
Total expenses 957,472 1,150,573 1,180,361
Pretax earnings (loss) $ (355,583) $ 89,533 § 279477
Housing gross profit margins (43.7)% 16.8% 28.4%
TOTAL
Revenues $ 2,960,194 $§ 4653920 § 4,725,751
Expenses
Cost of sales 3,033,799 3,640,075 3,537,603
Selling, general and administrative expenses 351,376 440,702 443,938
Total expenses 3,385,175 4,080,777 3,981,541
Pretax earnings (loss) $ (424981) $ 573,143 8 744,210
Housing gross profit margins (2.5)% 21.8% 25.2%

Homebutlding Segments 2007 versus 2006

North—Homebuilding revenues decreased by 28.3 percent to $857.4 million in 2007 from $1.2 billion
in 2006 primarily due to a 25.4 percent decline in the number of homes delivered. Gross margins on
home sales were 5.9 percent in 2007, compared to 23.4 percent in 2006. This decrease was primarily
attributable to inventory valuation adjustments and write-offs of §111.7 million, as well as to increased
price concessions and sales incentives, which were 13.2 percent of revenues in 2007, versus

7.9 percent in 2006. As a result, the North region incurred $37.1 million of pretax losses in 2007,
compared with $170.6 million of pretax earnings in 2006,

Southeast—Homebuilding revenues were $929.2 million in 2007, compared to $1.5 billion in 20006, a
decrease of 39.0 percent, primarily due to a 38.5 percent decline in the number of homes delivered.
Gross margins on home sales were 4.7 percent in 2007, compared to 25.9 percent in 20006. Gross
margins on home sales decreased in 2007 primarily due to inventory valuation adjustments and
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write-offs of $136.8 million, as well as to increased price concessions and sales incentives that totaled
12.2 percent of revenues for 2007, versus 5.6 percent for the same period in 2006. As a result, the
Southeast region incurred $59.4 million of pretax losses in 2007, compared with $253.1 million of
pretax earnings in 2006.

Texas—Homebuilding revenues decreased by 17.8 percent to $571.7 million in 2007 from

$695.4 million in 2006 primarily due to a 23.8 percent decline in the number of homes delivered,
partially offset by an 8.8 percent increase in average sales price. Gross margins on home sales
decreased to 16.1 percent in 2007, compared to 18.5 percent in 2006, primarily due to the mix of
product delivered during the year, as well as to inventory valuation adjustments and write-offs of
$3.2 million and increased price concessions and sales incentives that totaled 7.4 percent of revenues
for 2007, versus 0.3 percent for the same period in 2006. As a result, the Texas region generated
$27.1 million of pretax earnings in 2007, down from $59.9 millicn of pretax earnings in 2006.

West—Homebuilding revenues decreased $638.2 million, or 51.5 percent, to $601.9 million in 2007,
compared to $1.2 billion in 2006, primarily due to a 43.0 percent decline in the number of homes
delivered and to a 13.0 percent decrease in average closing price. Gross margins on home sales were
negative 43.7 percent in 2007, compared to 16.8 percent in 2006. Gross margins on home sales
decreased in 2007 due o inventory valuation adjustments and write-offs of $324.8 million, as well as
to increased price concessions and sales incentives that totaled 14.7 percent of revenues for 2007,
compared to 8.7 percent for 2000. In addition, selling, general and administrative costs were

16.0 percent of revenues in 2007, due to declining leverage, severance and relocation costs and
feasibility cost write-offs. As a result, the West region incurred $355.6 million of pretax losses in 2007,
compared with $§89.5 million of pretax earnings in 2006.

Homebuilding Segments 2006 versus 2005

North—Homebuilding revenues decreased by 13.8 percent to $1.2 billion in 2006 from $1.4 billion in
2005 primarily due to a 17.5 percent decline in the number of homes delivered in all of the markets in
this segment, partially offset by a 3.2 percent increase in average closing price. Gross margins on home
sales were 23.4 percent in 2000, compared to 26.5 percent in 2005. Gross margins on home sales
decreased in 2006 primarily due to increased price concessions and sales incentives that totaled

7.9 percent of revenues in 2000, versus 5.9 percent in 2005. As a result, the North region generated
$170.6 million of pretax earnings in 2006, down from $241.2 million of pretax earnings in 2005,

Southeast—Homebuilding revenues were $1.5 billion in 2006, compared to $1.3 billion in 2005, an
increase of 21.0 percent, primarily due to a 4.9 percent rise in the number of homes delivered and a
15.4 percent increase in the average sales price. Gross margins on home sales were 25.9 percent in
2006, compared to 23.4 percent in 2005. Gross margins on home sales increased in 2006 primarily
due to a 15.4 percent rise in average sales price and to a change in mix in prices and profitability of
homes delivered, partially offset by an increase in price concessions and sales incentives. Price
concessions and sales incentives, as a percentage of revenue, for the years ended December 31, 2006
and 2005, were 5.6 percent and 3.4 percent, respectively. As a result, the Southeast region generated
$253.1 million of pretax earnings in 20006, an increase from $179.2 million of pretax earnings in 2005.

Texas—Homebuilding revenues increased by 12.3 percent to $695.4 million in 2006 from

$619.3 million in 2005 primarily due to a 5.4 percent increase in the number of homes delivered and
a 9.0 percent increase in average sales price. Gross margins on home sales were 18.5 percent in 2006,
compared to 17.9 percent in 2005. As a result, the Texas region generated $59.9 million of pretax
earnings in 2006, an increase from $44.3 million of pretax earnings in 2005.

West—Homebuilding revenues decreased $219.7 million, or 15.1 percent, to $1.2 billion in 2006,
compared to §1.5 billion in 2005, primarily due to a 23.1 percent decline in the number of homes
delivered, partially offset by an 8.1 percent increase in average closing price. Gross margins on home
sales were 16.8 percent in 2000, compared to 28.4 percent in 2005. Gross margins on home sales
decreased in 2000 due to an increase in sales incentives, inventory valuation adjustments and deposit
write-offs, Price concessions and sales incentives, as a percentage of revenue, were 8.7 percent and

3.5 percent for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. As a result, the West region
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generated $89.5 million of pretax earnings in 2006, down from $279.5 million of pretax earnings in
2005.

Financial Services

The Company’s financial services segment provides mortgage-related products and services, as well as
title, escrow and insurance services, to its homebuyers and subcontractors. By aligning its operations
with the Company’s homebuilding segments, the financial services segment leverages this relationship
to provide lending services to homebuyers. In addition to being a valuable asset to customers, the
financial services segment generates a profit for the Company. Providing mortgage financing and other
services to its customers allows the homebuilder to better monitor its backlog and closing process.
Currently, the majority of all loans are sold within one business day of the date they close. The third
party then services and manages the loans, assuming the credit risk of borrower default. The Company
also provides construction-related insurance to subcontractors in its western markets. Additionally, the
financial services segment provides insurance for liability risks, specifically homeowners’ warranty
coverage, arising in connection with the homebuilding business of the Company.

STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(§s in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
REVENUES
Net gains on sales of mortgages
and mortgage servicing rights $ 31,126 $§ 44231 § 45918
Title/escrow/insurance 33,734 41,086 28,489
Net origination fees 6,397 16,552 15,032
Interest and other 1,143 1,427 2,376
TOTAL REVENUES 72,400 103,296 91,815
EXPENSES 31,473 35,601 32,442
PRETAX EARNINGS $ 40927 § 67,695 § 59373
Originations (units) 7,653 11,744 12,774
Ryland Homes origination capture rate 78.8% 81.9% 81.9%
Mortgage-backed securities and notes receivable average balance $ 446 § 1,707 & 7,365

In 2007, RMC’s mortgage origination operations consisted primarily of mortgage loans originated in
connection with the sale of the Company’s homes. The number of mortgage originations was 7,653 for
2007, compared to 11,744 for 2006 and 12,774 for 2005. During 2007, total dollar originations were
$1.9 billion, of which 99.6 percent was for purchases of homes built by the Company and the
remaining amount was for either purchases of homes built by others, purchases of existing homes or
refinancing of existing mortgage loans. The capture rate of mortgages originated for customers of the
Company’s homebuilding operations was 78.8 percent in 2007 and 81.9 percent for both 2006 and
2005.

The financial services segment reported pretax earnings of $40.9 million for 2007, compared to
$67.7 million for 2006 and $59.4 million for 2005. The decrease in 2007, compared to 2006, was
primarily attributable to a 34.8 percent decline in the number of mortgages originated due to a
slowdown in the homebuilding market, a decline in the availability of mortgage products and a

1.8 percent decrease in loan size, partially offset by a $4.4 million gain on the sale of insurance
renewal business in the fourth quarter of 2007. The increase in 2006, versus 2005, was primarily due
to increased income from insurance services and a 6.5 percent rise in average loan size, offset by an
8.1 percent decrease in loans originated.

Revenues for the financial services segment declined 29.9 percent to $72.4 million for 2007, compared
to $103.3 million for 2006. The decrease was primarily attributable to the reduced volume of loans
originated and sold. In 2006, revenues for the financial services segment increased 12.5 percent to
$103.3 million from $91.8 million in 2005 due to a $12.6 million increase in title, escrow and
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insurance revenues, partially offset by reduced interest income from a declining investment pordolio
and reduced revenue from the origination and sale of mortgages.

General and administrative expenses decreased to $31.5 million for the year ended December 31,
2007, from $35.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, primarily due to personnel
reductions made in an effort to align overhead with lower production volumes, partially offset by an
increase of $2.0 million in mortgage indemnification expense. General and administrative expenses
rose for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to 20035, primarily as a result of additional
expenses incurred in the Company’s insurance operations.

Interest expense decreased 52.2 percent for the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to 2006,
and declined 72.2 percent for 2006, compared to 2005, due to continued runoff and redemption of
the Company’s mortgage-backed securities portfolio.

In August 2007, increased delinquencies of primarily *“‘subprime” mortgages in secondary markets
resulted in a significant decrease in the availability of these mortgage products. During the fourth
quarter of 2007, RMC did not originate mortgage loans that would be classified as “subprime” or
“Alt-A.” All of the mortgage loans originated by RMC during the fourth quarter of 2007 were either
“government” or “‘prime’’ mortgage loans. “Prime” mortgage loans are gencrally defined as agency
loans (FNMA/FHLMC) and any nonconforming loans that would otherwise meet agency criteria.
Generally, they are borrowers with FICO scores that exceed 620. Approximately 96 percent of the
mortgage loans originated by RMC during the fourth quarter of 2007 were sold 1o Countrywide
Financial Corporation (“Countrywide’™) pursuant to their loan purchase agreement with the Company.
The remaining loans were sold to investors, such as U.S. Bank Corporation, or to specialized state
bond loan programs. With respect to the loan purchase program with Countrywide, except in rare
circumstances, RMC is not required to repurchase mortgage loans where the borrower makes the first
payment. Many of the mortgage loans originated by RMC are insured against losses. Generally, the
Company is required to indemnify Countrywide, or another participating lender to which mortgage
loans are sold, if there are losses due to errors caused by RMC or when it is shown that there has been
fraud on the part of the borrower that was known or should have been known by RMC. It is unusual
for the Company to repurchase a mortgage loan that it originates and has subsequently sold. As a
result, the Company does not expect to suffer any material losses due to the repurchase of
nonperforming mortgage loans during the fiscal year commencing January 1, 2008,

Corporate

Corporate expenses were $35.6 million for 2007, $66.0 million for 2006 and $74.3 million for 2005.
Corporate expense for 2007, compared to 2006 and 2005, declined primarily due to lower incentive
compensation expense that resulted from declining earnings and stock price.

In 2007, the Company recorded an aggregate expense of approximately $490,000 that was associated
with the early redemption of $100.0 million of its 5.4 percent senior notes due June 2008. The
Company redeemed $75.0 million and $25.0 million, at stated call prices of 100.2 percent and

100.8 percent, of the principal amount of the notes in August and December of 2007, respectively.

In 2006, the Company recorded an expense of $7.7 million that was associated with the early
redemption of $150.0 million of its 9.1 percent senior subordinated notes due June 2011, of which it
owned $6.5 million, at a stated call price of 104.6 percent of the principal amount.

In 2005, the Company recorded an expense of $8.3 million that was associated with the early
redemption of $150.0 million of its 9.8 percent senior notes due September 2010, of which it owned
$3.0 million, at a stated call price of 104.9 percent of the principal amount.

Investments in Joint Ventures

At December 31, 2007, the Company participated in seven active joint ventures in the Austin, Chicago,
Dallas, Denver, Las Vegas and Orlando markets, one of which was consolidated. These joint ventures
exist for the purpose of acquisition and co-development of land parcels and lots, which are then sold
to the Company, its joint venture partners or others at market prices. Depending on the number of
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joint ventures and the level of activity in the entities, annual earnings from the Company’s investment
in joint ventures will vary significantly The Company’s investments in its unconsolidated joint ventures
totaled $30.8 million at December 31, 2007, compared to $13.5 million at December 31, 2006. The
Company's equity in earnings from unconsolidated joint ventures in 2007 totaled approximately
$342,000, compared to losses of $260,000 in 2006 and earnings of $315,000 in 2005. (See
“Investments in Joint Ventures”’ within Note A, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.”)

Income Taxes

The Company’s provision for income tax presented an effective income tax benefit rate of 20.6 percent
for the vear ended December 31, 2007, compared to an effective provision rate of 36.5 percent and
38.0 percent for the same periods in 2006 and 2005, respectively. The decrease in the effective tax rate
for 2007, compared to 2006, was primarily due to a noncash tax charge of $75.2 million establishing a
valuation allowance related to the Company’s deferred tax assets in accordance with SFAS 109 and the
impact of lower pretax earnings for the year. The decrease in the effective tax rate for 2006, compared
to 2005, was primarily attributable to prior years’ tax provisions no longer required due to the
expiration of various tax statutes. (See Note G, “Income Taxes.”")

Financial Condition and Liquidity

The Company has historically funded its homebuilding and financial services operations with cash
flows from operating activities, borrowings under its revolving credit facilities and the issuance of new
debt securities. In light of deteriorating market conditions in 2007, the Company took several specific
actions during the year to generate cash flow, reduce debt levels and strengthen its balance sheet.
These actions included terminating or renegotiating land option contracts, reducing inventory and
unsold homes under construction; reducing head count; consolidating or exiting underperforming
markets and suspending stock repurchases. As a result of this strategy, the Company lowered its debt
by $111.0 million and ended the year with $243.6 million in cash and cash equivalents.

NET

STOCKHOLDERS’ DEBT-TO-CAPITAL

(in millions) EQUITY DEBT RATIO
2005 $§ 1376 $ 922 25.1%
2006 5 151 $ 950 32.7%
2007 $ 1,125 $ 839 34.6%

At December 31, 2007, the Company’s net debt-to-capital ratio was 34.6 percent, an increase from
32.7 percent at December 31, 2006. The increase in the Company’s net debt-to-capital ratio at
December 31, 2007, compared to December 31, 2006, was primarily due (o the decrease in retained
earnings, mainly as a result of valuation adjustments taken, partially offset by debt repayments funded
with cash flows from operations. The Company remains focused on maintaining its liquidity so it can
be flexible in reacting to changing market conditions.

The following table summarizes the Company’s cash flow activities for the years ended December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005:

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Operating activities $ 228,140 8 14,637 $216,264
Investing activitics (31,397) (51,589)  (42,566)
Financing activitics (168,166)  (209,394) 199,297
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ 28,577 $(240,346) 8372,995

During 2007, the Company generated $228.1 million of cash from its operations. The Company
invested $32.1 million in property, plant and equipment and used $108.2 million in financing activities,
including debt repayments of $111.0 million, stock repurchases of $§59.3 million and dividends of
$20.4 million. The net cash flow generated during the year ended December 31, 2007 was

§28.6 million.

During 20006, the Company generated $14.6 million of cash from its operations. The Company invested

$53.8 million in property, plant and equipment and used $§209.4 million in financing activities,
including net proceeds of $6.5 million from additional debt and outflows for stock repurchases of
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$250.1 million and dividends of $21.7 million. The net cash used during the year ended December 31,
2006 was $246.3 million.

During 2005, the Company generated $216.3 million of cash from its operations. The Company
invested $55.1 million in property, plant and equipment and generated cash of $199.3 million from
financing activities, including net proceeds of $353.0 million from additional debt and outflows for
stock repurchases of $176.2 million and dividends of §11.4 million. The net cash flow for the year
ended December 31, 2005 was $373.0 million.

Dividends totaled $0.48, $0.48 and $0.30 per share for the annual periods ended December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively.

Consolidated inventories owned by the Company decreased to $1.7 billion at December 31, 2007,
from $2.5 billion at December 31, 2006. The Company attempts to maintain a projected four- to
five-year supply of land, with half controlled through options. At December 31, 2007, the Company
controlled 39,900 lots, with 26,647 lots owned and 13,253 lots, or 33.2 percent, under option. As a
result of its efforts to match controlled inventory with current unit volume levels, lots controlled
declined by 33.9 percent, compared to 60,318 lots under control at December 31, 2006. (See
*Housing Inventories” within Note A, “Significant Accounting Policies.””) The Company continues to
evaluate its option contracts for changes in the viability of communities and abandonment potential. In
an effort to increase liquidity, models have been sold and leased back on a selective basis for generally
3 to 18 months. The Company owned 76.1 percent and 66.9 percent of its model homes at
December 31, 2007 and 20006, respectively.

The homebuilding segments’ borrowings include senior notes, an unsecured revolving credit facility
and nonrecourse secured notes payable.

Senior Notes

Senior notes outstanding totaled $800.0 million and $900.0 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. The Company redeemed $75.0 million and $25.0 million of its 5.4 percent senior notes
due June 2008 in August and December 2007, respectively. The redemption prices were 100.2 percent
and 100.8 percent of the principal amount of the notes outstanding, respectively, plus accrued interest
as of the redemption dates. The Company recognized an aggregate loss of approximately $490,000
related to the early retirement of these notes in 2007.

In 2006, the Company redeemed $150.0 million of its 9.1 percent senior subordinated notes due June
2011, of which it owned $6.5 million. The redemption price was 104.6 percent of the principal
amount of the notes outstanding, plus accrued interest as of the redemption date. The Company
recognized a $7.7 million loss related to the early retirement of these senior subordinated notes in the
third quarter of 2006. Additionally, the Company’s 8.0 percent senior notes, which totaled

$100.0 million, matured in August 2006.

The $50.0 million of 5.4 percent senior notes due June 2008; the $250.0 million of 5.4 percent senior
notes due May 2012; the $250.0 million of 6.9 percent senior notes due June 2013; and the

$250.0 million of 5.4 percent senior notes due January 2015 are subject to certain covenants that
include, among other things, restrictions on additional secured debt and the sale of assets. At
December 31, 2007, the Company was in compliance with these covenants.

In 2006, the Company terminated its treasury interest rate locks (“‘treasury locks”), which were
entered into to facilitate the replacement of some of its higher-rate senior debt. (See Note D,
*Derivative Instruments.”)

Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility

During 2007, the Company amended its unsecured revolving credit facility by reducing its borrowing
capacity from $1.1 billion to $750.0 million in an effort to reduce costs related to unused capacity and
to provide additional flexibility by modifying several covenants. (See Note F, “Debt.’") The credit
agreement matures in January 2011 and provides access to $750.0 million of additional financing
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through an accordion feature, under which the aggregate commitment may be increased up to

$1.5 billion, subject to the availability of additional lending commitments. The revolving credit facility
includes a $75.0 million swing-line facility and a $600.0 million sublimit for the issuance of standby
letters of credit. In the amendment, among other things, the Company removed the interest ratio
covenant; increased the pricing grid, which is based on its leverage ratio and public debt rating;
provided a pricing premium and debi-to-capital ratio reduction if its interest coverage ratio is less than
2:1; and changed certain definitions that would affect the method of calculating earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA™). Amounts borrowed under the credit
agreement are guaranteed on a joint and several basis by substantially all of the Company’s

100 percent-owned homebuilding subsidiaries. Such guarantees are full and unconditional. Interest
rates on outstanding borrowings are determined either by reference to LIBOR, with margins
determined based on changes in its leverage ratio and credit ratings, or by reference to an alternate
base rate. The credit agreement contains various customary affirmative, negative and financial
covenants. The Company was in compliance with these covenants at December 31, 2007.

The Company uses its unsecured revolving credit facility to finance increases in its homebuilding
inventory and working capital, when necessary. There were no borrowings outstanding under the
agreements at December 31, 2007 or 2006. Under the agreement, the Company had letters of credit
outstanding that totaled $157.8 million and $192.9 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Unused borrowing capacity under the facility totaled $592.2 million and §940.6 million at
December 31, 2007 and 2000, respectively. (See Note F, “Debt.”")

Under the debt covenants associated with the Company’s revolving credit facility, if it loses its
investment grade senior unsecured debt ratings from both Moody's Investors Service (*Moody’s”) and
Standard and Poor’s Ratings Services (“S&P”), the Company would be subject to a borrowing base
limitation, as well as to restrictions on unsold homes and unsold land and lots. In December 2007,
Moody’s lowered the Company’s rating to one level below investment grade with a negative outlook,
while S&P maintained the Company’s investment grade with a negative outlook. The borrowing base
covenant limits the Company’s additional homebuilding borrowing capacity to the amount determined
under the arrangement. The total borrowing capacity under the credit facility of $750.0 million, of
which $592.2 million was available at December 31, 2007, would have been reduced to $282.3 million,
with $124.5 million available, had the restriction heen in place. Additional restrictions based on senior
unsecured debt ratings limit the ratio of the Company’s unsold homes to the trailing 6-month and
12-month unit home closings to 70.0 percent and 50.0 percent, respectively, and limit the ratio of its
unsold land and lots over consolidated tangible net worth to 1:1. At December 31, 2007, these ratios
were 29.1 percent, 15.7 percent and 0.9:1, respectively,

In February 2008, the Company entered into a sccond amendment to its credit facility (“Second
Amendment’”). The Second Amendment reduces the base amount for the minimum consolidated
tangible net worth covenant the Company is required to maintain under its credit facility to

$850.0 million; increases the borrowing base by adding unrestricted cash up to $300.0 million; and
increases the definition of material indcbtedness to $20.0 million.

Nonrecourse Secured Notes Payable

To finance its land purchases, the Company may also use seller-financed nonrecourse secured notes
payable. At December 31, 2007, such notes payable outstanding amounted to $39.1 million, compared
to $50.1 million at December 31, 2006.

Finance Subsidiaries

In January 2008, RMC entered into a mortgage warchouse line of credit agreement with Guaranty Bank
(the “"RMC Credit Agreement’"). The RMC Credit Agreement matures in January 2009 and provides for
borrowings up to $40.0 million to fund RMC’s morigage loan origination operations. It is secured by
underlying mortgage loans and by other assets of RMC. Facility balances are repaid as loans funded
under the agreement are sold to third partics. The RMC Credit Agreement’s interest rate is set at
LIBOR plus 0.9 percent, with 2 commitment fee of 0.125 percent on the unused portion of the facility.
The RMC Credit Agreement contains representations, warranties, covenants and provisions defining

29




events of default. The covenants require RMC to maintain a2 minimum net worth and certain financial
ratios.

Other

The Company filed a shelf registration statement with the SEC for up to $1.0 billion of its debt and
equity securities on April 11, 2005. At December 31, 2007, $600.0 million remained available under
this registration. The registration statement provides that securitics may be offered, from time to time,
in one or more series and in the form of senior, subordinated or convertible debt; preferred stock;
preferred stock represented by depository shares; common stock; stock purchase contracts; stock
purchase units; and warrants to purchase both debt and equity securities. In the future, the Company
intends to continue to maintain effective shelf registration statements that will facilitate access to the
capital markets. The timing and amount of future offerings, if any, will depend on market and general
business conditions.

During 2007, the Company repurchased approximately 1.3 million shares of its common stock at a cost
of $59.3 million. The Company had existing authorization from its Board of Directors to purchase
approximately 5.2 million more shares at a cost of approximately $142.3 million, based on the
Company’s stock price at December 31, 2007, Qutstanding shares were 42,151,085 and 42,612,525 at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, a decrease of 1.1 percent.

The following table provides a summary of the Company’s contractual cash obligations and commercial
commitments at December 31, 2007, and the effect such obligations are expected o have on liquidity
and cash flow in future periods.

CONTRACTUAL PAYMENTS DUE BY PERIOD

AFTER
(in thousands) TOTAL 2008 2009-2010 2011-2012 2012
Debt, principal maturities $ 839,080 § 75,512 § 11,762 §$ 251,806 § 500,000
Interest on debt 248,346 45,182 88,125 79,727 35,312
Operating leases 45,707 11,641 18,388 10,261 5,417
Land option contracts' 23,881 4,237 19,644 - -
Toral at December 31, 2007 $ 1,157,014 $ 136,572 § 137,915 §$ 341,794 §$§ 540,729

! Represents obligations under option contracts with specific performance provisions, net of cash depusits.

While the Company expects challenging economic conditions to continue, it is focused on managing
land acquisitions, development, construction activity and overhead in order to generate cash flow and
maintain debt levels commensurate with its business. Absent a2 more severe deterioration in market
conditions, the Company believes that it will be able to continue to fund its homebuilding and
financial services operations, plus any future cash needs (including debt maturities), through its
existing cash resources for the foreseeable future.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into land and lot option purchase contracts in
order to procure land or lots for the construction of homes. Land and lot option purchase contracts
enable the Company to control significant lot positions with a minimal capital investment, thereby
reducing the risks associated with land ownership and development. At December 31, 2007, the
Company had $74.7 million in cash deposits and lewers of credit to purchase land and lots with a total
purchase price of $§721.4 million. Only $24.2 million of the $721.4 million in land and lot option
purchase contracts contain specific performance provisions. Additionally, the Company’s liability is
generally limited to forfeiture of the nonrefundable deposits, letters of credit and other nonrefundable
amounts incurred.

Pursuant to Interpretation No. 46 (“FIN 46"), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” as
amended, the Company consolidated $76.7 million of inventory not owned at December 31, 2007,
$76.0 million of which pertained to land and lot option purchase contracts, representing the fair value
of the optioned property, and approximately $758,000 of which pertained to certain of the Company’s
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homebuilding joint ventures. (See *‘Variable Interest Entities” and “‘Investments in Joint Ventures”
within Note A, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.™)

At December 31, 2007, the Company had outstanding letters of credit under its revolving credit facility
totaling $157.8 million; and development or performance bonds totaling $313.2 million, issued by
third parties, to secure performance under various contracts and obligations relating to land or
municipal improvements, as compared to the prior year. The Company expects that the obligations
secured by these letters of credit and performance bonds will generally be satisfied in the ordinary
course of business and in accordance with applicable contractual terms. To the extent that the
obligations are fulfilled, the related letters of credit and performance bonds will be released, and the
Company will not have any continuing obligations.

The Company has no material third-party guarantees other than those associated with its revolving
credit facility, the RMC Agreement, senior notes and investments in joint ventures. (See “investments
in Joint Ventures” within Note A, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” and Note K,
“Supplemental Guarantor Information.”)

Critical Accounting Policies

Preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements requires the use of judgment in the
application of accounting policies and estimates of inherently uncertain matters. Listed below are those
policies that management belicves are critical and require the use of complex judgment in their
application.

Management has discussed the critical accounting policies with the Audit Committee of its Board of
Directors and the Audit Committee has reviewed the disclosure. There are items within the financial
statements that require estimation, but are not considered critical.

Use of Estimates

In budgeting land acquisitions, devetopment and homebuilding construction costs associated wirth real
estate projects, the Company evaluates market conditions; material and labor costs; buyer preferences;
construction timing; and provisions for insurance and warranty obligations. The Company accrues its
best estimate of the probable cost for resolution of legal claims. Estimates, which are based on
historical experience and other assumptions, are reviewed continually, updated when necessary and
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management believes that the timing and scope of
its evaluation procedures are proper and adequate. Changes in assumptions relating to such factors,
however, could have a material effect on the Company’s results of operations for a particular quarterly
or annual pericd.

Income Recognition

Revenues and cost of sales are recorded at the time each home or lot is closed, title and possession
are transferred to the buyer and there is no significant continuing involvement in accordance with
SFAS 66. In order to match revenues with related expenses, land, land development, interest, taxes and
other related costs (both incurred and estimated to be incurred in the future) are allocated to the cost
of homes closed, based upon the relative sales value basis of the total number of homes to be
constructed in each community, in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

No. 67 (““SFAS 67"), “Accounting for Costs and Initial Rental Operations of Real Estate Projects.”
Estimated land, common area development and related costs of planned communities, including the
cost of amenities, are allocated to individual parcels or communities on a relative sales value basis.
Changes to estimated costs, subsequent to the commencement of the delivery of homes, are allocated
to the remaining undelivered homes in the community. Home construction and related costs are
charged to the cost of homes closed under the specific-identification method.

Inventory Valuation

Housing projects and land held for development (inventory) and sale are stated at either the lower of
cost or net realizable value. Inventory includes land and development costs; direct construction cOsts;
capitalized indirect construction costs; capitalized interest; and real estate taxes. It may take one to
three years to develop, sell and deliver all of the homes in a typical community. The Company assesses
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these assets for recoverability in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 144. SFAS 144 requires that
long-lived assets and assets held-for-sale be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of
housing inventories is measured by comparing the carrying amount of an asset to future undiscounted
net cash flows expected to be generated by that asset or by the sales of comparable assets. Assets
held-for-sale are carried at the lower of cost or fair value, less selling costs. These evaluations for
impairment are significantly impacted by estimates of revenues, costs and expenses, as well as by other
factors. In addition, land, or costs related to future communities, whether owned or under option, are
reviewed to determine if the Company will proceed with development and if all related costs are
recoverable. If these assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment loss is measured as the
amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets and is
recognized within the same period that it is identified. Management believes its processes are designed
to properly assess the market and carrying values of asscts.

Warranty Reserves

The Company’s homes are sold with limited third-party warranties. Warranty reserves are established as
homes close on a house-by-house basis in an amount estimated to be adequate to cover expected costs
of materials and outside labor during warranty periods. Certain factors are considered in determining
the reserves, including the historical range of amounts paid per house; experience with respect to
similar home designs and geographical areas; the historical amount paid as a percentage of home
construction costs; any warranty expenditures not considered to be normal and recurring; and
conditions that may affect certain subdivisions. Improvements in quality control and construction
techniques expected to impact future warranty expenditures are also considered. Accordingly, the
process of determining the Company’s warranty reserves balance necessarily requires estimates
associated with various assumptions, each of which can positively or negatively impact the warranty
reserves balance,

Generally, warranty reserves are reviewed monthly to determine the reasonableness and adequacy of
both the aggregate reserve and the per unit reserve amount originally included in home cost of sales,
as well as the timing of any reversals of the original reserve. General warranty reserves not utilized for
a particular house are evaluated for reasonableness in the aggregate on both a market-by-market and
consolidated basis. Warranty payments for an individual house may exceed the related reserve.
Payments in excess of the reserve are evaluated in the aggregare to determine if an adjustment to the
warranty reserve should be recorded, which could result in a corresponding adjustment to home cost
of sales.

The Company continues to evaluate the adequacy of its warranty reserves and believes that its existing
estimation process is materially accurate. Because the Company’s warranty reserves can be impacted by
a significant number of factors, it is possible that changes to the Company’s assumptions could have a
material impact on its warranty reserve balances.

Variable Interest Entities (‘VIE")

FIN 46 requires a VIE to be consolidated by a company if that company is subject to a majority of the
risk of loss from the VIE’s activities and/or entitded to receive a majority of the VIE’s residual returns.
FIN 46 also requires disclosure about VIEs that the Company is not obligated to consolidate but in
which it has a significant, though not primary, variable interest. The Company enters into joint
ventures, from time to time, for the purpose of acquisition and co-development of land parcels and
lots. Its investment in these joint ventures may create a variable interest in a ViE, depending on the
contractual terms of the arrangement. Additionally, in the ordinary course of business, the Company
enters into lot option purchase contracts in order to procure land for the construction of homes.
Under such lot option purchase contracts, the Company funds stated deposits in consideration for the
right to purchase lots at a future point in time, usually at predetermined prices. In accordance with the
requirements of FIN 46, certain of the Company’s lot option purchase contracts may result in the
creation of a variable interest in a VIE. The Company believes the accounting for joint venrures and
land option purchase contracts using the variable interest consolidation methodology is a critical
accounting policy because compliance with FIN 46 requires the use of complex judgment in its
application.
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Income Taxes

The Company calculates a provision for its income taxes by using the asset and liability method, under
which deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized by identifying the temporary differences arising
from the different treatment of items for tax and accounting purposes. The Company evaluates its
deferred tax assets on a quarterly basis to determine whether a valuation allowance is required. In
accordance with SFAS 109, the Company assesses whether a vatuation allowance should be established
based on its determination of whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the
deferred rax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets depends
primarily on the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary
differences become deductible. Judgment is required in determining the future tax consequences of
events that have been recognized in the Company’s consolidated financial statements and/or tax
returns. Differences between the amounts recognized in its financial statements or tax returns and
actual outcomes may arise upon issuance of regulations and final guidance from federal and state
taxing authorities and could have a material impact on the Company's consolidated results of
operations or financial position.

Share-Based Payments

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company follows the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123(R) (“‘SFAS 123(R)™), “‘Share-Based Payment,”’ which requires that compensation
expense be measured and recognized at an amount equal to the fair value of share-based payments
granted under compensation arrangements. The Company calculates the fair value of stock options by
using the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model. The determination of the fair value of share-
based awards at the grant date requires judgment in developing assumptions, which involve a number
of variables. These variables include, but are not limited to, expected stock-price volatility over the
term of the awards, expected dividend yield and expected stock option exercise behavior, Additionally,
judgment is also required in estimating the number of share-based awards that are expected to forfeit.
If actual results differ significantly from these estimates, stock-based compensation expense and the
Company’s consolidated results of operations could be materially impacted. The Company believes the
accounting for stock-based compensation is a critical accounting policy because it requires the use of
complex judgment in its application.

Qutlook

In 2007, the Company continued to experience a decline in sales orders for new homes, compared 10
the same period last year. The Company believes its sales orders reflect broader market trends that
reflect soft demand for residential housing. Nearly all markets have been affected by reductions in the
affordability of homes, the availability of mortgage products and the consumer demand for homes,
leading to the continued buildup of new and resale home inventories. At December 31, 2007, the
Company’s backlog of orders for new homes totaled 2,869 units, or a projected value of

$786.4 million, reflecting a 39.2 percent decline in dollar value from December 31, 2006. As long as
the imbalance of housing supply and demand continues, the Company will remain focused on its
liquidity and balance sheet, while seeking to optimize its earnings and to position itself for a return to
a more favorable economic environment.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market Risk Summary

The following table provides information about the Company’s significant financial instruments that
are sensitive to changes in interest rates. For debt obligations, the table presents principal cash flows
and related weighted-average interest rates by expected maturity dates. For other financial instruments,
weighted-average rates are based on implied forward rates as of the reporting date.

Interest Rate Sensitivity
Principal Amount by Expected Maturity

FAIR
THERE- VALUE
(in thousands) 2008 2009-2011 2012 AFTER TOTAL 12/31/2007
Senior notes (fixed rate) § 50000 § - & 250,000 § 500,000 $ 800,000 § 751,885
Average interest rate 5.4% 5.4% 6.1% 5.8%
Other financial instruments
Mortgage interest rate lock
commitments:
Notional amount $ 66,126 ¢ - 3 - § - 8 66,126 § 298
Average interest rate 6.2% 6.2%
Forward-delivery contracts:
Notional amount 47,500 - - - 47,500 {181}
Average interest rate 5.5% 5.5%

Interest rate risk is a primary market risk facing the Company. Interest rate risk not only arises
principally in the Company’s financial services segment, but also in respect to the homebuilding
segments’ revolving credit facility. The Company enters into forward-delivery contracts and may, at
times, use other hedging contracts to mitigate its exposure tO movements in interest rates on mortgage
interest rate lock commitments ('IRLCs™). In managing interest rate risk, the Company does not
speculate on the direction of interest rates.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(in thousands, except share data) 2007 2000 2005
REVENUES
Homebuilding $ 2,960,194 § 4,653,920 § 4,725,751
Financial services 72,400 103,296 91,815
TOTAL REVENUES 3,032,594 4,757,216 4,817,566
EXPENSES
Cost of sales 3,033,799 3,640,075 3,537,603
Selling, general and administrative 351,376 440,702 443,938
Financial services 31,473 35,601 32,442
Corporate 35,554 66,035 74,255
Expenses related to early retirement of debt 490 7.695 8,277
TOTAL EXPENSES 3,452,692 4,190,108 4,096,515
EARNINGS
Earnings (loss) before taxes (420,098) 567,108 721,051
Tax expense (benefit) (86,572) 207,166 273,999
NET EARNINGS (LOSS) $ (333,526) 8 359,942 8 447,052
NET EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE
Basic $ (7.92) § 8.14 § 9.52
Diluted (7.92) 7.83 9.03
AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING
Basic 42,136,315 44,228,502 46,966,317
Difuted 42,136,315 45,944,448 49,490,887
DIVIDENDS DECLARED PER COMMON SHARE $ 0.48 § 048 § 0.30

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31,

(in thousands, except share data) 2007 2006
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 243,614 § 215,037
Housing inventories
Homes under construction 717,992 1,079,702
Land under development and improved lois 1,017,867 1,427,930
Consolidated inventory not owned 76,734 263,853
Total inventories 1,812,593 2,771,485
Property, plant and equipment 75,538 76,887
Net deferred rxxes 158,065 84,199
Other 252,369 269,089
TOTAL ASSETS 2,542,179 3,416,697
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 114,050 186,808
Accrued and other liabilities 395,404 586,797
Debt 839,080 950,117
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,348,534 1,723,782
MINORITY INTEREST 68,919 181,749
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock, $1.00 par value:
Authorized—200,000,000 shares
Issued—42,151,085 shares at December 31, 2007
(42,612,525 shares at December 31, 2006) 42,151 42,612
Retained earnings 1,078,521 1,463,727
Accumulated other comprehensive income 4,054 4,827
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 1,124,726 1,511,166
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY $ 2,542,179 § 3,416,697

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemnts,
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

ACCUMULATED

OTHER TOTAL
COMMON PAID-IN RETAINED COMPREHENSIVE STOCKHOLDERS'
(in thousands, except per share data) STOCK CAPITAL EARNINGS INCOME EQUITY
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2005 § 47348 § - 8 1,009,242 $ 244 $ 1,056,834
Comprehensive income:
Net carnings 447 052 447,052
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Change in net unrealized gain on
cash flow hedging instruments
and available for sale securities,
net of taxes of $1,685 2,720 2,720
Tortal comprehensive income 449,772
Common stock dividends (per share $0.30) (14,138) (14,138)
Repurchase of common stock (2,558) (58,189) (115,467} (176,214)
Employee stock plans and related
income tax benefit 1,578 58,189 59,767
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2005 46,308 - 1,326,689 2,964 1,376,021
Comprehensive income:
Net earnings 359,942 359,942
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Change in net unrealized gain on
cash flow hedging instruments
and available for sale securities,
net of taxes of $1,154 1,863 1,863
Total comprehensive income 361,805
Common stock dividends (per share $0.48) (21,214) (21,214)
Repurchase of common stock (4,700 (43,728) (201,690} (250,118)
Employee stock plans and related
income tax benefit 944 43,728 44,672
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2006 42,612 - 1,463,727 4,827 1,511,166
Comprehensive income:
Net earnings (loss) (333,526} (333,520)
Other comprehensive income, net of tux:
Change in net unrealized gain on
cash flow hedging instruments
and available for sale securities,
net of taxes of $479 (773) (773)
Total comprehensive income (334,299)
Common stock dividends (per share $0.48) {20,286) (20,286)
Repurchase of common stock (1,265) (26,622) (31,394) (59,281)
Employee stock plans and related
income tax benefit 804 26,622 27,426
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2007 $ 42,151 § - § 1,078,521 $ 4,054 $ 1,124,726

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(in thausands) 2007 2006 2005
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net earnings (loss) $ (333,526) § 359,942 § 447,052
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss) to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 54,494 46,731 43,166
Stock-based compensation expense 12,257 25,593 18,862
Inventory and other asset impairments and write-offs 583,363 81,314 3,798
Deferred tax valuation allowance 75,166 - -
Changes in assets and liabiliries:
Decrease (increase) in inventories 273,355 (263, 444) (494,769)
Net change in other assets, payables and other liabilitics (412,984) (217,488} 175,358
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options and vesting of restricted stock - - 30,505
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation (6,714) (14,632) -
Other operating activities, net (17,271) (3.379) (7,708)
Net cash provided by operating activities 228,140 14,637 216,264
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Ner additions to property, plant and equipment (32,147) (53,839) (55,127)
Other investing activities, net 750 2,250 12,561
Net cash used for investing acrivitics (31,397) (51,589 (42,566)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash proceeds of long-term debt - 250,000 500,000
Repayment of long-term debt (100,000) (243,500) (147,000}
(Decrease) increase in short-term borrowings (11,037) 21,647 10,028
Commaon stock dividends (20,365) (21,666) (11,383}
Common stock repurchases (59.281) (250,118) (176,214)
Issuance of common stock under stock-based compensation 15,808 19,659 29,262
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation 6,714 14,032 -
Other financing activities, net {5) (48) (5,396)
Net cash (used for) provided by financing activities (168,166) (209,394) 199,297
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 28,577 (246,346) 372,995
Cash and cash equivalents ar beginning of year 215,037 461,383 88,388
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 243,614 & 215037 § 461,383
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid for interest, net of capitalized interest $ 1,097 ¢ 1,295 8 1,846
Cash paid for income taxes 25,569 258,205 230,291
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLCSURES OF NONCASH ACTIVITIES
(Decrease) increase in consolidated inventory not owned related
to land options $ (104,415) & 9139 § 64,563

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of The Ryland Group, Inc. and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries. Intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Certain prior
year amounts have been reclassificd to conform to the 2007 presentation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from these
estimates.

Cash and Casb Equivalents

At December 31, 2007, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of $243.6 million, of which

§13.5 million was restricted. The Company considers all highly liquid short-term investments and cash
held in escrow 1o be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents totaled $193.6 million and $187.0 million at
December 31, 2007 and 20006, respectively.

Per Share Data

Basic net earnings per common share is computed by dividing net earnings by the weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding. Additionally, diluted net earnings per common share give
effect to dilutive common stock equivalent shares.

Stock-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company complies with the fair value recognition provisions of

SFAS 123(R) by using the modified-prospective transition method. Under that transition method,
compensation cost recognized in 2007 and 2006 includes: (@) compensation cost for all share-based
payments granted prior to January 1, 2006, but not yet vested, based on the grant-date fair value
estimated in accordance with the original provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 123 (*‘SFAS 123"}, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” and (b) compensation cost for all
share-based payments granted subsequent to January 1, 2006, based on the grant-date fair value
estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123(R). Results for prior periods have not been
restated.

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for stock-based employee compensation by adhering
to the provisions and related interpretation of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 ("APB 257),
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” permitted by SFAS 123, as amended. Therefore, except
for costs related to restricted stock units, no stock-based employee compensation cost was recognized
in net earnings, as all options granted under those plans had an exercise price equal to the market
value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant.

Homebuilding Revenues

In accordance with SFAS 66, homebuilding revenues are recognized when home and lot sales are
closed, title and possession are transferred to the buyer and there is no significant continuing
involvement. Sales incentives offset revenues and are expensed when homes are closed.

Housing Inventories

Housing inventories consist principally of homes under construction, land under development and
improved lots. Inventory includes land and development costs; direct construction costs; capiralized
indirect construction costs; capitalized interest; and real estate taxes. Inventories to be held and used
are stated at cost unless a community is determined to be impaired, in which case the impaired
inventories are written down to fair value. Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. Recoverability of assets is measured by comparing the carrying amount of an asset to
future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by that asset or by the sales of
comparable assets. Undiscounted cash flow projections are generated at a community level based on
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estimates of revenues, costs and other factors. The Company’s analysis of these communities generally
assumes flat revenues when compared with current sales orders for particular or comparable
communities. The Company's determination of fair value is primarily based on discounting estimated
cash flows at a rate commensurate with inherent risks that are associated with assets and related
estimated cash flow streams. Inventories to be held and used or disposed of are stated at either the
lower of cost less estimated selling costs or fair value and are reported net of valuation reserves. Write-
downs of impaired inventories to fair value are recorded as adjustments to the cost basis of the
respective inventory. Valuation reserves related to inventories to be disposed of amounted to

$488.1 million at December 31, 2007 and $59.7 million at December 31, 2006. The net carrying values
of the related inventories amounted to $388.3 million and $124.3 million at December 31, 2007 and
2000, respectively.

Costs of inventory include direct costs of land and land development; material acquisition; and home
construction expenses. The costs of acquiring and developing land and constructing certain related
amenities are allocated to the parcels to which these costs relate. Interest and taxes are capitalized
during the land development stage.

The following table is a summary of capitalized interest:

(in thousands) 2007 2006
Capitalized interest at Januvary | $ 98,932 § 75,890
Interest capitalized 62,024 71,750
Interest amortized to cost of sales (41,689) (48,708)
Capiralized interest at December 31 $§ 119,267 $ 98932

The following table summarizes each reporting segment’s total number of lots owned and lots
controlled under option agreements:

DECEMBER 31, 2007 DECEMBER 31, 2006

LOTS LOTS LOTS LOTS
OWNED OPTIONED TOTAL OWNED OPTIONED TOTAL
North 5,999 5,787 11,786 5,880 10,747 16,627
Southeast 9,957 3,192 13,149 11,016 10,192 21,208
Texas 5,784 3,434 9,218 6,760 5,430 12,190
West 4,907 840 5,747 7,595 2,698 10,293
Total 26,647 13,253 39,900 31,251 29,067 60,318

Variable Interest Entities

FIN 46 requires a VIE to be consolidated by a company if that company is subject to a majority of the
risk of loss from the VIE's activities and/or entitled to receive a majority of the VIE's residual returns.
FIN 46 also requires disclosures about VIEs that the Company is not obligated to consolidate but in
which it has a significant, though not primary, variable interest.

The Company enters into joint ventures, from time to time, for the purpose of acquisition and
co-development of land parcels and lots. Its investment in these joint ventures may create a variable
interest in a VIE, depending on the contractual terms of the arrangement. Additionally, in the ordinary
course of business, the Company enters into lot option purchase contracts in order to procure land for
the construction of homes. Under such lot option purchase contracts, the Company funds stated
deposits in consideration for the right to purchase lots at a future point in time, usually at
predetermined prices. In accordance with the requirements of FIN 46, certain of the Company’s lot
option purchase contracts may result in the creation of a variable interest in a VIE,

In compliance with the provisions of FIN 46, the Company consolidated $76.7 million of inventory not
owned at December 31, 2007, $76.0 million of which pertained to land and lot option purchase
contracts representing the fair value of the optioned property and approximately $758,000 of which
pertained to the Company’s homebuilding joint ventures. (See further discussion that follows under
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“Investments in Joint Ventures.”'} While the Company may not have had legal title to the optioned land
or guaranteed the seller’s debt associated with that property, under FIN 46 it had the primary variable
interest and was required to consolidate the particular VIE's assets under option at fair value.
Additionally, to reflect the fair value of the inventory consolidated under FIN 46, the Company
eliminated $8.1 million of its related cash deposits for lot option purchase contracts, which are
included in "Consolidated inventory not owned.” Minority interest totaling $67.9 million was recorded
with respect to the consolidation of these contracts, representing the selling entities’ ownership
interests in these VIEs. At December 31, 2007, the Company had cash deposits and letters of credit
totaling §13.9 million relating to lot option purchase contracts that were consolidated, representing its
current maximum exposure to loss, Creditors of these VIEs, if any, have no recourse against the
Company. At December 31, 2007, the Company had cash deposits and/or letters of credit totaling
$47.2 million that were associated with lot option purchase contracts having an aggregate purchase
price of $456.9 million and relating to VIEs in which it did not have a primary variable interest.

Service Liabilities
Service, warranty and completion costs are estimated and accrued at the time a home closes and
updated as experience requires.

Investments in joint Ventures

The Company enters into joint ventures, from time to time, for the purpose of acquisition and
co-development of land parcels and lots. Currently, the Company participates in seven homebuilding
joint ventures in the Austin, Chicago, Dallas, Denver, Las Vegas and Orlando markets. The Company
participates in a number of joint ventures in which it has less than a controlling interest. The Company
recognizes its share of the respective joint ventures’ earnings from the sale of lots to other
homebuilders. It does not, however, recognize earnings from lots that it purchases from the joint
ventures. Instead, it reduces its cost basis in these lots by its share of the earnings from the lots.

The following table summarizes each reporting segment’s total estimated share of lots owned and
controlled by the Company under its joint ventures:

DECEMBER 31, 2007 DECEMBER 31, 2006

LOTS LOTS LOTS LOTS
OWNED OPTIONED TOTAL OWNED OPTIONED TOTAL
North 681 - 681 856 - 856
Southeast 45 - 45 356 - 356
Texas 189 - 189 203 - 203
West 410 1,209 1,619 441 1,209 1,650
Totxl 1,325 1,209 2,534 1,856 1,209 3,005

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company’s investments in its unconsolidated joint ventures
totaled $30.8 million and $13.5 million, respectively, and were classified in the consolidated balance
sheets under “Other” assets. For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company’s equity in
earnings from unconsolidated joint ventures totaled $342,000, compared to losses of $260,000 and
earnings of $315,000 for the same periods in 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The aggregate assets of the unconsolidated joint ventures in which the Company participated were
$785.9 million and $649.2 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The aggregate debt of
the unconsolidated joint ventures in which the Company participated totaled $508.4 million and
$429.0 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. One of its joint ventures had assets of
$644.2 million and debt of $435.3 million at December 31, 2007. The Company had a 3.3 percent pro
rata interest in this debt, or $14.5 million, and a completion guarantee related to project development.
At December 31, 2006, this joint venture had total assets of $599.0 million and debt of $407.2 million,
of which the Company’s pro rata interest in the debt was $13.5 million. Additionally, the Company has
guaranteed up to 50.0 percent of a $55.0 million revolving credit facility for one of its unconsolidated
joint ventures. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the actual borrowings against the revolving credit
facility for this joint venture were $50.6 million and $53.8 million, respectively, of which the
Company’s pro rata share of the debt was $25.3 million and $26.9 million, respectively. The guarantees
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apply if the joint venture defaults on its loan arrangement and the fair value of the collateral, which
includes land and improvements, is less than the loan balance.

In 2007 and 20006, certain of the joint ventures in which the Company participated were consolidated
in accordance with the provisions of FIN 40, as the Company was determined to have the primary
variable interest in the entities. In association with these consolidated joint ventures, the Company
recorded pretax earnings of approximately $108,000 and $685,000 for 2007 and 2006, respectively.
Total assets of approximately $782,000, including consolidated inventory not owned and minority
interest of $1.1 million, were consolidated at December 31, 2007. Total assets of $78.3 million,
including consolidated inventory not owned; total liabilitics of $60.5 million; and minority interest of
$9.5 million were consolidated at December 31, 2006.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, which included model home furnishings of $69.6 million and

$69.4 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and amortization. Depreciation is provided for, principally, by the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Model home furnishings, which are amortized over the life
of the community as homes are closed, are included in cost of sales.

Purchase Price in Excess of Net Assets Acquired

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 (“*SFAS 142°"), “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets,” requires that goodwill and certain intangible assets no longer be amortized but be reviewed
for impairment at least annually. Intangible assets with finite lives will continue to be amortized over
their estimated useful lives. SFAS 142 also requires that goodwill included in the carrying value of
equity-method investments no longer be amortized.

The Company performs impairment tests of its goodwill annually as of March 31, or as needed. The
Company tests goodwill for impairment by using the two-step process prescribed in SFAS 142. The first
step identifies potential impairment, while the second step measures the amount of impairment.

Goodwill is allocated to the reporting unit from which it originates. The Company recorded a
$15.4 million goodwill impairment charge, which is reported under “Selling, general and
administrative expenses,” during the first quarter of 2007, This impairment was related to the 1986
acquisition of MJ Brock & Sons, a California homebuilder based in the Company’s West region. At
December 31, 2007, the Company’s remaining goodwill totaled $2.8 million, net of $2.3 million of
accumulated amortization, and is related to the Southeast region. Goodwill totaled $18.2 million at
December 31, 2006 and there was no impairment in 2006.

As a result of the Company’s application of the nonamortization provisions of SFAS 142, no
amortization of goodwill was recorded in 2007, 2006 or 2005.

Income Taxes

The Company files a consolidated federal income tax retmurn. Certain items of income and expense are
included in one period for financial reporting purposes and in another for income tax purposes.
Deferred income taxes are provided in recognition of these differences. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are determined based on enacted tax rates and are subsequently adjusted for changes in
these rates. A change in deferred tax assets or liabilities results in a charge or credit to deferred tax
expense. (See Note G, “Income Taxes.”)

Loan Origination Fees, Costs, Morigage Discounts and Loan Sales

Loan origination fees, net of related direct origination costs and loan discount points, are recognized
in current earnings upon the sale of related mortgage loans, In accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 140 (“SFAS 140’7, ‘“Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets
and Extinguishments of Liabilities,” gains or losses on the sale of mortgage loans and related servicing
rights are recognized when the Company transfers title to the purchaser.
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Derivative Instruments

In the normal course of business and pursuant to its risk-management policy, the Company enters, as
an end user, into derivative instruments, including forward-delivery contracts for loans; options on
forward-delivery contracts; futures contracts; and options on futures contracts, to minimize the impact
of movements in market interest rates on IRLCs. Major factors influencing the use of various hedging
contracts include general market conditions, interest rates, types of mortgages originated and the
percentage of IRLCs expected to fund. The Company is exposed to credit-related losses in the event of
nonperformance by counterparties to certain hedging contracts. Credit risk is limited to those instances
where the Company is in a net unrealized gain position. It manages this credit risk by entering into
agreements with counterparties meeting its credit standards and by monitoring position limits, The
Company elected not to use hedge accounting treatment with respect to its economic hedging
activities. Accordingly, all derivative instruments used as economic hedges are carried in the
consolidated balance sheets in ““Other” assets or “Accrued and other liabilities™ at fair value, with
changes in value recorded in current earnings. The Company’s mortgage pipeline includes IRLCs,
which represent commitments that have been extended by the Company to those borrowers who have
applied for lean funding and have mer certain defined credit and underwriting criteria. RMC
periodically purchases forward optional loan sale commitments from a third party. These commitments
enable RMC to scll loans at a fixed rate for a stipulated period of time. The Company determined that
its IRLCs and optional loan sale commitments meet the definition of derivatives under Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 133 (“SFAS 133"), “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities,” as amended.

In 2000, the Company terminated two treasury locks, which were entered into to facilitate the
replacement of higher-rate senior and senior subordinated debt. (See Note D, “Derivative
Instruments.’’)

Advertising Costs
The Company expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Advertising costs totaled $28.7 million,
$34.9 million and $25.3 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Comprebensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of net earnings or losses and the increase or decrease in unrealized
gains or losses on the Company’s available-for-sale securities, as well as the increase or decrease in
unrealized gains or losses associated with the treasury locks, net of applicable taxes. Comprehensive
income totaled losses of $334.3 million, compared to earnings of $361.8 million and $449.8 million for
the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

New Accounting Pronouncements

FIN 48

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (**FASB™) issued FIN 48, which clarifies the
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements. FIN 48
also prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for a tax position taken or expected
to be taken in a tax return. The new pronouncement also provides guidance on derecognition;
classification; interest and penalties; accounting in interim periods; disclosure; and transition. The
Company implemented the provisions of FIN 48 effective January 1, 2007, and determined that no
adjustment upon adoption was required. (See Note G, “Income Taxes.”)

EITF 06-8

In November 20006, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF) ratified EITF Issue No. 06-8

(“EITF 06-8""), “Applicability of the Assessment of a Buyer’s Continuing Investment under SFAS 66 for
Sales of Condominiums.” EITF 06-8 states that the adequacy of the buyer’s investment, under SFAS 66,
should be assessed in determining whether to recognize profit under the percentage-of-completion
method on the sale of individual units in a condominium project. EI'TF 06-8 could require that
additional deposits be collected by developers of condominium projects that wish to recognize profit
under the percentage-of-completion method during the construction period. EITF 06-8 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after March 15, 2007. EITF 06-8 is not expected to have a material effect on the
Company’s financial condition or results of operations.
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SFAS 157

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157

(**‘SFAS 1577), “Fair-Value Measurements.” SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about
fair-value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning
after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company will adopt
SFAS 157 on a prospective basis beginning 2008. The Company is currently reviewing this statement
and has not yet determined the impact, if any, on its consolidated financial statements.

SAB 109

In November 2007, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 109 (*'SAB 109'"), “Written Loan
Commitments Recorded at Fair Value Through Earnings.” SAB 109, which revises and rescinds portions
of SAB No. 105, “Application of Accounting Principles to Loan Commitments,” specifically states that
the expected net future cash flows related to the associated servicing of a loan should be included in
the measurement of all written loan commitments that are accounted for at fair value through
earnings. The provisions of SAB 109 are applicable to written loan commitments issued or modified
beginning on January 1, 2008. The Company has adopted SAB 109 effective January 1, 2008, and it
does not expect the impact of this statement to be material to its consolidated financial statements.

SFAS 158

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158

{“SFAS 158”), “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans—an
Amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R).” SFAS 158 requires that the funded status
of defined benefit pension plans and other postretirement plans be recognized in the balance sheert,
along with a corresponding after-tax adjustment to stockholders’ equity. The recognition of the funded
status provision of SFAS 158 applies prospectively and is cffective December 31, 2007. SFAS 158 also
requires measurement of plan assets and benefit obligations at the entity’s fiscal year-end, effective
December 31, 2008. SFAS 158 did not and is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s
financial condition or results of operations.

SFAS 159

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 159 (“SFAS 159"),
“The FairValue Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, Including an Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 115.” SFAS 159 permits a company to measure certain financial instruments and other
items at fair value. This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, The
Company will adopt SFAS 159 on a prospective basis beginning 2008, and it does not expect the
impact of this statement to be material to its consolidated financial statements.

SFAS 160

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 160

(“‘SFAS 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements, an Amendment of ARB
No. 51.” SFAS 160 establishes accounting and reporting standards pertaining to ownership interests in
subsidiaries held by parties other than the parent; the amount of net income attributable to the parent
and 1o the noncontrolling interest; changes in a parent’s ownership interest; and the valuation of any
retained noncontrolling equity investment when a subsidiary is deconsolidated. SFAS 160 also
establishes disclosure requirements that clearly identify and distingnish between the interests of the
parent and the interests of the noncontrolling owners. SFAS 160 is required to be adopted
prospectively for the first annual reporting period after December 15, 2008. The Company is currently
reviewing this statement and has not yet determined the impact, if any, on its consolidated financial
statements,

Note B: Segment Information
The Company is a leading national homebuilder and mortgage-related financial services firm. As one of
the largest single-family on-site homebuilders in the United States, it builds homes in 28 markets. The

Company consists of six segments: four geographically determined homebuilding regions; financial
services; and corporate. The Company’s homebuilding operations consists of four regional reporting
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segments, referred to as North, Southeast, Texas and West. The homebuilding segments specialize in
the sale and construction of single-family attached and detached housing. Its financial services segment
includes RMC, RHIC, LPS and CNRRG. The Company’s financial services segment provides loan
origination and offers mortgage, title, escrow and insurance services. Corporate is a nonoperating
business segment with the sole purpose of supporting operations. Certain corporate expenses arc
allocated to the homebuilding and financial services segments, while certain assets relating to
employee benefit plans have been attributed to other segments in order to best reflect the Company’s
financial position and results of operations.

The Company evaluates performance and allocates resources based on a number of factors, including
segment pretax carnings. The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in
Note A, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.”

Selected Segment Information

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
REVENUES
Homebuilding
North $ 857,448 § 1196335 § 1,388,208
Southeast 929,168 1,522,123 1,258,373
Texas 571,689 695,356 619,332
West 601,889 1,240,106 1,459,838
Financial services 72,400 103,296 91,815
Total $ 3,032594 & 4,757,216 § 4,817,566

EARNINGS (LOSS) BEFORE TAXES
Homebuilding

North $ (37,077) § 170,636 $§ 241,183
Southeast (59,419) 253,120 179,242
Texas 27,098 59,854 44,308
West (355,583) 89,533 279,477
Financial services 40,927 67,695 59,373
Corporate and unallocated (36,044) (73,730) (82,532)
Total $ (420,098) 5 567,108 § 721,051

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
Homebuilding

North $ 9080 § 9620 § 10,800
Southeast 8,252 10,913 9,083
Texas 6,856 7,366 6,049
West 27,552 15,981 14,598
Financial services 1,054 1,225 1,119
Corporate and unallocated 1,700 1,626 1,517
Total $ 54,494 $ 46,731 § 43,166

DECEMBER 31,
{in thousands) 2007 2006

IDENTIFIABLE ASSETS
Homebuilding

North $ 724,105 § 941,791
Southeast 693,532 931,275
Texas 421,359 446,743
West 379,640 864,040
Financial scrvices 93,200 81,540
Corporate and unallocated 230,343 151,308
Total $ 2,542,179 $§ 3,416,697
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Note C: Earnings Per Share Reconciliation

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(in thousands, except share data) 2007 20006 2005
NUMERATOR
Net earnings (loss) § (333,526) § 359,942 8 447,052
DENOMINATOR
Basic earnings per share—weighted-average shares 42,136,315 44,228,502 46,966,317
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options - 1,294,237 2,140,200
Equity incentive plan - 421,709 384,370
Dilutive potential of common shares - 1,715,946 2,524,570
Dilutive earnings per share—adjusted weighted-average shares and
assumed conversions 42,136,315 45,944,448 49,490,887
NET EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMOCN SHARE
Basic $ (7.92) § 814 $ 9.52
Diluted (7.92) 7.83 9.03

For the year ended December 31, 2007, the effect of outstanding restricted stock units and stock
options was not included in the diluted earnings per share calculation as their effect would have been
antidilutive due to the Company’s net loss for the year, Options to purchase 1.1 million shares and
203,000 shares of common stock at various prices were outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, but were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share for those annual
periods because their effect would have been antidilutive since their exercise prices were greater than
the average market price of the common shares.

Note D: Derivative Instruments

The Company, which uses derivative financial instruments in its normal course of operations, has no
derivative financial instruments that are held for trading purposes.

The contract or notional amounts of these financial instruments at December 31 were as follows:

(in thousands) 2007 2006
Mortgage interest rate lock commitments $ 66,126 § 124927
Hedging contracts:

Forward-delivery contracts 47,500 41,000

IRLCs represent loan commitments with customers at market rates generally up to 180 days before
settlement. TRLCs expose the Company to market risk as a result of increases in mortgage interest

rates. At December 31, 2007, IRLCs had interest rates generally ranging from five to seven percent,
compared to five to ten percent at December 31, 2006.

Hedging contracts are regularly entered into by the Company for the purpose of mitigating its
exposure to movements in interest rates on IRLCs. The selection of these hedging contracts is based
upon the Company’s secondary marketing strategy, which establishes a risk-tolerance level. Major
factors influencing the use of various hedging contracts include general market conditions, interest
rates, types of mortgages originated and the percentage of IRLCs expected to fund. The market risk
assumed while holding the hedging contracts generally mitigates the market risk associated with IRLCs.
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The Company is exposed to credit-related losses in the event of nonperformance by counterparties to
certain hedging contracts. Credit risk is limited to those instances where the Company is in a net
unrealized gain position. The Company manages this credit risk by entering into agreements with
counterparties meeting its credit standards and by monitoring position limits.

During the second quarter of 2006, the Company terminated its $100.0 million treasury lock at

4.2 percent and its $150.0 million treasury lock at 4.1 percent. These hedges were entered into to
facilitate the replacement of higher-rate senior and senior subordinated debt in 2006 and were
evaluated and deemed to be highly effective at the inception of the contracts. The Company accounted
for the treasury locks as cash flow hedges, in accordance with SFAS 133. As a result of changes in the
timing of the Company’s debt issuance and in the term of debt issued in the second quarter of 2006, a
gain of $9.2 million was recognized during that period, reflecting the ineffective portion of those cash
flow hedges. For the year ended 2006, the Company recognized pretax gains of $9.9 million from the
termination of these treasury locks, The $8.4 million effective portion of the sertlement value of the
$150.0 million treasury lock was recorded, net of income tax effect, in “Accumulated other
comprehensive income” and will be amortized over the seven-year life of the related debt instrument.
The Company recorded amortization of $1.2 million and approximately $§704,000 related to the
effective portion of this termination for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 20006, respectively.

Note E: Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments are held for purposes other than trading. The fair values of these
financial instruments are based on guoted market prices, where available, or are estimated by using
either present value or other valuation techniques. Estimated fair values are significantly affected by the
assumptions used, including discount rates and estimates of cash flows. In that regard, derived fair
value estimates cannot always be substantiated by comparison to independent markets.

The table below sets forth the carrying values and fair values of the Company's financial instruments at
December 31, 2007 and 2006. It excludes nonfinancial instruments, and accordingly, the aggregate fair
value amounts presented do not represent the underlying value to the Company.

2007 2006
CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR
(in thousands) VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE
OTHER ASSETS
Mortgage loans held-for-sale $ 12,557 $ 12813 §$ 11,767 $ 11,959
DEBT
Sentor notes $ 800,000 §$ 751,885 $ 900,000 $ 891,695
OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Mortgage interest rate lock commitments $ 298 § 298 $ 598 % 598
Forward-delivery contracts (181) (181) 152 152

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents and secured notes payable are reported in the
balance sheet and approximate their fair values. The fair values of the senior notes, mortgage loans
held-for-sale, forward-delivery contracts and IRLCs are based on either quoted market prices or market
prices for similar financial instruments. The fair values of the IRLCs do not include amounts associated

with the future servicing of loans.
Note F: Debt

Debt consists of the following at December 31:

(in thousands) 2007 2006
Senior notes $ 800,000 § 900,000
Secured notes payable 39,080 50,117
Total $ 839,080 § 950,117
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At December 31, 2007, maturities of debt are scheduled as follows:

(in thousands)

2008 $ 75,512
2009 7,842
2010 3,920
2011 1,408
After 2011 750,398
Total debt $ 839,080

At December 31, 2007, the Company had outstanding (&) $50.0 million of 5.4 percent senior notes
due June 2008, (b) $250.0 million of 5.4 percent senior notes due May 2012; (¢} $250.0 million of
6.9 percent senior notes due June 2013; and (d) $250.0 million of 5.4 percent senior notes due
January 2015. Each of the senior notes pays interest semiannually and may be redeemed at a stated
redemption price, at the option of the Company, in whole or in part, at any time.

During 2007, the Company redeemed $75.0 million and $25.0 million of its 5.4 percent senior notes
due June 2008 in August and December 2007, respectively. The redemption prices were 100.2 percent
and 100.8 percent of the principal amount of the notes outstanding, respectively, plus accrued interest
as of the redemption dates. The Company recognized an aggregate loss of approximately $490,000
related to the early retirement of these notes in 2007. (See “Financial Condition and Liquidity” within
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”)

In 2006, the Company redeemed $150.0 million of its 9.1 percent senior subordinated notes due June
2011, of which it owned $6.5 million. The Company recorded an expense of $7.7 million related o
the early retirement of debt for the year ended December 31, 2006. Additionally, the Company’s

8.0 percent senior notes, which totaled $100.0 million, matured in August 2006. (See *Financial
Condition and Liquidity” within “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations.”)

Also in 2006, the Company terminated its treasury locks, which were entered into to facilitate the
replacement of higher-rate senior and senior subordinated debt in 2006. The Company recognized
gains of $9.9 million for the year ended December 31, 20006, related to the termination of these locks.
(See Note D, “Derivative Instruments.’)

The senior notes and indenture agreements are subject to certain covenants that include, among other
things, restrictions on additional secured debt and the sale of assets. The Company was in compliance
with these covenants at December 31, 2007.

During 2007, the Company amended its unsecured revolving credit facility from $1.1 billion to

$750.0 million. The credit agreement, which matures in January 2011, also provides access to an
additional $750.0 million of financing through an accordion feature, under which the aggregate
commitment may be increased up to $1.5 billion, subject to the availability of additional lending
commitments. The revolving credit facility includes a $75.0 million swing-line facility and a

$600.0 million sublimit for the issuance of standby leuers of credit. Amounts borrowed under the
credit agreement are guaranteed on a joint and several basis by subswantially all of the Company’s

100 percent-owned homebuilding subsidiaries. Such guarantees are full and unconditional. Interest
rates on outstanding borrowings are determined either by reference to LIBOR, with margins
determined based on changes in the Company's leverage ratio and credit ratings, or by reference to an
alternate base rate. The credit agreement is used for general corporate purposes and contains various
customary affirmative, negative and financial covenants. The Company was in compliance with these
covenants at December 31, 2007. There were no borrowings outstanding under the agreement at
December 31, 2007 or 20006. Letters of credit aggregating $157.8 million and $192.9 million were
outstanding under the facility at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Under the facility, the
unused borrowing capacity totaled $592.2 million and $940.6 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. (See “Financial Condition and Liquidity”” within “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”)




In February 2008, the Company entered into a Second Amendment to its $750.0 million credit facility.
The Second Amendment reduces the base amount for the minimum consolidated tangible net worth
covenant the Company is required to maintain under its credit facility to $850.0 million; increases the
borrowing base by adding unrestricted cash up to $300.0 million; and increases the definition of
material indebtedness to $20.0 million.

At December 31, 2007, the Company’s obligations to pay principal, premium, if any, and interest under
its $750.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility; 5.4 percent senior notes due June 2008;

5.4 percent senior notes due May 2012; 6.9 percent senior notes due June 2013; and 5.4 percent
senior notes due January 2015 are guaranteed on a joint and several basis by substantially all of its
wholly-owned homebuilding subsidiarics. Such guarantees are full and unconditional. (See Note K,
“Supplemental Guarantor Information.”)

To finance its land purchases, the Company may also use seller-financed nonrecourse secured notes
payable. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, outstanding seller-financed nonrecourse notes payable were
$39.1 million and $50.1 million, respectively.

Note G: Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the estimated tax effects attributable to deductible temporary
differences and tax carryforwards related to tax credits and operating losses and are realized when
existing temporary differences are carried back to profitable year(s) and/or carried forward to future
years having taxable income. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more
likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. The Company
generated significant deferred tax assets in 2007 largely due to the inventory impairments it incurred
during the year. The Company evaluates its deferred tax assets on a quarterly basis to determine
whether a valuation allowance is required. In accordance with SFAS 109, the Company assesses
whether a valuation allowance should be established based on its determination of whether it is more
likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. In light of the
continued downturn in the housing market and the uncertainty as to its duration, which limits the
Company’s ability to predict taxable income beyond the near term, the Company determined that an
allowance against its deferred tax asset was required. Therefore, during the fourth quarter of 2007, the
Company recorded a valuation allowance of $75.2 million against its deferred tax assets, which was
reflected as a noncash charge to income tax expense. The valuation allowance is comprised of net state
taxes of 821.7 million, for which carrybacks are generally statutorily not allowed, and federal taxes of
$53.5 million that may not be realized through a carryback to a profitable year or be offset against
taxable income in the near term. For federal purposes, net operating losses can be carried forward

20 years and, for state purposes, can generally be carried forward 10 to 15 years depending on the
taxing jurisdiction. To the extent that the Company generates sufficient taxable income in the future to
utilize the tax benefits of related deferred tax assets, the Company expects to experience a reduction in
its effective tax rate as the valuation allowance is reversed.

As a result of the noncash tax charge, the Company's effective income tax benefit rate was 20.6 percent
for the year ended December 31, 2007, as compared to an effective provision rate of 36.5 percent and
38.0 percent for the years ended 2006 and 2005, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2006
and 2005, no valuation allowance for the deferred tax asset was required. The decrease in effective
income tax rate in 2006, compared to 2005, was primarily due to the Company’s reversal of prior year
tax provisions no longer required due to the expiration of various tax statutes of limitations and the
impact of lower pretax earnings for the year. The Company had a net current tax receivabie of

$9.1 million at December 31, 2007, and a net current tax liability of §36.4 million ai December 31,
2006. These amounts are reported in the consolidated balance sheets in “Accrued and other
liabilities.”

49




The following table reconciles the statutory federal income tax rate to the Company’s effective income
tax rate for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

2007 2006 2005
Income taxes at federal statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes, net of federal tax 3.2 3.2 3.2
Domestic production activity deduction - (0.9} {0.8)
Resolution of tax contingency 2.0 (1.0) -
Goodwill (1.4) - -
Deferred tax asset allowance (17.8) - -
Qther (0.4) 0.2 0.6
Effective tax rate 20.6% 36.5% 38.0%

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax
purposes. Significant componenis of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31
were as follows:

(in thousands) 2007 2006
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
Warranty, legal and other accruals $ 23801 $§ 29029
Employee benefits 48,574 51,427
Noncash charge for impairment of long-lived assets 187,385 23,105
State net operating loss carryforwards 1,755 -
Other 4,435 8,411
Total 265,950 111,972
valuation allowance (75,166) -
Total deferred tax assets 190,784 111,972
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
Deferred recognition of income and gains (2,224) (4,037)
Capitalized expenses (27,605) (19,183)
QOther (2,890) (4,553)
Total deferred tax liabilities 32,719 (27,773)
NET DEFERRED TAX ASSET $ 158,065 § 84,199

The Company’s expense for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, is
summarized as follows:

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
CURRENT EXPENSE (BENEFIT)
Federal $ (14,323) $ 206,635 § 243,220
State 1,617 32,799 36,852
Total current expense (benefic} (12,706) 239,434 280,072
DEFERRED EXPENSE (BENEFIT)
Federal (84,872) (27.848) (5.274)
State 11,006 (4,420 (799)
Total deferred expense (benefir) (73,866) {32,268) (6,073)
Total expense (benefit) $ (86,572) § 207,166 $§ 273,999

The Company implemented the provisions of FIN 48 effective January 1, 2007. As of the date of
adoption, the Company’s net liability for unrecognized tax benefits was $11.4 million, which
represented $15.6 million of gross unrecognized tax benefits less $4.2 million of indirect tax benefits.
The Company accounts for interest and penalties on unrecognized tax benefits through its provision
for income taxes. As of December 31, 2007, the Company’s liability for gross unrecognized tax benefits
was $11.8 million, of which $8.3 million, if recognized, will affect the Company’s effective tax rate. The
Company had $4.4 million and $5.8 million in accrued interest and penalties at January 1 and
December 31, 2007, respectively. The Company estimates that, within 12 months, $2.4 million of gross
state unrecognized tax benefits will reverse due to the anticipated expiration of time to assess tax,
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The Company’s summary of accounting for tax uncertainties at December 31, 2007, and for the period
then ended follows:

(in thousands) 2007
Balance at January 1 $ 15,555
Additions related 1o current year positions 1,947
Additions related to prior year positions 1,898
Reductions due to settdlements (300)
Reductions due to expiration of the statute of limitations (7.256)
Balance at December 31 $ 11,844

As of December 31, 2007, the 2004 through 2007 tax years remain open for examination.
Note H: Employee Incentive and Stock Plans

Retirement Savings Opportunity Plan (*'RSOP’)

All full-time employees are eligible to participate in the RSOFR Part-time employees are eligible to
participate in the RSOP following the completion of 1,000 hours of service within the first 12 months
of employment or within any plan year after the date of hire. Pursuant to Section 401(k) of the
Internal Revenue Code, the plan permits deferral of a portion of a participant’s income into a varicty
of investment options. Total compensation expense related to the Company’s matching contributions
for this plan amounted to $10.0 million, $12.0 million and $11.0 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan ("ESPP”)

All full-time employees of the Company, with the exception of its executive officers, are eligible to
participate in the ESPP. Eligible employees authorize payroll deductions to be made for the purchase of
shares. The Company matches a portion of the employee’s contribution by donating an additional

20.0 percent of the employee’s payroll deduction. Stock is purchased by a plan administrator on a
regular monthly basis. All brokerage and transaction fees for purchasing the stock are paid for by the
Company. The Company’s expense related to its matching contribution for this plan was approximately
$354,000, $495,000 and $514,000 in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plans

The Company has supplemental nonqualified retirement plans, which generally vest over five-year
periods beginning in 2003, pursuant to which the Company will pay supplemental pension benefits to
key employees upon retirement. In connection with these plans, the Company has purchased
cost-recovery life insurance on the lives of certain employees. Insurance contracts associated with the
plans are held by trusts established as part of the plans to implement and carry out their provisions
and finance their related benefits. The trusts are owners and beneficiaries of such contracts. The
amount of coverage is designed to provide sufficient revenue to cover all costs of the plans if
assumptions made as to employment term, mortality experience, policy earnings and other factors are
realized. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the cash surrender value of these contracts was

$28.5 million and $24.8 million, respectively, and is included in “Other” assets. The net periodic
benefit cost of these plans for the year ended December 31, 2007, was $5.7 million and included
service costs of $4.5 million, interest costs of $§1.4 million and investment earnings of $217,000. The
net periodic benefit cost of these plans for the year ended December 31, 2006, was $3.3 million and
included service costs of $4.3 million, interest costs of $1.1 million and investment earnings of

$2.1 million. The $24.0 million and $18.0 million projected benefit obligations at December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively, were equal to the net liability recognized in the balance sheet at those dates.
The weighted-average discount rate used for the plans was 7.7 percent for both 2007 and 2006.
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Note I: Stock-Based Compensation

The Ryland Group, Inc. 2007 Equity Incentive Plan (the “'Plan”) permits the granting of stock options,
restricted stock awards, stock units or any combination of the foregoing to employees. Stock options
granted in accordance with the Plan generally have a maximum term of five years and vest in equal
annual installments over three years. Outstanding stock options granted under predecessor plans have
a maximum term of five and ten years. Qutstanding restricted stock units granted under predecessor
plans generally vest in three equal annual installments. At December 31, 2007 and 20006, stock options
or other awards or units available for grant rotaled 1,587,725 and 240,645, respectively.

The Ryland Group, Inc. 2006 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan (the “Director Plan™) provides for a
stock award of 3,000 shares to each non-employee director on May 1 of each year. New non-employee
directors will receive a pro-rata stock award 30 days after their date of appointment or election based
on the remaining portion of the plan year in which they are appointed or elected. Stock awards are
fully vested and non-forfeitable on their applicable award dates. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, there
were 93,000 and 120,000 stock awards available for future grant in accordance with the Director Plan,
respectively. Previously, The Ryland Group, Inc. 2004 Non-Employee Director Equity Plan and its
predecessor plans provided for automatic grants of non-statutory stock options to directors. These
stock options are fully vested and have a maximum term of ten years.

All outstanding stock options, stock awards and restricted stock awards have been granted in
accordance with the terms of the applicable Plan, Director Plan and their respective predecessor plans,
all of which were approved by the Company’s stockholders. Certain option and share awards provide
for accelerated vesting if there is a change in control {(as defined in the plans).

SFAS 123(R) requires cash flows attributable to tax benefits resulting from tax deductions in excess of
compensation cost recognized for those stock options (“‘excess tax benefits”) to be classified as
financing cash flows. Excess tax benefits of $6.7 million and §14.6 million for the 12 months ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, have been classified as financing cash inflows in the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

The Company recorded $12.3 million and $25.6 million of stock-based compensation expense for the
years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Stock-based compensation expenses have been
allocated 1o the Company’s reportable segments and are reported in “Corporate,” “Financial services”
and “Selling, general and administrative” expenses.

The following table illustrates the effect on net earnings and earnings per share had the Company
applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123 to stock options granted under the
Company's equity-based compensation plans in the year ended December 31, 2005. For purpases of
this pro forma disclosure, the grant-date fair value of the Company’s stock options was estimated by
using a Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing formula and amortized to expense over the stock options’
vesting periods.

(in thousands, excepi per share dala) 2005
Net earnings, as reported $ 447,052
Add: Srock-hased employee compensation expense included in

reported net earnings, net of related tax effects’ 11,695

Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense
determined under fair value method for all awards,

net of related rax effects (17,652)
Pro forma net earnings $ 441,095
Earnings per share:

Basic—as reported $ 9.52

Basic—pro forma 9.39

Diluted—as reported 9.03

Diluted—pro forma 8.91

! Amount represenis the Company's net stock-based compensation expense associated with restricted stock units.
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The Company has determined the grant-date fair value of stock options using the Black-Scholes-Merton
option-pricing formula. Expected volatility is based upon the historical volatility of the Company's
common stock. The expected dividend yield is based on an annual dividend rate of $0.48 per common
share. The risk-free interest rate for periods within the contractual life of the stock option award is
based upon the zero-coupon U.S. Treasury bond on the date the stock option is granted, with a
maturity equal to the expected option life of the stock option granted. The expected option life is
derived from historical experience under the Company's share-based payment plans and represents the
period of time that stock option awards granted are expected to be outstanding. The following table
presents the weighted-average inputs used and fair values determined for stock options granted during
the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

2007 2006 2005
Expected volatility 35.8% 38.0% 38.4%
Expected dividend yield 1.1% 0.8% 0.5%
Expected term (in years) 3.4 32 3.0
Risk-free rate 4.6% 5.0% 4.0%
Weighted-average grant-date fair value $ 1270 § 1917 § 1899

A summary of stock option activity in accordance with the Company’s plans as of December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005, and changes for the years then ended follows:

WEIGHTED-
AVERAGE
WEIGHTED- REMAINING AGGREGATE
AVERAGE CONTRACTUAL INTRINSIC
EXERCISE LIFE VALUE
SHARES PRICE (in years) (in thousands)
Options outstanding at January 1, 2005 5,535,398 § 19.15 6.38
Granted 569,750 65.36
Exercised (1,408,973) 14.84
Forfeited (41,605) 42.52
Options outstanding at December 31, 2005 4,654,570 $§ 25.91 571 & 215,199
Available for future grant 1,612,463
Total shares reserved 6,267,033
Options exercisable at December 31, 2005 3,360,535 $§ 17.62 513 § 183,191
Options outstanding at January 1, 2006 4,654,570 § 2591 5.71
Granted 374,500 62.31
Exercised (798,218) 12.34
Forfeited (66,71) 56.83
Options outstanding at December 31, 2006 4,164,142 § 31.29 502 $ 106,250
Available for future grant 360,645
Total shares reserved 4,524,787
Options exercisable at December 31, 2006 3,365,335 $ 25.54 504 § 102,729
Options ocutstanding at January 1, 2007 4,164,142 $ 31.29 5.02
Granted 658,500 43.60
Exercised (638,232) 12.62
Forfeited (150,244) 53.07
Options outstanding at December 31, 2007 4,034,166 § 35.44 431 $ 23,744
Available for future grant 1,680,725
Total shares reserved 5,714,891
Options exercisable at December 31, 2007 3,103,087 $§ 31.22 4.42 § 23,744

The Company recorded stock-based compensation expense related to stock options of $4.9 million and
$10.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. On a pro forma basis,
stock-based compensation expense related to stock options for the year ended December 31, 2005 was
$9.7 million.
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A summary of stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2007 follows:

OFTIONS OUTSTANDING OPTIONS EXERCISABLE

WEIGHTED- WEIGHTED- WEIGHTED-

RANGE OF AVERAGE ~ AVERAGE AVERAGE
EXERCISE NUMBER REMAINING ~ EXERCISE NUMBEKR  EXERCISE
PRICES OUTSTANDING LIFE (Years) PRICE EXERCISABLE PRICE
$ 411t0$ 6.38 727,802 1.6 § 599 727,802 § 599
$ 10.19to$ 24.44 914,161 4.5 18.74 914,161 18.74
$ 3561tw$ 57.54 1,600,953 5.5 43.92 965,370 44.16
$ 6140t0$ 83.13 791,250 4.2 64.66 495,754 66.10

The total intrinsic values of stock options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005, were $17.8 million, $38.5 million, and $77.7 million, respectively. The intrinsic value of a
stock option is the amount by which the market value of the underlying stock exceeds the exercise
price of the option.

A summary of the Company’s non-vested options as of and for the years ended December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005, follows:

2007 2006 2005
WEIGHTED- WEIGHTED- WEIGHTED-
AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE
GRANT-DATE GRANT.-DATE GRANT-DATE
SHARES FAIR VALUE SHARES FAIR YALUE SHARES FAIR VALUE
Nonvested options

outstanding at January 1 798,807 $ 16.40 1,294,035 $ 13.40 1,858,407 5 919
Granted 658,500 12.70 374,500 19.17 569,750 18.99
Vested (375,984) 14.57 (803,018) 12.82 (1,092,517} 921
Forfeited (150,244) 15.54 (66,710) 16.82 (41,605) 12.05

Nonvested options outstanding at
December 31 931,079 § 14.67 798,807 $ 1640 1,294,035 $ 1340

As of December 31, 2007, there was $8.5 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to
nonvested stock option awards granted under the Company’s plans. That cost is expected to be
recognized over the next 2.5 years.

The Company has made several restricted stock awards to senior executives under the Plan and its
predecessor plans. Compensation expense recognized for such awards was $6.1 million, $13.3 million
and $18.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The following is a summary of activity relating to restricted stock awards:

2007 2006 2005

Restricted shares at January 1 435,664 441,000 356,800
Shares awarded 25,000 133,000 253,000
Shares vested (182,664) (138,336) (168,800)
Shares forfeited (36,000} - -
Restricted shares a1 December 31 242,000 435,604 441,000

At December 31, 2007, the outstanding restricted shares will vest as follows: 2008—121,331; 2009—
80,669; and 2010—40,000.

The Company has granted stock awards to its non-employee directors pursuant to the terms of the
Director Plan. The Company recorded stock-based compensation expense related to such grants in the
amount of $1.2 million and $1.9 million during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.
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Note J: Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments

In the normal course of business, the Company acquires rights under option agreements to purchase
land or lots for use in furure homebuilding operations. At December 31, 2007, it had related cash
deposits and letters of credit outstanding that totaled $74.7 million for land options pertaining to land
purchase contracts with an aggregate purchase price of $721.4 million. At December 31, 2007, the
Company had commitments with respect to option contracts having specific performance provisions of
approximately $24.2 million, compared o $34.2 million at December 31, 2006.

Rent expense primarily relates to office facilities, model homes, furniture and equipment.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

{in thousands) 2007 2000 2005
Tota! rent expense $ 26,760 § 23232 § 17,050
Less income from subleases (246) (950) (312)
Net rent expense $ 26514 § 22282 § 16,738

At December 31, 2007, future minimum rental commitments under noncancelable leases with
remaining terms in excess of one yvear are as follows:

(in thousands)

2008 $ 12,056
2009 10,827
2010 8,417
2011 6,334
2012 4,018
Thereafter 5,417
Less sublease income (1,362)
Total lease commitments $ 45,707

RMC purchases optional commitments from third parties for the purpose of mitigating its exposure to
movements in interest rates on customer-financing commitments. RMC pays the investor a fixed
one-time premium for these commitments. In return, RMC receives the option of selling a loan at a
fixed rate in the commitment for a stipulated period of time. Optional commitments with investors are
non-transferable and RMC's risk is limited to the initial premium paid. Fair values of optional
commitments are estimated based on the premium paid and amortized over the duration of the
commitment. The outstanding commitments at December 31, 2007 and 2006, were $32.5 million and
$£183.6 million, with fair values of approximately $15,000 and $12,000, respectively.

Contingencies

As an on-site housing producer, the Company is often required by some municipalities to obtain
development or performance bonds and letters of credit in support of its contractual obligations. At
December 31, 2007, total development bonds were §313.2 million, while total related deposits and
letters of credit were $50.0 million. In the event that any such bonds or letters of credit are called, the
Company would be required to reimburse the issuer; however, it does not expect that any currently
outstanding bonds or letters of credit will be called.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, one of the joint ventures in which the Company participates had debt
of $435.3 million and $407.2 million, respectively. In this joint venture, the Company and its partners
provided guarantees of debt on a pro rata basis. The Company had a 3.3 percent pro rata interest on
the debt, or $14.5 million and $13.5 million, at December 31, 2007 and 20006, respectively, and a
completion guarantee related to project development that would require the Company to pay a pro
rata amount of additional development costs. The guarantees apply if the joint venture defaults on its
loan arrangement and the fair value of the collateral, which includes land and improvements, is less
than the loan balance. In another of its joint ventures, the Company has guaranteed up to

50.0 percent of a $55.0 million revolving credit facility. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the actual
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borrowings against the revolving credit facility for this joint venture were $50.6 million and
$53.8 million, respectively, of which the Company’s pro rata share of debt was $25.3 million and
$26.9 million, respectively.

IRLCs represent [oan commitments with customers at market rates generally up to 180 days before
settlement. At December 31, 2007, the Company had outstanding IRLCs totaling $66.1 million,
Hedging contracts are utilized to mitigate the risk associated with interest rate fluctuations on IRLCs,
(See Note D, “Derivative Instruments.’’)

The Company provides product warranties covering workmanship and materials for one year, certain
mechanical systems for two years and structural systems for ten years. The Company estimates and
records warranty liabilities based upon historical experience and known risks at the time a home
closes, and in the case of unexpected claims, upon identification and quantification of the obligations.
Actual future warranty costs could differ from current estimates,

Changes in the Company’s product liability reserve during the period are as follows:

{in thousands) 2007 2006
Balance at January 1 $ 44,102 § 41,647
Warranties issued 11,820 29,828
Serlements made (19,365) (27,373)
Balance at December 31 $ 36,557 § 44,102

The Company requires substantially all of its subcontractors to have general liability insurance, which
includes construction defect coverage, and workmans compensation insurance. These insurance
policies protect the Company against a portion of its risk of loss from claims, subject to certain
selfinsured retentions, deductibles and other coverage limits. However, with fewer insurers
participating, general liability insurance for the homebuilding industry has become more difficult to
obtain over the past several years. As a result, RHIC provides insurance services to the homebuilding
segments’ subcontractors in certain markets, At December 31, 2007, RHIC had $34.1 million in cash
and cash equivalents, of which $13.5 million was restricted, and $28.3 million in subcontractor
product liability reserves, which are included under “Cash and cash equivalents” and “Accrued and
other liabilities,” respectively. At December 31, 2006, RHIC had $28.9 million in cash and cash
equivalents and $22.5 million in subcontractor product liability reserves, which are included in the
consolidated balance sheets.

Changes in the Company’s insurance reserves during the period are as follows:

(in thousands) 2007 2006
Balance at January 1 $ 22,521 § 16,907
Insurance expense provisions 5,772 5,614
Balance at December 31 $ 28,293 § 22521

The Company is party to various legal proceedings generally incidental to its businesses. Litigation
reserves have been established based on discussions with counsel and the Company’s analysis of
historical claims. The Company has, and requires the majority of its subcontractors to have, general
liability insurance to protect it against a portion of its risk of loss and cover it against construction-
related claims, The Company establishes reserves to cover its selfiinsured retentions and deductible
amounts under those policies. Due to the high degree of judgment required in determining these
estimated reserve amounts and the inherent variability in predicting future settlements and judicial
decisions, actual future litigation costs could differ from the Company’s current estimates. At
December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company had legal reserves of $15.3 million and $21.0 million,
respectively, (See “Item 3. Legal Proceedings.')
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Note K: Supplemental Guarantor Information

The Company’s obligations to pay principal, premium, if any, and interest under its $750.0 million
unsecured revolving credit facility; the RMC Agreement; 5.4 percent senior notes due June 2008;

5.4 percent senior notes due May 2012; 6.9 percent senior notes due June 2013; and 5.4 percent
senior notes due January 2015 are guaranieed on a joint and several basis by substantially all of its
100 percent-owned homebuilding subsidiaries (the ‘“‘Guarantor Subsidiaries’”). Such guarantees are full
and unconditional.

In lieu of providing separate financial statements for the Guarantor Subsidiaries, the accompanying
condensed consolidating financial statements have been included. Management does not believe that
separate financial statements for the Guarantor Subsidiaries are material to investors and are, therefore,
not presented.

The following information presents the consolidating statements of earnings, financial position and
cash flows for (@) the parent company and issuer, The Ryland Group, Inc. (“TRG, Inc.”); (&) the
Guarantor Subsidiaries; {¢) the non-Guarantor Subsidiaries; and (4) the consolidation eliminations
used to arrive at the consolidated information for The Ryland Group, Inc. and subsidiaries.

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

NON-
GUARANTOR GUARANTOR CONSOLIDATING CONSOLIDATED
(in thousands) TRG, INC. SUBSIDIARIES SUBSIDIARIES ELIMINATIONS TOTAL
REVENUES $ 1,863,482 §$ 1,147,957 §$ 74,001 $ (52,846) $ 3,032,594
EXPENSES
Corporate, general .
and administrative 2,034,125 1,437,849 33,074 (52,846) 3,452,202
Expenses related to early
retirement of debt 490 - - - 490
TOTAL EXPENSES 2,034,615 1,437,849 33,074 {52,846) 3,452,692
Earnings (loss) before taxes (171,133) (289,892) 40,927 - (420,098)
Tax expense (benefir) (35,266) (59,740) 8,434 - (86,572)
Equity in net earnings (loss) of subsidiaries (197,659) - - 197,659 -
NET EARNINGS (LOSS) $  (333,526) $ (230,152) $ 32,493 $ 197,659 $§ (333,526)
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF EARNINGS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006
NON-
GUARANTOR GUARANTOR CONSOLIDATING CONSOLIDATED
{in thousands) TRG, INC. SUBSIDIARIES SUBSIDIARIES ELIMINATIONS TOTAL
REVENUES $ 2859744 $ 1,508,416 $ 117,342 $ (128,286) § 4,757,210
EXPENSES
Corporate, general
and administrative 2,450,382 1,810,670 49,647 (128,286) 4,182 413
Expenses related to early
retirement of debt 7,695 - - - 7,695
TOTAL EXPENSES 2,458,077 1,810,670 49,647 (128,286) 4,190,108
Earnings before taxes 401,667 97,746 67,695 - 367,108
Tax expense 145,125 36,655 25,386 - 207,160
Equity in net earnings of subsidiaries 103,400 - - (103,400) -
NET EARNINGS 3 359942 % 61,091 § 42,309 $§ (103,400) $ 359,942
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CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

NON-
GUARANTOR CONSOQOLIDATING CONSOLIDATED
(in thousands) TRG, INC. SURSIDIARIES ELIMINATIONS
REVENUES $ 2,777,565 $§ 91815 3 (116,302)
EXPENSES
Corporate, general
and administrative 2,374,722 32,442 (116,302)
Expenses related to early
reticement of debt 8,277 - -
TOTAL EXPENSES 2,382,999 32,442 {116,302)
Earnings before taxes 394,566 59,373 -
‘lax expense 150,106 22,391 -
Equity in net earnings of subsidiaries 202,592 - (202,592)
NET EARNINGS ] 447,052 § 306,982 $  (202,592)
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CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2007

NON-
GUARANTOR GUARANTOR CONSOLIDATING CONSOLIDATED
(irt thousands) TRG, INC. SUBSIDIARIES SUBSIDIARIES ELIMINATIONS TOTAL
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,908 § 172,363 § 58,343 $ - 8 243,614
Consolidated inventories owned 1,165,740 570,119 - - 1,735,859
Consolidated inventories not owned 1,179 6,940 68,615 - 76,734
Total inventories 1,166,919 577,059 68,615 - 1,812,593
Investment in subsidiaries/ intercompany
receivables 758,282 - 2,028 (760,310) -
Other assets 354,883 95,239 35,850 - 485,972
TOTAL ASSETS 2,292,992 844,661 164,836 (760,310) 2,542,179
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other
accrued liabilities 333,192 114,842 61,420 - 509,454
Debt 835,074 4,006 - - 839,080
Intercompany payables - 316,296 - (316,296) -
TOTAL LIABILITTES 1,168,266 435,144 61,420 (316,296) 1,348,534
MINORITY INTEREST - - 68,919 - 68,919
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 1,124,726 409,517 34,497 (444,014) 1,124,726
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 2,292,992 3§ 844,661 $ 164,836 $ (760,310) $ 2,542,179
CONSOQOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2006
NON-
GUARANTOR GUARANTOR CONSOLIDATING CONSOLIDATED
(in thousands) TRG, INC. SUBSIDIARIES SUBSIDIARIES ELIMINATIONS TOTAL
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 43,129 § 129,079 § 42829 % - $ 215,037
Consolidated inventories owned 1,563,246 944,386 - - 2,507,632
Consotidared inventories not owned 5,655 8,059 250,139 - 263,853
Total inventories 1,568,901 952,445 250,139 - 2,771,485
Investment in subsidiaries/ intercompany
receivables 1,023,975 - 12,178 (1,036,153) -
Other assets 297,071 100,781 32,323 - 430,175
TOTAL ASSETS 2,933,076 1,182,305 337,469 (1,036,153) 3,416,697
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other
accrued liahilities 480,811 162,758 130,096 - 773,665
Debt 941,099 9,018 - - 950,117
Intercompany payables - 370,858 - (370,858) -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,421,910 542,634 130,096 (370,858) 1,723,782
MINORITY INTEREST - - 181,749 - 181,749
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 1,511,166 639,671 25,024 (665,295) 1,511,166
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’
EQUITY $ 2933076 $ 1,182305 $§ 337469 § (1,036,153) § 3,416,697
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CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

NON-

GUARANTOR GUARANTOR CONSOLIDATING CONSOLIDATED

(in thousands) TRG, INC. SUBSIDIARIES SURBSIDIARIES ELIMINATIONS TOTAL
CASH FLOWS FROM

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net operating earnings (loss) $ (333,526) $§ (230,152) $ 32,493 § 197,659 § (333,520)
Adjustments to reconcile net

earnings {loss) to net cash

provided by operating activities 439,486 284,210 1,584 - 725,280
Changes in assets and liabilities 24,480 63,056 (29,506) (197,659) (139,629)
Other operating activities, net (23,985) - - - {23,985)
Net cash provided by operating activities 106,455 117,114 4,571 - 228,140
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES
Net additions to property, plant and

equipment (17,939) (14,256) 48 - (32,147)
QOther investing activities, net - - 750 - 750
Net cash (used for) provided by investing

activities (17,939) (14,256) 798 - (31,397)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES
Decrease in debt (106,025) (5,012) - - (111,037)
Common stock dividends, repurchases and

stock based compensation (57,124) - - - (57,124)
Intercompany balances 44,412 (54,562) 10,150 - -
Other financing activities, net - - (5) - (5)
Net cash (used for) provided by financing

activities (118,737) (39,574) 10,145 - (168,166)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash

equivalents (30,221) 43,284 15,514 - 28,577
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

year 43,129 129,079 42 829 - 215,037
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF

YEAR $ 12,908 § 172,363 $ 58,343 $ - $ 243,614
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CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

NON-
GUARANTOR  GUARANTOR CONSOLIDATING CONSOLIDATED
TRG, INC. SUBSIDIARIES SUBSIDIARIES ELIMINATIONS TOTAL

CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net operating earnings

Adjustments to reconcile net
earnings to net cash provided by
operating acrivities

Changes in assets and liabilities

Other operating activities, net

Net cash (used for) provided by operating
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net additions o property, plant and equipment
Other investing activities, net

Net cash (used for) provided by investing
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

[ncrease {decrease) in debt

Common stock dividends, repurchases and stock
based compensaticn

[ntercompany balances

Other financing activities, net

Net cash provided by (used for) financing
activities

Net {decrease) increase in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF
YEAR

359,942 § 61,091 $ 42,309 $ (103,400) $§ 359942

62,606 9,040 1,992 - 153,638
(438,743) (116,944) (28,645) 103,400 (480,932)
(18,011) - - - (18,011)
(34,206) 33,187 15,656 - 14,637
(31,280) (21,372 (1,187) - (55,839)
- - 2,250 - 2,250
(31,280) (21,372) 1,063 - (51,589)
33,363 (5.216) - - 28,147
(237,493) - - - (237,493)
230,850 (237,229 6,379 - -
- - (48) - “8)
26,720 (242,445) 6,331 - (209,394)
(38,766) (230,630) 23,050 - (246,346)
81,895 359,709 19,779 - 461,383
43,129 $ 129079 § 42829 § - $ 215037
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CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

NON-
GUARANTOR  GUARANTOR CONSOLIDATING  CONSOLIDATED

(in thousands) TRG, INC. SUBSIDIARIES SUBSIDIARIES ELIMINATIONS TOTAL
CASH FLOWS FROM

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net operating earnings $ 447,052 § 165610 $ 36,982 $ (202,592) § 447,052
Adjustments 1o reconcile net earnings to net cash

provided by operating activities 43,292 21,022 1,512 - 65,826
Changes in assets and liabilities (359,842) (163,952) 1,791 202,592 (319,411}
Other operating activities, net 22,797 - - - 22,797
Net cash provided by operating activities 153,299 22,680 40,285 - 216,264
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net additions to property, plant and equipment (27,496) (26,8806) (745) - (55,127)
Other investing activities, net - - 12,561 - 12,561
Net cash (used for) provided by investing

activities (27,496) (26,886} 11,816 - (42,566)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in debt 360,124 13,394 (10,490} - 363,028
Common stock dividends, repurchases and stock

based compensation (158,335) - - - (158,335)
Intercompany balances (281,787) 319,131 (37,344) - -
Other financing activities, net - - (5,396) - (5,396)
Net cash (used for) provided by financing

activities (79,998) 332,525 (53.230) - 199,297
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash

equivatents 45,805 328319 (1,129} - 372,995
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 36,090 31,390 20,908 - 88,388
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF

YEAR $ 81,895 & 359709 $§ 19,779 $ - 8 461,383
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Note L: Subsequent Events

In January 2008, RMC entered into the RMC Credit Agreement. The RMC Credit Agreement matures in
January 2009 and provides for borrowings up to $40.0 million to fund RMC's mortgage loan
origination operations. It is secured by underlying mortgage loans and by other assets of RMC. Facility
balances are repaid as loans funded under the agreement are sold to third parties. The RMC Credit
Agreement’s interest rate is set at LIBOR plus 0.9 percent, with a commitment fee of 0.125 percent on
the unused portion of the facility. The RMC Credit Agreement contains representations, warranties,
covenants and provisions defining events of defauli. The covenants require RMC to maintain a
minimum net worth and certain financial ratios.

In February 2008, the Company entered into a Second Amendment to its $750.0 million credir facility.
The Second Amendment reduces the base amount for the minimum consolidated tangible net worth
covenant the Company is required to maintain under its credit facility to $850.0 million; increases the
borrowing base by adding unrestricted cash up to $300.0 million; and increases the definition of
material indebtedness to $20.0 million.

Supplementary Data

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

(in thousands, except share data) unaudited 2007 2006
DEC. 31 SEPT. 30 JUN. 30 MAR. 31 DEC. 31 SEPT. 30 JUN. 30 MAR. 31
CONSOLIDATED
RESULTS
Revenues $ 854,143 $ 732336 $ 739,685 $ 706,430 $ 1,354,544 $§ 1,130,942 $ 1,196,892 § 1,074,838
Earnings (loss)
before taxes (206,111) (94,521) (88,825) (30,641) 139,448 131,907 151,706 144,047
Tax expense
(benefit) (4,201) (39,781) (36,394) (6,196) 52,293 43,966 56.889 54,018
Net earnings
(loss) $ (201,910) % (54,740) 8 (52,431) $ (24,445) $ 87,155 § 87,941 § 94817 § 90,029
Net earnings
(loss) per
common share:
Basic $ (4.80) $ (1.30) $ (1.25) $ (0.58) $ 205 § 204 § 211§ 1.95
Diluted (4.80) (1.30) (1.25) (0.58) 1.98 197 2.03 1.86
Weighted-average
common
shares
outstanding:
Basic 42,096 41,958 42,011 42,485 42,594 43,159 45,026 46,134
Diluted 42,096 41,958 42,011 42,485 44,123 44,542 46,763 48,339
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Report of Management

Management of the Company is responsible for the integrity and accuracy of the financial statements
and all other annual report information. The financial statements are prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles and include amounts based on management’s judgments and
estimates.

The accounting systems, which record, summarize and report financial information, are supported by
internal control systems designed o provide reasonable assurance, at an appropriate cost, that the
assets are safeguarded and that transactions are recorded in accordance with Company policies and
procedures. Developing and maintaining these systems are the responsibility of management. Proper
selection, training and development of personnel also contribute to the effectiveness of the internal
control systems. For the purpose of evaluating and documenting its systems of internal control,
management elected to use the integrated framework promulgated by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission ("'COSO"). The Company’s systems, evaluation and test
results were documented. The Company’s internal auditors regularly test these systems. Based on its
evaluation, management belicves that its systems of internal control over financial reporting were
effective and is not aware of any material weaknesses.

The Company's independent registered public accounting firm also reviewed and tested the
effectiveness of these systems to the extent it deemed necessary to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements and systems of internal control.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors periodically meets with management, the internal
auditors and the independent registered public accounting firm to review accounting, auditing and
financial matters. Both internal auditors and the independent registered public accounting firm have
unrestricted access to the Audit Committee.

/s! Gordon A. Milne

Gordon A. Milne

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

/s/ David L. Fristoe

David L. Fristoe

Senior Vice President, Controller and
Chief Accounting Officer
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Stockholders
The Ryland Group, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Ryland Group, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of earnings,
stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2007, Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at ltem 15(a).
These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is 1o express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of The Ryland Group, Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2007 and
2006, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation
to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the
information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note A to the financial statements, in 2006 the Company changed its method of
accounting for share-based payments.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of The Ryland Group, Inc.’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and
our report dated February 22, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP
Ernst & Young LLP
Los Angeles, California
February 22, 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Stockholders
The Ryland Group, Inc.

We have audited The Ryland Group, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). The Ryland
Group, Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
included in the accompanying Report of Management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained
in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A compaany’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the rransactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the
risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, The Ryland Group, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of The Ryland Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, stockholders’
equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007, and our
report dated February 22, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP
Ernst & Young LLP
Los Angeles, California
February 22, 2008
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure

None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

The Company has procedures in place for accumulating and evaluating information that enable it to
prepare and file reports with the SEC. At the end of the period covered by the report on Form 10-K,
an evaluation was performed by the Company’s management, including the CEO and CFO, of the
effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rule 13a-15(e)
promulgated under the Exchange Act. Based on that evaluation, the Company’s management, including
the CEO and CFQ, concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as
of December 31, 2007.

The Company has a committee consisting of key officers, including the chief accounting officer and
general counsel, to ensure that all information required to be disclosed in the Company’s reports is
accumulated and communicated to those individuals responsible for the preparation of the reports, as
well as to all principal executive and financial officers, in a manner that will allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosures.

The Company’s management, including the CEQ and CFO, has evaluated any changes in the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarterly period ended
December 31, 2007, and has concluded that there was no change during this period that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting.

At December 31, 2007, the Company completed a derailed evaluation of its internal control over
financial reporting, including the assessment, documentation and testing of its controls, as required by
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. No material weaknesses were identified. The Company’s management
summarized its assessment process and documented its conclusions in the Report of Management,
which appears in “'Part II, item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

NYSE Certification

The NYSE requires that the chief executive officers of its listed companies certify annually to the NYSE
that they are not aware of violations by their companies of NYSE corporate governance listing
standards. The Company submitted a non-qualified certification by its Chief Executive Officer to the
NYSE last year, in accordance with the NYSE'’s rules. Further, the Company files certifications by its
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer with the SEC, in accordance with the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002. These certifications are filed as exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 9B. Other Information

None,
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PART 111
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Executive Officers of the Company
The following sets forth certain information regarding the executive officers of the Company:

Position (date elected to position)
Name Age Prior Business Experience

R. Chad Dreier 60 Chairman of the Board of Directors (since 1994);
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
(since 1993)

Larry T. Nicholson 50 Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of
the Company (since 2007); Senior Vice President of the
Company and President of the Southeast Region of
Ryland Homes (2005-2007); President of the Orlando
Division of Ryland Homes (1999-2005)

Gordon A. Milne 56 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of
the Company (since 2002); Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer of the Company (2000-2002)

Keith E. Bass 43 Senior Vice President of the Company and President of
the Southeast Region of Ryland Homes (since 2007);
President of the Orlando Division of Ryland Homes
(2004-2007); Vice President of Land Resources for the
Southeast Region of Ryland Homes (2003-2004); Region
President for Taylor Woodrow (1997-2003)

William M. Butler 60 Senior Vice President of the Company and President of
the West Region of Ryland Homes (since 2007);
President of the Denver Division of Ryland Homes
(1996-2007)

Robert J. Cunnion, III 52  Senior Vice President, Human Resources of the
Company (since 1999)

Eric E. Elder 50 Senior Vice President, Marketing and Communications
of the Company (since 2000)

David L. Fristoe 51 Senior Vice President, Controller and
Chief Accounting Officer of the Company (since 2005);
Senior Vice President, Controller,
Chief Accounting Officer and Chief Information Officer
of the Company (2000-2005)

Timothy J. Geckle 55 Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of
the Company (since 1997)

Daniel G. Schreiner 50 Senior Vice President of the Company (since 1999);
President of Ryland Mortgage Company (since 1998)

Peter G. Skelly 44  Senior Vice President of the Company and President of
the North Region of Ryland Homes (since 2006);
President of the Chicago Division of Ryland Homes
(1999-20006)

Ken L. Trainer 42 Senior Vice President of the Company and President of
the Texas Region of Ryland Homes (since 2006);
President of the Austin/San Antonio Division of
Ryland Homes (2002-20006)
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The Board of Directors elects all officers.

There are no family relationships between any director or executive officer, or arrangements or
understandings pursuant to which the officers listed above were elected. For a description of the
Company’s employment and severance arrangements with certain of its executive officers, see the
Company's Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockbolders (the 2008 Proxy
Statement”), which is filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act.

Information as to the Company’s directors, executive officers and corporate governance is incorporated
by reference from the Company’s 2008 Proxy Statement, including the determination by the Board of
Directors, with respect to the “Audit Committee’s financial expert,” and the identity of each member of
the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.

The Company has adopted a code of ethics that is applicable to its senior officers, directors and
employees. To retrieve the Company’s code of ethics, visit www.ryland.com, select “Investors” and
scroll down the page o *“Code of Ethics.”

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the 2008 Proxy Statement.
The Compensation Committee Report to be included in the 2008 Proxy Statement shall be deemed
furnished in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and shall not be incorporated by reference into any

filing under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act as a result of such furnishing in this ltem 11.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item set forth on page 14 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is
incorporated by reference from the 2008 Proxy Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the 2008 Proxy Statemnent.
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the 2008 Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15.

(ay 1
2.
3.

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Page No.
Financial Statements
Consolidated Statements of Earnings—years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005 35
Consolidated Balance Sheets—December 31, 2007 and 2006 36
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity—years ended December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005 37
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows—years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005 38
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 39
Financial Statement Schedule
Schedule II—valuation and Qualifying Accounts 73

Schedules not listed above have been omitted either because they are inapplicable or
because the required information has been provided in the financial statements or notes
thercto.

Exhibits

The following exhibits are included with this report or incorporated herein by reference
as indicated below: :

3.1  Articles of Restatement of The Ryland Group, Inc., as amended
(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-Q for the guarter ended March 31, 2005)

3.2 Bylaws of The Ryland Group, Inc., as amended
(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1996)

4.1 Senior Notes, dated as of June 5, 2003
(Incorporated by reference from Registration Statement on Form 8-3, Registration
No. 333-100167)

4.2 Senior Notes, dated as of January 11, 2005
(Incorporated by reference from Registration Statement on Form S-3, Registration
No. 333-121409)

43 Senior Notes, dated as of May 9, 2005
(Incorporated by reference from Registration Statement on Form $-3, Registration
No. 333-124000)

4.4  Senior Notes, dated as of May 30, 2006
(Incorporated by reference from Registration Statement on Form $-3, Registration
No. 333-124000)

10.1 Credit Agreement, dated as of January 12, 2006, between The Ryland Group, Inc.
and certain financial institutions
(Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K, filed January 13, 20006)

10.2  First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated October 17, 2007, between The Ryland
Group, Inc. and certain financial institutions
(Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K, filed October 17, 2007)

10.3 Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated February 15, 2008, between The
Ryland Group, Inc. and certain financial institutions
(Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K, filed February 15, 2008)
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Exhibits, continued

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

Credit Agreement, dated January 24, 2008, between Ryland Mortgage Company and
Guaranty Bank
(incorporated by reference from Form 8-K, filed January 29, 2008)

1992 Equity Incentive Plan of the Ryland Group, Inc.
(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1992)

2002 Equity Incentive Plan of The Ryland Group, Inc.
(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2002)

2005 Equity Incentive Flan of The Ryland Group, Inc.
(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2005)

The Ryland Group, Inc. 2007 Equity Incentive Plan
(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007)

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement
(Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K, filed April 29, 2005)

Form of Amended and Restated Stock Unit Agreement
(Incorporated by reference from Form 8-, filed April 18, 2000)

Non- Employee Director Stock Unit Plan, effective January 1, 1998, between The
Ryland Group, Inc. and the Board of Directors
(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997)

2000 Non-Employee Director Equity Plan of The Ryland Group, Inc., as amended
{Incorporated by reference from Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000)

2004 Non-Employee Director Equity Plan of The Ryland Group, Inc.
(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004)

Non-Employee Director Stock Plan, effective April 26, 2000
(Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K, filed April 27, 2006)

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of April 20, 2005, between
The Ryland Group, Inc. and R. Chad Dreier
(Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K/A, filed May 4, 2005)

The Ryland Group, Inc. Dreier Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan
(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2003)

The Ryland Group, Inc. Dreier Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan 1
(Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K/A, filed May 4, 2005)

The Ryland Group, Inc. Senior Executive Supplemental Retirement Plan
{Incorporated by reference from Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2003)

Form of Senior Executive Severance Agreement between The Ryland Group, Inc. and
certain executive officers of the Company

(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2000)

Form of 2007 Senior Executive Severance Agreement between The Ryland
Group, Inc. and certain executive officers of the Company
(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006)

Amendment and Restatement of the Executive and Director Deferred Compensation
Plan, effective March 1, 1998
(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999)

The Ryland Group, Inc. Executive and Director Deferred Compensation Plan 11,
effective January 1, 2005
(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006)
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Exhibits, continued

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

12.1

21

23

24

311

31.2

321

32.2

TRG Incentive Plan, as amended and restated, effective January 1, 2003
{(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003)

The Ryland Group, Inc. Performance Award Program, effective July 1, 2002
(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003)

The Ryland Group, Inc. Senior Executive Performance Plan
{Incorporated by reference from Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003)

Lease Agreement, dated as of December 29, 1999, by and between The Ryland
Group, Inc. and Kilroy Realty Group
{Incorporated by reference from Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999)

First Amendment to Office Building Lease, dated August 26, 2005, by and berween
The Ryland Group, Inc. and Kilroy Realty, L.B
(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005)

Lease Agreement, dated February 28, 2006, by and between The Ryland Group, Inc.
and PCCP HC Kierland, LLC
(Incorporared by reference from Form 8-K, filed March 6, 20006)

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges
(Filed herewith)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant
(Filed herewith)

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
(Filed herewith)

Power of Attorney
(Filed herewith)

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002
(Filed herewith)

Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002
(Filed herewith)

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002
(Furnished herewith)

Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002
(Furnished herewith)




The Ryland Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

BALANCE AT CHARGED TO DEDUCTIONS BALANCE AT
BEGINNING COSTS AND AND END OF
(in thousands) OF PERIOD EXPENSES TRANSFERS PERIOD
Valuation allowances:
Homebuilding inventories
2007 $ 59,735 $ 503,955 $ (75,584) § 488,106
2000 486 62,910 (3,061) 59,735
2005 1,405 804 (1,723) 480
Other real estate assets
2007 $ 670 $ 2,241 $ (530) $ 2,381
2006 263 549 (142) 670
2005 307 - (44} 263
Deferred tax assets
2007 $ - $ 75,166 $ - $ 75,166

73




Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the Company has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

The Ryland Group, Inc.
By:

/s/ R. Chad Dreier

R. Chad Dreier February 28, 2008
Chairman of the Board,

President and Chief Executive Officer

{Principal Executive Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Exchange Act, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Principal Executive Officer:

/s/ R, Chad Dreier

R. Chad Dreier February 28, 2008
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Principal Financial Officer:

/s/ Gordon A. Milne February 28, 2008

Gordon A. Milne
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Principal Accounting Officer:

/st David L. Fristoe

David L. Fristoe February 28, 2008
Senior Vice President and
Chief Accounting Officer

A majority of the Board of Directors: R. Chad Dreier, Leslie M. Frécon, Roland A. Hernandez,
William L. Jews, Ned Mansour, Robert E. Mellor, Norman J. Metcalfe and Charlotte St. Martin

By:

/s/ Timothy J. Geckle

Timothy J. Geckle February 28, 2008
As Attorney-in-Fact
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Index of Exhibits

12.1

21

23

24

31.1

31.2

32.1

32.2

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges
Subsidiarics of the Registrant

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Power of Attorney

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant 1o Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002
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Exhibit 12.1 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
(in thousands, except ratia) 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Consolidated pretax income (loss) $ 396217 $ 521,212 § 721,051 $ 567,108 $ (420,098)

Share of distributed income of 50%-or-less-owned

affiliates net of equity pickup 94 (5.772) (315) 260 (342)
Amortization of capitalized interest 38,263 41,764 45,483 48,708 41,689
Interest 50,125 53,242 66,697 71,955 62,122
Less interest capitalized during the period (42,602) (52,015) (65,959) (71,750) (62,024)
Interest portion of rental expense 5,973 5,639 5,678 7,736 8,911
EARNINGS (LOSS) $ 448070 § 564,070 § 772,635 $ 624017 $ (369,742)
Interest $ 50,125 % 53,242 § 66,697 $ 71955 § 62,122
Interest portion of rental expense 5,973 5,639 5,678 7,736 8,911
FIXED CHARGES $ 56098 § 58881 $ 72375 § 79691 § 71,033
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 7.99 9.58 10.68 7.83 (5.21)

Exhibit 21: Subsidiaries of the Registrant

As of December 31, 2007, the following subsidiaries represent the significant subsidiaries of the
Registrant:

Ryland Homes of California, Inc., a Delaware corporation
Ryland Homes of Texas, Inc., a Texas corporation

The Ryland Corporation, a California corporation

Ryland Organization Company, a California corporation
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Exhibit 23: Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements:

(1) Registration Statement (Form $-3 No. 333-100167) and related Prospectus of The Ryland
Group, Inc.,

(2) Registration Statement (Form 5-3 No. 333-113756) and related Prospectus of The Ryland
Group, Inc.,

(3) Registration Statement (Form $-3 No. 333-121409) and related Prospectus of The Ryland
Group, Inc,,

(4) Registration Statement (Form 5-3 No. 333-124000) and related Prospectus of The Ryland
Group, Inc.,

(5) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 33-32431) pertaining to The Ryland Group, Inc. Retirement
Savings Opportunity Plan,

(6) Registration Statement (Form $-8 No. 333-68397) pertaining to The Ryland Group, Inc. Executive
and Director Deferred Compensation Plan and The Ryland Group, Inc. Non-Employee Director
Stock Unit Plan,

(7) Registration Statement (Form $-8 No. 333-133602) pertaining to The Ryland Group, Inc. 2006
Non-Employee Director Equity Plan, and

(8) Registration Statement (Form 5-8 No. 333-142431) pertaining to The Ryland Group, Inc, 2007
Equity Incentive Plan;

of our reports dated February 22, 2008, with respect to the consolidated financial statements and
schedule of The Ryland Group, Inc. and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of
The Ryland Group, Inc., included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31,
2007.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP
Ernst & Young LLP
Los Angeles, California
February 28, 2008
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Exhibit 24: Power of Attorney

The undersigned directors of The Ryland Group, Inc., a Maryland corporation, constitute and appoint
Timothy J. Geckle the true and lawful agent and attorney-in-fact of the undersigned, with full power
and authority in said agent and attorney-in-fact to sign for the undersigned, in their respective names
as directors of The Ryland Group, Inc., the Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Ryland Group, Inc. for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, and any amendments thereto, to be filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission under the Exchange Act, as amended.

Dated: February 28, 2008

/s/ R. Chad Dreier

R. Chad Dreier, Chairman of the Board,
President and Chief Executive Officer

Daniel T. Bane, Director

/s/ Leslie M. Frécon

Leslie M. Frécon, Director

/s/ Roland A. Hernandez

Roland A. Hernandez, Director

/s/ William L. Jews

William L. Jews, Director

/s/ Ned Marnsour

Ned Mansour, Director

/s/ Robert E. Mellor
Robert E. Mellor, Director

/s/ Norman J. Metcalfe

Norman J. Metcalfe, Director

/s/ Charlotte St. Martin

Charlotte St. Martin, Director
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Exhibit 31.1: Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)
Under the Exchange Act

I, R. Chad Dreier, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Ryland Group, Inc. (the “Company™);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the Company as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The Company’s other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))
and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the Company and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating
to the Company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such ¢valuation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the Company’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The Company’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the Company's auditors and the audit committee of
the Company’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Company’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 28, 2008 /s/ R. Chad Dreier

R. Chad Dreier
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2: Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)
Under the Exchange Act

I, Gordon A. Milne, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Ryland Group, Inc. (the “Company™);

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the pericd covered by
this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the Company as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The Company’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢))
and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the Company and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating
1o the Company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the Company’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

The Company’s other certifying officer and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the Company’s auditors and the audit committee of
the Company’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Company’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 28, 2008 /s/ Gordon A. Milne

Gordon A. Milne
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1: Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Principal Executive Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.5.C. 1350

I, R. Chad Dreier, Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) of The
Ryland Group, Inc. (the “Company"), certify, to the best of my knowledge, based upon a review of the
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 of the Company (the “Report”),
that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act, as
amended; and

(2) The information contained and incorporated by reference in the Report fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ R. Chad Dreier

R. Chad Dreier
February 28, 2008
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Exhibit 32.2: Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Principal Financial Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350

1, Gordon A. Milne, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (principal financial officer) of
The Ryland Group, Inc. (the “Company’), certify, to the best of my knowtedge, based upon a review
of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 of the Company (the
*Report™), that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act, as
amended; and

(2) The information contained and incorporated by reference in the Report fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/sf Gordon A. Milne

Gordon A. Milne
February 28, 2008
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PART I
Item 1. Business

With headquarters in Southern California, The Ryland Group, Inc., a Marvland corporation (the “Compamy™), 1s one of the
nation’s largest homebuilders and a mortgage-finance company. The Company is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under
the symbol “RYL.” Founded in 1967, the Company has built more than 275,000 homes. In addition, Ryland Mortgage Company
and its subsidiades (“RMC™} has provided mortgage financing and related services for more than 230,000 homebuyers. The
Company consists of six operating business segments: four geographically determined homebuilding regions; financial services;
and corporate,

‘The Company’s operations span all significant aspects of the homebuyving process—{rom design, construction and sale to
mortgage orgmation, title insurance, escrow and insurance services. The homebuilding operations are, by far, the most substantial
part of its business, comprising approximately 98 percent of consolidated revenues in fiscal year 2007. The homebuilding
segments generate nearly all of their revenues from the sale of completed homes, with a lesser amount from the sale of land and
lots. In addition to building single-family detached homes, the homebuilding segments also build attached homes, such as town
homes, condominiums and some mid-rise buildings that share common walls and roofs. The Company builds homes for
entry-level buyers, as well as for first- and second-time move-up buvers. Iis prices generally range from $100.000 to more than
$600,000, with the average price of 2 home closed during 2007 being $285,000. The financial services segment offers mortgage,
title, escrow and insurance services o the Company’s homeowners and subcontractors.

Over the last 14 vears, the Company has concentrated on expanding its operarions by investing its available capital in both
existing and new markets. The Company focuses on achieving a high return on invested capital and establishing profirable
operations in every one of its markets. New communities are evaluated based on return and profisabiliry benchmarks, and both
senior and local management are incentivized based on their abiline to achieve such returns. Management continually monitors the
land acquisition process, sales revenues, margins and rerurns achieved in cach of the Company’s markets as part of its capiral
evaluation process. (See discussion in “Part [, Trem 1A, Risk Factors.”

The Company is highly diversified throughour the United States, and attempts 1o have no more than 10 percent of 1ts deployed
capital allocated ro any given market. It believes diversification not only minimizes its exposure to economic and market
fluctuations, but also enhances its growth petential. Capital is straregically allocated 10 avoid concentration in any given
geographic arca and to circumvent the accompanying risk assoctated with excessive dependence on local marker anomalies.
Subject to macrocconomic and local market conditions, the Company plans to either manage its exposure or to expand its
presence in its existing markets in an effort ro be among the largest buslders in cach of those markets. It may continue
diversification by selectively entering new markets, primarily through establishing start-up or satellite operations in markets near
ifs existing divisions.

The Company’s national scale has provided increased opportunites for negoriaton of volume discounts and rebates from
material suppliers. Addidonally, it has greater access to a lower cost of capital due 1o the strength and transparency of its halance
sheet, as well as to irs lending and capital markets relationships. The Company’s cconomies of scale and diversification have
contributed 1o significant improvements in its operating margins during peniods of growth and mitigated its overall risk i periods
of declining housing demand.

Committed to product innovation, the Company conducts ongoing research into consumer preferences and rrends. Ir 1s
constantly adapting and improving its house plans, design features, customized oprions and mortgage programs. It strives to offer
value, selection, location and quality ro all homebuvers.

The Company is dedicated to building quality homes and customer relationships. With customer satisfaction as a major pronry, it
continues to make innovative enhancements designed to attract homebuyers. The Company continues to develop its abilin to
collect customer feedback via its Web site, which includes online systems for tracking requests, processing issues and improving
customer interaction. In addition, it uses a third party to analyze customer feedback in order to bertter serve its homebuyers’
needs.

The Company enters into land development joint ventures, from time ro time, as a means of building lor positions, reducing its
risk profile and enhancing its rerurn on capital. It periodically partners with developers, other homebuilders or financial mvestors
to develop fimished lors for sale to the joint ventures” members or other third parties.

Aside from being an added value 1o customers, the financial services segment generates a profit for the Company while limiting its
dsk. A competitively high caprure rate for morigage financing and other services allows the Company to monitor its backlog and
closing process. Risk is further reduced because the majorty of all loans are sold 1o a third parry, who services and manages the
loans, assuming substantially all of the credir risk of borrower defaulr,
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Homebuilding
General

The Company’s homes are built on-site and marketed in four major geographic regions, or segments. The Company operated in
the following merropolitan areas at December 31, 2007

Region/Segment Major Markets Served

North Baltimore. Chicago. Cincinnati, Delaware. Indianapolis. Minneapolis and Washington, D.C.

Southeast Atlanta, Charleston. Chardotte, Fort Myers. Greenshoro, Greenville, Jacksonville, Myrtle Beach, Orlands and Tampa

Texas Austin, Dallas, Houston and San Antonio

West California’s Central Valley. California’s Coachella Valley. California’s Inland Erpire. Denver. Las 17 egas, Phoenix: and
Sacramento

The Company has decentralized operations to provide more flexibility o its local division presidenrs and minagement teams.
Each of its 21 homebuilding divisions across the country generally consists of a division president, a controller and other
management personnel focused on land entitlement, acquisition and development, sales, construction, customer service, and
purchasing; as well as accounting and administrative personnel. The Company’s operations in cach of its homebuilding markers
may differ due to a number of market-specific factors, These factors include regional economic condinons and job growth: land
availability and local land development; consumer preferences; competition from other homebuilders; and home resale activity,
The Company not only considers each of these factors upon entering into new markets, but also in determining the extent of irs
operations and capital allocation in existing markets. The Company’s local management teams are familiar wirh these factors, and
their market experience and expertise are carical in making decisions regarding local operations.

The Company provides oversight and centralizes key elements of its homebuilding business through its corporate and regional
offices. The Company has four regional offices, each generally consisting of a region president; a chief financial officer; and
additional management personnel focused on human resources, real estate legal support, markenng and operations. Regional
offices provide oversight and standardization where appropriate. The staff in each of these offices monitors activities by using
vartous operanonal metrics in order to achieve Company return benchmarks.

The Company markets atrached and detached single-family homes, which are generally targeted 10 eny-level and first- and
second-time move-up buvers. Its diverse product line is tailored to the local styles and preferences found in each of its geographic
markers. The product line offered in a particular communiry is determined in conjuncrion with the land acquisition process and is
dependent upon a number of factors, including consumer preferences, competitive product offerings and development costs,
Architectural services are generally outsourced to increase creativity and to ensure that the Company’s home designs are
consistent with local market trends.

Homebuvers are able to customize certain features of their homes by selecting from numerous options and upgrades displayed in
the Company’s model homes and design centers. These design centers, which are conveniendy located in most of the Company’s
markers, also represent an increasing source of additional revenue and profir for the Company. Custom options contributed
approximately 14.8 percent of revenues in 2007 and resulred in significantly higher margins in companison to base homes.

Land Acquisition and Development

The Company’s objective is to control a portfolio of bhuilding lots sufficient to meet its anticipated homehuilding requirements for
a penod of approximately four 1o five vears, The Company acquires land only after completing due diligence and feasibility
studies. The land acquisition process is controlled by a corporate land approval commuttee to help ensure that transactions meet
the Company’s standards for financial performance and nisk. In the ordinary course of its homebuilding business, the Company
utilizes both direct acquisinion and option contracts to control building lots for use in the sale and construction of homes. The
Company’s direct land acquisition activiries include the bulk purchase of finished lots from developers and the purchase of
undeveloped entitled land from third pardes. The Company generally does not purchase unentitled or unzoned land.

Although control of lot inventory through rhe use of option contracts minimizes the Company’s investment, such a strategy 1s not
viable in certain markets due 1o the absence of third-party land developers. In other markets, competitive conditions mayv prevent
the Company from controlling quality lots solely through the use of option conrtracts. In such situations, the Company may
acquire undeveloped entitled land and/or finished lots on a bulk basis. The Company utilizes the selecuve development of land to
gain access o prime locations, Increase margins and positon irself as a leader in the area through its influence over a communin’s
character, lavour and amenities. After determining the size, stvle, price range, densiry, lavour and overall design of a community,
the Company obtains governmental and other approvals necessary 1o begin the development process. Land is then graded; roads,
utilities, amenintes and other infrastructures are mstalled; and the ndividual home sites are created.



Materials Costs

Subsiantially all materials used in construction are available from a number of sources bur may fluctuate in price due 1o various
factors. To increase purchasing efficiencies, the Company not only standardizes certain building materials and products, but also
acquires such products through national supply contracts. The Company has, on occasion, experienced shortages of certain
materials. If shortages were to occur in the future, such shormages could result in longer construction times and higher costs than
those expenenced in the past.

Construction

Substantially all on-site construction is performed for a fixed price by independent subcontractors selected on a competitive-bid
basis. The Company generally requires a minimum of three competitive bids for each phase of construction. Construction
activities are supervised by the Compant’s production ream, which schedules and coordinates subcontractor work, monitors
quality, and ensures compliance with loeal zoning and building codes. The Company requires substantiaily all of its subcontractors
to have workmans compensation insurance and general lability insurance, inchading construction defeer coverage. Construction
time for homes depends on weather, availability of labor or subcontractors, materials, home size, geological conditions and other
factors. The duration of the home construction process is generally berween three and six months. The Company has an
integrated financial and homebuilding management system that assists in scheduling production and controlhng costs. Through
this system, the Company monitors construction status and job costs incurred for each home during each phase of construction.
The system provides for detailed budgeting and allows the Company to track and control acrual costs, versus construction bids,
for cach community and subcontractor. The Company has, on oceasion, experienced shortages of skilled labor in certan markets.
If shortages were to occur in the future, such shortages could result in longer construction times and higher costs than those
experienced in the past.

The Company, its subicontractors and its suppliers maintain insurance, subject to deducnbles and self-insured amounts, 1o protect
against various risks associated with homebuilding activities, including, among others, general liahility, “all-risk” property,
workmans compensation, automobile and emplovee fidelity. The Company accrues for irs expected costs associared with the
deductibles and self-insured amounis.

Marketing

The Company generally markets its homes to entry-level and first- and second-time move-up buyers through rargeted product
offerings in each of the communities in which it operates. The Company’s marketing straregy 1s determined durning the land
acquisition and feasibiliry stage of 1 communin’s development. Employees and independent real estare brokers sell the
Company’s homes, generally by showing furnished models. A new order is reported when a customer’s sales contract has been
signed by the homebuyer and approved by the Company and a deposit 1s taken, subject to cancellation. The Company normally
starts construction of a home when a customer has selected a lot, chosen a floor plan and received preliminary morigage approval,
However. construction may begin prior 1o this in order to satisfy market demand for completed homes and 1o facilitare
construction scheduling and/or cost savings. Homebuilding revenues are recognized when home sales are closed, title and
possesston are rransferted to the buver, and there 1s no sigmificant continuing involvement.

The Company advertises directly to potential homebuvers through the internet and in newspapers and rrade publicanons, as well
as with marketing brochures and newsletters. 1 also uses billboards, radio and television advertising, and its Web site 1o market
the location, price range and availability of its homes. The Company also artempts to operate n conspicuously located
communities that permit it to take advantage of local taffic patterns. Model homes play a significant role in the Company’s
marketing efforts by not only creating an attractive atmosphere, bur also by displaving oprions and upgrades.

The Company’s sales contracts rypically require an earnest money deposit. The amount of eamest money required varies berween
matkets and communities. Addirionally, buyers are generally required to pay additional deposirs when they selecr options or
upgrades for their homes. Most of the Company’s sales coniracts stipulate that when homebuyers cancel their contracts with the
Company, it has the right to retain the homebuvers” earnest money and option deposits; howerver, its operanng divisions may
choose 1o refund a portion of such deposits. The Company’s sales contracts may also include contingencies that permir
homebuvers to cancel and receive a refund of rtheir deposits if they cannot obtain mortgage financing at prevailing or specified
interest rates within a specified time period. The Company’s contracts may also include other contingencies, such as the sale of an
existing home. The length of rime berween the signing of a sales contract for 2 home and delivery of the home 1o the buver may
vary, depending on customer preferences, permit approval and construction cvcles.

Customer Service and Warranties

The Company’s operating divisions are responsible for pre-closing quality control inspections and responding to homebuyers’
post-closing needs. The Compuny believes that prompt and courteous acknowledgment of its homebuyers” needs during and afier
construction reduces post-closing repair costs, enhances its reputation for qualiny and service, and ulumately leads to repeat and
referral business. The subcontractors, who perform most of the acrual construction, also provide warranties on workmanship.
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The Company provides each homeowner with product warranties covering workmanship and materials for one vear, certain
mechanical svstems for nwo vears and structural systems for ten vears from the tme of closing. The Company believes its
wartanfy program meets or exceeds terms customarily offered in the homebuilding indusrry.

Seasonality

‘The Company experiences seasonal vaations in its quartetly operating results and capital requirements. Historically, new order
activity is higher during the spring and summer months. This is primarily due to the preference of many homebuvers to act dunng
those periods. As a result, it typically has more homes under construction, closes more homes, and has grearer revenues and
operating income in the third and fourth quarters of a fiscal vear.

Financial Services

The Company’s financial services segment provides mortgage-related products and services, as well as insurance services, to its
homebuvers and subcontractors. The Company’s financial services segment includes RMC, Ryland Homes Insurance Company
{“RIIC™), LPS Holdings Corporation and its subsidiaries {“.PS") and Columbia National Risk Retention Group, Inc.
(“*CNRRG?). By aligning its operations with the Company’s homebuilding segments, the financial services segment leverages this
relationship to provide lending services to homebuyers. In addirion to being a valuable asset 10 customers, the financial services
segment generates a profit for the Company. Providing mortgage financing and other services 1o its customers allows the
homebuilding segments to better monitor its backlog and closing process. Currently, the majority of all loans are sold to a third
party within one business day of the date they close. The third party then services and manages the loans, assuming the credit nsk
of borrower default. Recently, the Company entered into a mortgage warehouse facility in order to finance its mortgage loans and
increase the number of investors to which it sells the Joans it originates. These investors also service and manage these loans,
assuming the credit risk of borrower default. The Company also provides construction-related insurance to subcontractors in irs
western markets. Additionally. the financial services segment provides insurance for halality nsks, specifically homeowners’
warraniy coverage, arising in connection with the homebuilding business of the Company.

Loan Origination

In 2007, RAC’s mortgage originatdon operations consisted primarily of the Company’s homebuilder loans, which were originated
in connection with the sale of the Company’s homes. During the year, mortgage operations originated 7,653 loans, totaling

$1.9 hillion, of which 99.6 percent was for purchases of homes huilt by the Company and the remaining amount was for cither
purchases of homes buili by othets, purchases of existing homes or the refinancing of existing mortgage loans.

RMC arranges various types of morrgage financing, including conventional, Federal Housing Administration (“FHA”) and
Vererans Administration (“VA”) mortgages, with various fixed- and adjustable-rate fearures. RMC is approved to onginate loans
that conform to the guidelines established by the Federal Home Loan Morrgage Corporation (“FHLAMC”) and the Federal
National Morrgage Association (“FNAIA™). The Company sells the loans it onginates, along with the related servicing rights. to
others.

Title and Escrow Services

Comerstane Title Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of RMC, doing business as Ryland Title Company, provides title SCIVICes
and acts as a title insurance agent primarily for the Compamy’s homebuvers. At December 31, 2007, it provided title services in
Anzona, Colorado, Delaware, Florida, Hlinois, Indiana, Maryland, Minnesota, Nevada, North Carolina, South Carolina, Texas and
Virginia. The Company also operates Ryland Escrow Company. which performs escrow and closing functions for the Company’s
homeburers in California. Dunng 2007, Ryland Title Company and Ryland Escrow Company provided these services to

96.8 percent of the Company’s homebuyers in the markets in which they operate, compared to 96.3 percent during 2006.

LPS is a wholly-owned subsidiany of the Company and was formed 0 operate cermin mited purpose subsidiardes, including
Ryland Escrow Company.

Insurance Services

Ryland Insurance Services (“RIS™), a wholly-owned subsidiary of RMC, provides insurance services to the Company’s
homebuyers. At December 31, 2007, RIS was licensed to operate in all of the states in which the Company’s homehwilding
segments operate. During 2007, ir provided insurance services to 54.2 percent of the Company’s homebuyers, compared to
624 percent during 2006,

RHEIC is a whollv-owned subsidiary of the Company that provides insurance services 1o the homebuwlding segments’
subcontractors in certain markers. RHIC is registered and licensed under Section 431, Article 19 of the Hawaii Revised Sratures
and is required to meet certain minimum capital and surplus requirements. Additionally, no dividends may be paid without prior
approval of the Hawail Insurance Comnussioner.
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CNRRG is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and some of its affiliates. CNRRG was established to directly insure
liabiliry risks, specifically homeowners’ warranty coverage, arising in connection with the homebuilding business of the Company
and irs affiliates.

Corporate

Corporate is 2 non-operating business segment whose purpose is to support operations. Corporate departments are responsible
for establishing operational policies and infernal control standards; implementing strategic initiatives; and monitoring compliance
with policies and controls throughout the Company’s operations, Corporate acts as an internal source of capital and provides
financial, human resource, information technology, insurance, legal, marketing, naronal purchasing and tax compliance services.
In addition, 1t performs administrative functions associated with a publicly rraded ennity.

Real Estate and Economic Conditions

The Company is significantly affected by flucruations in cconomic activity, interest rates and levels of consumer confidence. The
effects of these fluctuations differ among the various geographic markets in which the Company operates. Higher interest rares
and the availability of homeowner financing may affect the abilit of buyers to qualify for mortgage financing and decrease
demand for new homes. As a result, nising interest rates generally will decrease the Company’s home sales and morigage
originations. In addition, during 2007, a significant decreasc in the availability of mortgage products, duc 1o a tightening of credit
standards, negatively impacted the Company’s ability to artract homebuyers. The Company’s business is also affected by local
economic conditions, such as employment rates and housing demand, in the markets in which it operates. Some of these markets
have experienced a significant decline in housing demand.

Inventory risk can be substantial for homebuilders. The market value of land, lots and housing inventortes fluctuates as a result of
changing market and economic conditions. 1he Company must continuously locate and acquire land not only for expansion into
new markets, but also for replacement and expansion of land inventory within current markets. The Company employs vanious
measures designed 1o control inventory risk, including a corporate land approval process and a continuous review by senior
management. [t cannot, however, assure that these measures will avoid or eliminate this sk,

Competition

The Company competes in each of its markets with a large number of narional, regional and local homebuilding companies. The
strength and expanded presence of national homebuilders, plus the continued viability of regional and local homebuilders, has
increased competition in many markets. The Company also competes with other housing alternatives, including existing homes
and rental properties, Principal competitive factors in the homebuilding industry include price; design; quality; reputation:
relationships with developers; accessibility of subcontractors; availability and location of Jots; and availability of customer
financing. The Company’s financial services segment competes with other mortgage bunkers to arrange financing for homebuyers.
Principal competitive factors include inferest rates and other fearures of mortgage loan products available o the consumer.

Employees
At December 31, 2007, the Company had 2,026 emplovees. The Company considers its emplovee relations to be good. No
emplovees are represented by a collective bargaining agreement.

Web Site Access to Reports

The Company fites annual, quarterly and special reports; proxy starements; and other mformation with the U.S. Sccurities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) under the ixchange Act and the Secunties Act of 1933, as amended (the “Secunties Act”). Any
document the Company files mayv be read at the SEC’s public reference room, Room 1580 ar 100 F Street, NE, Washington, D.C.
20549. Please call the SEC toll-free at 1-800-812C-0330 for information regarding its public reference room. The Company files
information electronically with the SIEC. The Company’s SEC filings are available from the SEC’s Web site at s sec.gor. Reports,
proxy and information statements, and other informaton regarding issuers that file electronically are readily obtainable there.

Stockholders, securities analysts and others seeking information about the Company’s business operations and financial
performance can receive copies of its 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quartetly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on
Forin 8-K, all amendments to those reports and other documents filed with the SEC, without charge, by contacting the Corporate
Secretary’s office at (818) 223-7500; by writing to The Ryland Group, Inc., Investor Relations, 24025 Park Sorrento, Suire 400,
Calabasas, California 91302; or via e-mail at investors@rydand.com. In addition, all filings with the SEC, news releases and quarterly
earnings announcements, including live audio and replays of the most recent quarterly earings conference calls, can be accessed
free of chatge on the Company’s Web site at www.ryland.com. Information on the Company’s Web site is not parr of this report.
The Company makes its Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and
amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Acrt available on its Web site
as soon as possible after it electronically files such material with, or furnishes it to, the SEC. "T'o retrieve any of this information,
visit . rylund.com, select “Investors” and scroll down the page to “SEC Filings.”



ltem 1A. Risk Factors

The homebuilding industry is cyclival in wature and has experienced downturss, which have in the past and may in the futnre canse the Company o incur
lovies in financial and operating resufts.

The Company is affected by the cyclical nature of the homebuilding industry which is sensitive to many factors, including
fluctuations in general and local economic conditons, interest rates, housing demand. employment levels, levels of new and
existing homes for sale, demographic trends, availability of homeowner financing and levels of consumer confidence. In 2007,
many of the markers served by the Company and the U.S. homebuilding industry as a whole continued to experience a significant
and sustained decrease in demand for new homes and an oversupply of new and existing homes available for sale. The
homebuilding industry has been impacted by lack of consumer confidence, housing affordabality and large supplies of resale and
new home inventrories which has resulted in an industry-wide softening of demand for new homes. In addition, an oversupply of
alternatives to new homes, such as rental properties and existing homes, has depressed prices and reduced margins for the sale of
new homes, These trends resulted in overal] fewer home sales, greater cancellations of home purchase agreements by buyers,
higher inventories of unsold homes and the increased use by homebuilders of discounts, incentives, price concessions and other
marketing efforts to close home sales in 2007 compared to the past several vears. Reflecting these demand and supply trends, the
Company experienced a large drop in net orders, a decline in the selling price of new homes sold and a reduction in margins in
2007 relative to prior vears. The Company cannot predict how long these market conditions will continue and whar affect they
might have on the Company’s financial and operating performance.

Becanse alprost afl of the Company s bomebuyers finance the purchase of therr bomes. the ternss and availability of wortgage financing can affect rhe
demand for and the ability 1o complete the purchase of a bome as well ar the Company s future aperating and jinanctal results.

The Company’s business and earnings depend on the abilirv of its homebuyers 1o obtn financing for the purchase of their
homes. Abany of the Company’s homchuyers must sell their existing homes in order 1o buy a home from the Company, During
2007, the mortgage lending industry experienced significant instability due ro, among other things, defaults on subprime loans and
a resulting decline in the market value of such loans. In light of these developments, lenders, investors, regulators and other third
parties questioned the adequacy of lending standards and other credit requirements for several loan programs made available to
borrowers in recent vears. This has led to rightened credit requirements and reduced liquidity. Detenioration in credit quality
among subprime and other nonconforming loans has caused most lenders to eliminate subprime mortgages and most other loan
products that do not conform 1o Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, FHA or VA standards. Fewer loan products and tighter loan
qualificarions in rurn make it more difficulr for some categorties of borrowers to inance the purchase of new homes or the
purchase of existing homes from potential move-up buyers who wish to purchase one of the Company’s homes. In general, these
developments have resulted in a reduction in demand for the homes sold by the Company and have delayed any general
improvement in the housing market. Futhermore, they have resulted in a reduction in demand for the mortgage loans that the
Company originates through RMC. If the Company’s potential homeburers or the huyers of the homebuyers” existing homes
cannot obtain suitable financing, the result will have an adverse effect on the Company’s operating and financial results and
performance.

The Company is subject to inventory risk for ity land, options jor lund. building lots and houstng inventory.

The market value of the Company’s land, huilding lots and housing inventories fluctuates as a result of ¢hanging market and
economic conditions. In addition, inventory carrving costs can result in Josses in poorly performing projects or markets. Changes
in economic and market conditions have caused the Company to dispose of land, options for land and housing invenrories on a
basis that has resulted in a loss and required the Company to write down or reduce the carrving value of its invearory. During the
12-month period ended December 31, 2007, the Company decided not to pursue development and construction in certain areas
where it held land or had made oprion deposits, which resulted in §77.2 million in recorded write-offs of option deposits and
preacquisition costs. Tn addition, marker conditions led o recorded land-related impairments on communities and land in the
aggregare amount of $504.0 million during the same period. The Company ¢an provide no assurance that it will not need 10
record additional write-offs in the furure.

In the course of its business, the Company makes acquisitions of land. Although it emplovs vanous measures, including its land
approval process and continued review by senior management designed to manage inventory nsks, the Company cannot assure
that these measures will enable it 10 avoid or eliminate irs inventory risk.

Construction costs can fhecticale and inipact the Conpany’s margin.

The homebuilding industry has from time fo time experienced significant difficulties, including: shortages of qualified rrades
people; reliance on local subcontractors who mayv be inadequately capiralized; shortages of materials; and volanle increases in the
cost of matertals, particularly increases in the price of lumber, driwall and cement, which are significant components of home
construction costs. The Company may not be able 1o recaprure increased costs by raising prices either because of market
condidons or because it fixes its prices at the ume home sales contracts are signed.




Fhuctuations in interest rates can affect the Company's business and profitabilety.

Interest rates can significantly affect the Company’s lines of business. Higher interest rates affect the abiliny of buvers to qualify
for mortgage financing and decrease demand for new homes. As a result, rising interest rates can decrease the Company’s home
sales and morrgage originations. Any of these factors could have an adverse impact on the Company's results of operations or
financial position.

Becanie the homebusiding industry is compelitive. the business practices of other bomebuilders can hare au impact on the Company s financial resulis and
carse these reswits o decline.

The residential housing industry is highly competitive. The Company comperes in each of its markets with a large number of
national, regional and local homebuilding companies. In 2007, this competition caused the Company to adjust selling prices in
responsc to competitive conditions in the markets in which it operates and required the Company to increase selling incenuves.
We cannot predict whether these measures will be successful or if additional incentives will be made in the future. The Company
also competes with other housing alternatives, including existing homes and rental housing. Principal competitive factors in
homebuilding are home price, availabilit: of customer financing, design, quality, repuration, relationship with developers,
accessibility of subcontractors, and availability and location of homesites. Any of the foregoing factors could have an adverse
impact on the Company’s financial performance and results of operations.

The Company’s financial services segment competes with other mortgage bankers to arrange financing for homebuyers. Principal
competitive factors include interest rates and other features of mortgage loan products available to the consumer.

Becanse the Company’s business is subject to varions regutatory and environmental limitations., it may nof be able to condut its business as planned.
The Company’s homebuilding segments are subject to vatious local, state and federal laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and
regulations concerning zoning, building design, construction, stormwater permitting and discharge and similar matters, as well as
open space, wetlainds and environmentally protecred areas. These include local regulations that impose restrictive zoning and
density requirements in order fo limit the number of homes that can be buile within the boundaries of a partcular area, as well as
other mumicipal or city land planning restrictions, requirements or limitations, The Company may also experence perodic delays
in homebuilding projects due to regulatory compliance, municipal appeals and other government planning processes in any of the
arcas in which it operates.

With respect to originating, processing, selling and servicing mortgage loans, the Company’s financial services segment is subject
to the rules and regulations of the FHA, FHLMC, FNMA, VA and U.S. Depariment of Housing and Urban Development.
Mortgage origination activities are further subject to the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, Federal Truth-in-Lending Act and the
Real Estate Sertlement Procedures Act and their associated regulations. These and other federal and stare statutes and regularions,
prohibit discrimination and establish underwriting guidelines which include provisions for audits, inspections and appraisals,
require credit reports on prospective borrowers, fix maximum loan amounts and require the disclosure of certain information
concerning credit and settlement costs. The Company is required to submit audited financial statements annually, and each agency
or other entity has its own financial requirements. The Company’s affairs are also subject to examination by these entities at all
times to assure complinnce with applicable regulations, policies and procedures.

The Company's ability 1o continse to grow the buitness and operations of the Company dependy fo a significant degree upon the Company’s abiliy Io
access capital on favorable terms,

"The ability ro access capital on favorable terms has been an important factor in growing the Company’s business and operations
in a profiable manner. In December 2007, Moody's lowered the Company’s debt rating to one level below investment grade with
a negative outlook, and S&P reaffirmed the Company’s investment grade rating, bur revised its outlook to negative. The loss of
nvestment grade rating could affect the cost of borrowing, capacity and covenants under the Company’s revolving credit faciliry,
and make it more difficult and cosily for the Company 1o access the debr capital markets for funds that may be required to
implement the Company’s business plans and achieve growth objectives.

Natural divasiers may bare a siguificant impact on the Company s bustness.

The climates and geology of many of the states in which the Company operates present increased risks of narural disasters. To the
extent that hurricanes, severe storms, tomadoes, earthquakes, droughts, floods, wildfires or other natural disasters or similar
events occur, its business in those states may be adversely affecred.

Because this report contains formard-looking statenents. it may nof prove fo be accurale.
This report and other Company releases and filings with the SEC may contain forward-looking statements. The Company
may.” “should,” “plan,” “project,”

Py oesl PIIRTY

generally identifies forward-looking statements using words like “believe,” “intend.” “expect,
“contemplate,” “anticipate,
statements reflect its current views concerning future events, they involve risks, uncerrintes and assumptions, including the risks
and uncertainties idenrified in this report. Acrual results may differ significantly from the results discussed 1 these

LI >

(Y

target,” “estimare,” “foresee,” “gon],” “likely,”” “will” or similar statements. Because these
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forward-looking sratements. The Company does not undertake 1o update its forward-looking statements or risk factors to reflect

future events or CIrCuUMSENCCS.

Itemn 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None,

Item 2. Properties

The Company leases office space for its corporate headquarters in Calabasas, California and for its T Department and RMC's
operations center in Scottsdale, Arizona. In addition, the Company leases office space in the various markets in which it operates.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Contingent habilities may arise from obligations incurred in the ordinary course of business or from the usual obligations of on-
site housing producers for the completion of contracts.

The Company is party 1o various other legal proceedings generally incidental fo its businesses. Based on evaluation of these
matters and discussions with counsel, management believes that liabilities ansing from these matters will not have a material
adverse effect on the financial condinon of the Company.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

During the fourth quarter of the fiscal vear ended December 31, 2007, there were no matters submirted o a vote of secunity

holders.

PART 11

[tem 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity

Securities

Market for Common Equity, Common Stock Prices and Dividends
The Company lists its common shares on the NYSE, trading under the symbol “RYL.” The latest reported sale price of the
Company’s common stock on February 12, 2008, was $28.45, and there were approximarely 2,003 common stockholders of

record.

‘The table below presents high and low market prices and dividend information for the Company.

DIVIDENDS DIVIDENDS

DECLARED DECLARED
2007 HIGH LOW  PERSHARE 2 1G] LOW PPLER SHARE
First quarter $60.13 $41.96 $0.12 It quanter S82.37 S64.43 80,12
Second quarter 48.61 3122 0.12  Sccond guarter 3.4 4164 0.12
Third quarter 39,33 20.19 0.12  'third uarter 16,16 34482 012
Fourth quarter 29.67 19.51 0.12  FFourth guarter 5648 42.69 0.12

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table summarizes the Company’s purchases of its own equity securities each quarter during the yvear ended

December 31, 2007:

(it theswsarech. except share diiia)

TOTAL NUMBER OF APPROXIMATE DOLLAR

TOTAL SHARES PURCHASED VALUE OF SHARES

NUMBER OF AVERAGE AS PART OF PUBLICLY THAT MAY YET BE

SHARES PRICE PAID ANNOUNCED PLANS PURCHASED UNDER THE

PERIOD PURCHASED PER SHARE OR PROGRAMS PLANS OR PROGRAMS

January 1—March 31 HU5,00K) S4R8.51 RUSARNE S158,175

April |—June 30 370,000 4289 RYXLLT 142,307

July 1 —September 30 - - - 142,307

Cretober 1—Decemnbaer 31 - - - 142,307
Total 1,265,100 S40.586 1,265 LN}




On December 12, 2005, the Company announced that it had received authorization from its Board of Directors to purchase
shares totaling $250.0 million, or approximately 3.5 mitlion shares, based on the Company’s stock price on thar dare. Dunng 2007,
there were approximately 518,000 shares repurchased in accordance with this authorization. At December 31, 2007, there were no
shares available for purchase in accordance with this authonzaton,

On December 6, 2006, the Company announced that it had received auwthonzation from its Board of Directors 1o purchase shares
totaling $175.0 million, or approximately 3.1 million shares, based on the Company’s stock price on that date. As of DDecember 31,
2007, approximately 747,000 shares had been repurchased in accordance with this authorization. At December 31, 2007, there
were approximately 5.2 million more shares available for purchase in accordance with this authonzation based on the Company’s
stock price on thar date. This authorization does not have an expiration date,

Performance Graph

The following performance graph and related information shall not be deemed “soliciting marerial” or be “filed” with the SIEC,
nor shall such information be incorporared by reference into any future filing under the Secunties Act or the Exchange Act,
except to the exrent that the Company specifically incorporates it by reference into such filing.

The following graph compares the Company’s cumulative total stockholder returns since December 31, 2002 to the Dow Jones
U.S, Flome Construction and the S&P 500 indices for the calendar years ending December 31:

COMPARISON OF 5-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among The Ryland Group, Inc., The S&P 500 Index
And The Dow Jones US Home Construction Index

$500

$400 -

$300 -

£200 -

$100

12/02 12/03 12/04 12/05 12706 12/07

—8—The Ryland Group, Inc.  —A—-S&P500 --O---Dow jJones US Home Construction

* ST furected on 12/ 3102 fu stock. or index-including reinvestment of dividends.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans
The Company’s equiny compensation plan informarion as of December 31, 2007, 1s summanzed as follows:

NUMBER OF SECURITIES

REMAINING AVAILABLE FOR

FUTURE ISSUANCE UNDER

NUMBER OF SECURITIES TO WEIGHTED-AVERAGE EXERCISE EQUITY COMPENSATION

BE ISSUED UPON EXERCISE PRICE OF OUTSTANDING PLANS (EXCLUDING

OF QUTSTANDING OFFIONS, OPTIONS, WARRANTS AND  SECURITIES REFLECTED IN

PLAN CATEGORY WARRANTS AND RIGHTS RIGHTS COLUMN (1))
@) ®) ©

Eguity compensation plans approved

by stockholders 4,276,166 S 3544 1,680,725
Hquity compensation plans not

approved by stockholders! - - -

!

Ryland does not have any equity compensation plans that have not been approved by stockhaldery.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

(in millions. except per shre datuf wnanidited 2007 2606 2005 24 20K

ANNUAL RESULTS

REVIENUES

Hormebuilding $2,960 §4.654 S4.726 S3.867 83,355
I'mancial services 72 103 [l 85 Y
TOTAL REVENUES 3,032 4757 4418 3952 344
Cost of sales 3,034 3.640 3538 2904 2,616
Selling, general and administrative expenses 418 542 551 467 427
Expense related to early retirement of debt - 8§ 8 - 3
. Farmings (loss) before txes 420) 567 7 321 396
. Tax expense (benefit} {86) 07 274 20t 154
NITT EARNINGS (LOSS) $(334) $360 S447 320 $242

YEAR-END POSITION
ASSETS

{Cash and eash equivalents $244 $215 461 S35 M7

Housing inventonics 1,813 2712 2,580 200 137

Oiher assets 485 430 e 313 294

: TOTAL ASSETS 2,542 A7 3387 2435 208
LIABILITIES

Debe 839 930 922 359 574

Other habilities and minority interest 578 50 1 L8G B9 oy

TOFIAL LIABLLITIES 1,417 1.006 2011 1,308 1183

STOCKHOLDERS BEQUITY $1,125 S1.511 S1.376 S1.0157 8425

PER COMMON SHARE DATA
NET EARNINGS (1.OSS)

Basic $(7.92) $8.14 $4.52 £6.72 S4.80

Iiluted (7.92) 783 903 6.36 4.560

IIVIDENDS DECLARED $0.48 S0.48 S0.30 Sir21 S0.08

, STOCKHOLDERS HOQUITTY $26.68 $35.46 529.68 $§21.32 $16.98
. OTHER FINANCIAL DATA .

! Adjusted ERITL A $260 744 SH14 Soid SR

| Adjusted ERITIIA/mterest incurred® 4.2X 113N 12.2N 114X T6N

| Returmn on beginning equiary? (22.1y% 26.2% 42,3, 3R A5.5"q

Net debt-to-capiald 34.6% 327 251" 30.8%0 23.8%

! Earnings before interest. taxes, depreciation and amortication and impairments (“Adjusted EBITIDAT) ic a mreasure commonly aied in the

homebuilding industry and iy presented to aivist in understanding the ability of the operations of the Company to generate cach beyond that
which is needed to service exctsiing interest reguirements and ongoing tax obligations. Adiusted EBITIDA equals net earnings (loss) before
(a) interest expense: (b) previoushy capitalized interest amorticed to cost of sales: (c} Income taxes: (d) depreciation and amortization. and

(e) inventory and other asset impairment charges and write-offs. Adjusted EBITDA is not a financial meaiire recognized in accordanve with
generally gecepted accanniing principles (“GAAP). Adiusted EBITDA thonld neither be considered an alternative 1o net earnings
determined in avcordance with GAARP ax an indicator of aperating performance nor an aliernative to cash flows from operating activities
determined i accordance with GAAP as a measnre of liguidity.

[

Adjusted EBITDA/ interest incurved iv caliulated as Adjusted EBITDA (defined aborve) divided by total interest incterved, which is the sum
of interest expense and capitalised interest Jor the periad.

Return on beginning equity is calirlated ax wet earninge (foss) divided by total stockbolders’ equity at the beginning of the pertod.

Net debt-to-capital is calentated as debt, net of cash. divided by the sumr of debi and total stockbolders” equity. net of cash. The Company
belierer the net debi-to-capital ratio &5 nsefnl in wnderstanding the leverage emplayed in ity operations and in comparing if with other
bomebuilders.



The following table sets forth the compuration of Adjusted EBITD.A for each period presented:

YEAR ENDEDR DECEMBER 31,

fin thopsandr) 2007 20K 2005 2004 20603
armings (luss) before txes $(420,098) S567. 108 $721.051 $521,212 5396217
Inventory and other asset impaimments and wrte-otts 583,363 41,314 3798 E388 1.210
Interest expense 98 205 738 1,227 7.523
Capitalized interest amortized to cost of sales 41,689 48,708 45,483 41,764 38,263
Depreciation and amortizatiom 54,494 40,731 43,160 38,519 36,436
Adjusied EBITDA $259,546 $7T44,066 S814.236 S64,310 S479.04Y

A reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA ro net cash provided by operations, the most directly comparable GAAP measure, 15

provided below for each penod presented.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

{in thowsuinds) 2007 20006 2003 ELL 20603
Net cash provided by {used for) operating activities $228,140 S14.637 $216.204 S(78.471) S139.471
(Decrease) increase in inventory (273,355) 263,44+ 494,769 587150 241,199
Tax expense (benefit) (86,572) 207166 27399 201,067 154,525
Deterred tax viluation albowance {75,166) - - - -
Interest expense 98 5 738 1,227 7.523
Capitalized interest amortized 1 cost of sales 41,689 48,708 45,483 41,764 38,263
Net change in ather assets, pavables and other linbilities 412,984 207488 (175.358) (1HA424) (67.248)
Stock-based compensation expense (12,257) {25.593) (18.862) (15.208) (16,051)
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options and vesting,

of restricted stock 6,714 14,632 (30,503) (17.473) (171209
Cther 17,274 3.379 1,708 (1920 (N3
Adjusted EBITDA $259,546 74066 §814.236 S6iH,310 S479.649




Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Forward-Looking Statements

Note: Certain statements i this Annnal Report nay be regarded as “forward-lookéng statensents” within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litrgation Reform Act of 1995, aud may qualify jor the safe harbor provided for in Section 21F of the Exvhange Alet. "These farward-looking
statements represent the Company’s expectations and beliefs concerning future events, and no assurance can be given that the resulls described in this
Awnual Report will be achieved. These forward-faoking staienents can generally be identified by the nie of itaterments that include words sich as
“anticipate,” “believe.” “estimate.” “expect.” “foresee.” “goal.” “iutend.” “fikely." “may.” ‘plan.” project.” “chonld,” “targer.” “will” or other similar
words or phrases. Al forward-tooking statements contained berein are based upon information avatlable to the Company on the date of this Annnal
Report. Exvept as may be required nnder applicable Jaw. the Campany doe not mudertake any obligation to update or revise any fanward-foking
statements, whether as o result of wew fnformation. fulure events or ofberwise.

These forward-tooking statements are subject fo ricks. uncertaintios and otber factors, many of which are outside of the Company s control. that could
casie actual resalts to differ materially from the results discnssed fu the forward-fooking statements. Vhe factors and assumptions upon which any
Sorward-hooking statements herein are based are subject to risks and uncertainties which include, among others:

*  economic changes nationally or i the Company's local marketi, includiug volafikity and increases in futerest raies. inflation. changes in
consumer demand and confidence levels and the stute of the market for homes in general;

v instabifity and wnceriainty i the mor{gage lending market. including revisions to underwriting standards for berrowers;

*  the availability and cost of land:

o increased land developmient costs on projects uider devefoprzent;

» shortages of skélled labor or raw materials used in the production of houses:

*  imcreased prices for fabor. land and raw materials nved in the production of boses;

*  fucreased compelition;

*  Jailure to auticipate or redct fo changing cousumer preferences in home desighn;

*  ucreased costs and delays in fand development or hame construction resulting from adverse weather conditions;

= potential defays or fncreased costs i obtaining mecessary permits ai a resuft of changes fo laws. reglations or gorernmental policies (fnchuding
these that affect souing. denstty, building standards and the environment):

o delays in obtaining approvals from applicable regulatery agencier and otbers in connection with the Company’s communtties and Jand activiltes;

o the risk factors sef forth in this Annual Report on Form 10-K: and

*  other factors over which the Company has little or no controf,

Results of Operations

Overview

Over the last several vears, the price appreciation of homes was relatively high in most markets and, in tum, artracted speculation.
Beginning in 2006, as appreciation slowed, declining consumer confidence and demand caused national homebuilders to
experience increasing inventodes, which resulted in a dramatic tise in the number of homes available for sale and a softening of
demand for new homes. During the larter half of 2007, a significant decrease in the availability of mortgage producrs resulung
from increased mdustry loan delinquencies and foreclosure rates, and the related tightening of credin standards, further impacted
the industry and the Compam’s ability 1o attract qualified homebuyers. These factors have exacerbated already high invenrory
levels of new and resale homes, increased cancellation levels and weakened consumer confidence. As a result, during 2007, the
Company continued 1o report declines in the volume of homes sold, decreases in prices, high sales contract cancellation rates and
additional vatuation adjustments. 1n an effort to compensate for these developments, it has amended its operating strategy 1o
focus on cash generation and moderation of nsk through increased sales price discounts and other incentives; opportunistic land
sales: reductions in excess inventory and commitments to purchase land in the furure through contract renegotiations and
cancellations; controlled development spending; renegonations of contracts with subcontractors and suppliers: and reductions in
overhead expense to more closely march projected volume levels. (See discussion in “Part 1, Trem LA, Risk Factors.”)

Due to the Company’s increased use of price reductions and sales incentives. the Company’s evaluation of its inventory through
quarterly impairment analyses during 2007 resulted in $504.0 million of invenrory valuation adjustments. Charges of $77.2 mullion
related ro the abandonment of land purchase option contracts reflect the deteroration of specific related rerurns and the
assumprion that recent price reductions are indicative of price levels for the foreseeable future, In addition, the Company
established a valuation allowance against certain deferred tax assets in accordance with Starement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 109 (“SFAS 109™), “Accounting for Income Taxes.” These assets were largelv the result of inventory impairments
taken during the vear and reflect uncertainty with regard to the duration of current conditions in houstng markets. Should the
Company generare significant taxable income in future vears, it will reverse the allowance in the form of a lower effective income
tax rate. Additionally, the Company evaluated the recoverability of 1ts goodwill. Goodwill decreased from $18.2 million ar
December 31, 2006, to $2.8 million at December 31, 2007, due to a $15.4 mullion impairment charge i the first quarter of 2007,
and is now among the lowest in the industry.

—
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For the vear ended December 31, 2007, the Company reported a consolidated net loss of $333.5 million, or $7.92 per diluted
share, compared to earnings of $359.9 million, or $7.83 per diluted share, for 2006 and $447.1 miliion, or $9.03 per diluted share,
for 2005. Excluding these impatrments and charges, the Company’s earnings for 2007 would have been £107.2 million, or

$2.49 per share. The decrease in earings for 2007, compared to 2006, was due to a decline in revenues and lower margins, the
latter resulting from inventory valuation adjustments and other write-offs, as well as from a more competitive sales environment
in most markets. The decline in camings for 2006, compared to 2005, resulted from a broad wend roward softening demand in
residential housing and a more competitive sales environment in most markers, as well as from inventory valuation adjusiments
and write-offs of deposits and preacquisition costs that accompanied selective Jocal market weakness.

Total revenues were $3.0 billion for the vear ended December 31, 2007, compared to $4.8 billion for the same period n 2006. The
decrease was primarily due to a decline in closings, average closing price and mortgage originations. Total revenues for 2006
decreased from 2005 levels by $60.4 million, or 1.3 percent, primasily due to a decline in closing volume, partially offset by an
increase in average sales price. Homebuilding pretax operating margins were negative 4.4 percent for 2007, compared to

12.3 percent for 2006 and 15.8 percent for 2005. The decreases in marging were primarily due to mcreased price concessions and
sales incentives in most markers, as well as to inventory and goodwill valuation adjustments and write-offs.

Excluding noncash impairments, Adjusted EBUTTXA was §259.5 million for the vear ended December 31, 2007, compared to
§744.1 million and $814.2 million for the same periods in 2006 and 2005, respectively. The Company’s ratio of Adjusted EBITDA
to interest incurred was 4.2 for the vear ended December 31, 2007, compared to 10.3 for 2006 and 12.2 for 2005. In an effort to
position itself for competitive industry conditions in 2008, the Company generated cash flow from its operanions, in part, by
reducing land acquisitions, development activiry and its obligations to take down land in the furure. At December 31, 2007, it had
20,418 fewer lots under control, or a 33.9 percenr decrease from year-end 2006.

The Company’s balance sheet continues to reflect its low-risk strategy and transparency. The Company ended the year with
$243.6 million in cash and no borrowings against its revolving credir facility, The Company is not a significant participant in off-
halance sheet financing outside of traditional oprion contracts with land developers, and its invesiments in joint venrures
represent 1.2 percent of its total assets. The Company’s net debt-to-capital ratio was 34.6 percent at December 31, 2007,
compared to 32.7 percent for the same period in 2006. As a result of the revaluation of a significant portion of inventory and
deferred tax assets, and balancing cash flow with inventon management and leverage objectives, stockholders” equiry per share
declined by 24.8 percent o $26.68 in 2007, compared 1o $35.46 in 2006. The Company’s book value at December 31, 2007, was
99.8 percent tangible.

Homebuilding Overview

The combined homebuilding operations reported pretax losses of $425.0 million for 2007, compared to earnings of $573.1 milhon
for 2006 and $744.2 million for 2005. Homebuilding results in 2007 decreased from 2006 primarily due 1o a decline in closings
and margins and to the impact of inventory valuation adjustments and write-offs. Homebuilding results in 2006 decreased from
2005 due to an environment of slowing demand that resulted in declining prices and valuations, which led, in turn, o a decline in
gross profit margins, closing volume and average closing price.

STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

YEAR ENDEL DECEMBER 31,

(8 11 thesednds 2007 206 2005
REVENUES
Heusing $2,937,435 34,545,594 S4.62R,869
and and other 22,759 K326 90,862
TOTAL REVENUES 2,960,194 4,653,920 4,725,751
EXPENSES
Cost of sales
Housing 2,433,426 3,482,142 3,363,788
Laad and other 21,595 83,530 73011
Valuztion adjustments and wate-olts 578,778 74,307 RO
Total cost of sales 3,033,799 3640075 3.537.603
Sclting, gencral and administrative 351,376 440,702 443, Y38
TOTAL EXPENSES 3,385,175 4080777 3,981,541
PRETAX EARNINGS (LOSS) $(424,981) $573,143 §744.210
Closings (swit) 10,319 13342 16,673
I ousing gross profit marging (2.5)% 218" 25.2%
Selling, general and admimstrative expense 11.9% 0.5% G4

New orders represent sales contracts that have been signed by the homebuver and approved by the Company, subject 10
cancellation. The dollar value of new orders decreased $78(1.2 million, or 24.3 percent, to $2.4 billion for the vear ended
December 31, 2007, from $3.2 bitlion for the yvear ended December 31, 2006, primarily due to slowing demand. The dollar value
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of new orders declined Dy 37.5 pereent to 33.2 hillion in 2006 from $3.1 billion for the same penod in 2005, pamarly due o
slowing demand and increases in cancellation rates. This decrease in new orders was primanky antributable to a softening of
demand in most markets and # more competitive sales environment. Additdonally, market uncertainty and heightened pricing
competition among homebuilders led to rising cancellation rates by homebuyers and were a major factor i these declines.
Cancellation rates totaled 37.0 percent and 37.1 percent for the vears ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Unii
orders decreased 19.3 percent in 2007 and 36.4 percent in 2006,

Homebuilding revenues fell 36.4 percent for 2007, compared 10 2006, due to a 33.0 percent decrease in closings and a 3.4 percent
decrease in average closing price. The decline in closings in 2007 was due 1o slowing marker rrends, changes in the availability of
financing for its customers and a more competitive sales environment in most markets. Homebuilding revenues fell 1.5 percent
for 2006, compared 10 2003, due 1o a 7.7 percent decrense in closings, partially offser by a 6.1 percent increase in average closing
price. The decline in closings in 2006 was due o slowing marker rends and a more competitive sales environment in most
markets. The increase in average closing price was primarily due 10 the delivery of homes i 2006 that were sold in 2005 under
more [avorable market conditions.

Consistent with its policy of managing land investments according to rerurn and risk rargers, the Company exccuted several land
and lot sales during the year. Homehuilding revenues for the year ended December 31, 2007, included $21.2 million from land
and lot sales, compared to $94.3 million for 2006 and $96.9 million for 2005, which contributed net gains of $1.2 million,

$24.8 million and $23.9 million to pretax earnings in 20K7, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Gross prefit margins averaged negative 2.5 percent for 20007, a decrease from 21.8 percent for 2006 and 25.2 percent for 2005.
The decline in 2007 was primarily attributable to a more competitive marker that resulted in an increase in price concessions and
sales incentives; inventory valuation adjustments; write-offs of deposits and certain acquisition costs during the year. Gross profit
margins, excluding tnventory valuation adjustments and write-offs, totaled 17.1 percent, 23.4 percent and 25.2 percent for the
yvears ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively. Price concessions and sales incentives, as a percentage of revenues,
totaled 12.1 percent and 7.1 percent for the vears ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The effect of pnce declines,
saluation adjustments and write-offs was partially offser by the amortization of valuation allowances based on home closings,
which impacrcd gross margins by 2.6 percent and 0.1 percent, for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

I accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. t44 (“SFAS 1447), “Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” inventory is reviewed for potential write-downs on an ongoing basis. SFAS 144 requires that, in
the event that impairment indicators are present. impairment chatges are required 1o be recorded if the fair value of such assets is
less than their carrying amounts. Undiscounted cash flow projections are generated at a communiry level based on estimates of
revenues, costs and other factors. The Company’s analvsis of these communities generally assumes flat revenues when compared
with current sales orders for particular ot comparable communities. The Company’s determinanon of fair value is prmarily based
on discounting the estimated cash flows at a rate commensurate with inherent risks that are ussociated with assets and related
estimated cash flow streams. Valuation adjustments are recorded against homes completed or under construction, land under
development and improved lots when events or circumstances indicate thar the carrving values are grearer than the fuir values,
Due to continued pressure on home prices sympromatic of excess home inventories in many markets combined with the
mndusiry’s recent predisposition toward a reduction in land optien pipelines, the Company recorded inventory impairment charges
of $504.0 million and $62.9 million during the vears ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, in order to reduce the
carrving value of the impaired communities to their estimated fair value. Approxumately 88 percent of these impairment charges
were recorded to residential land and lors and land held for development and approximately 12 percent of these charges were
recotded ro residential construction in progress and finished homes in im‘en'fory. At December 31, 2007, the fair value of the
Company’s inventory subject to valuation adjustments during the vear, net of $5304.0 million of impairments, was $388.3 million.
There were 86 communities with write-downs in 2007, compared o 16 communities in 2006. The inventory impairment charges
and wite-offs of deposits and acquisition costs reduced total homebuilding gross profit, as a percenrage of revenues, by

19.6 percent in 2007 and 1.6 percent in 2006, Should market conditions detertorate or costs increasc, it is possible that the
Company’s estimates of undiscounted cash flows from irs communitics may decline, resulting in additional furure inventory
impairment charges.

‘The Company periodically writes off earnest money deposits and feasibiline costs related o kand and lot option contracts that it no
longer plans 10 pursue. During the vear ended December 31, 2007, the Company wrote off $72.6 million and $4.6 million of
earnest money deposits and feasibility costs, respectively, that related o land purchase option contracts which ir would not
pursue. For the same period in 2006, write-offs of earnest money deposits and feasibility costs related to land purchase option
contracts that the Company would not pursue were $10.9 million and $6.9 million, tespectively. Should currently weak
homebulding market conditions persist or deteriorate and the Company be unsuccessful in irs efforts to renegotiare certain land
purchase contracts, it may write off additional earnest money deposits and feasibility costs in future pernods.
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Selting, general and administrative expenses, as a percentage of revenue, were 11.9 percent for 2007, 3.5 percent for 2006 and

9.4 percent for 2005. The percentage increase for 2007, compared 1o 2006, was mainly attributable to a goodwill impairment
charge of $15.4 million; an $8.3 million charge relating o severance and relocation costs; charges of $4.6 million for feasibiliry
cost write-offs; and higher marketing and advertising costs per unit, partially offset by reduced incentive compensation expense.
Selling, general and administrative expense dollars decreased $89.3 million for the vear ended December 31, 2007, versus the same
period in 2006. Selling, general and administrative expenses, as a percentage of tevenue, remained relanvely flat in 2006, compared
to 2003, due to cost reduction efforts made in the face of declining revenues in vardous markets and a decrease in compensation
that was commensutate wirth lower earnings, partially offset by $6.9 million in feasibility cost write-offs that resulted from the
abandonment of certain projects.

Interest is incurred prncipally ro finance land acquisitions, land developmens and home construction, and totaled $62.0 million,
£71.8 million and $66.0 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. In 2007, 2006 and 2005, the homebulding segments
capitalized all interest incurred, resulting in no interest expense being recorded dunng those perods due to development actvity.
{See “Housing Inventories” within Note A, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.”)

Homebuilding Segment Information
The Company’s homebuilding operations consist of four geographically derermined regional reporning segmenrs: North,
Southeast, Texas and West,

Conditions have been increasingly challenging in geographical areas that have previously expenenced the highesr price
appreciation, such as the California, Florida, Las Vegas, Phoenix and Washington 12.C., markers. As a result of declining
affordability, decreased demand and changes in buver perception, the excess supply of housing inventory has reached higher
levels in these areas. In an attempt to maintain market share and reduce inventory investment to match cuzrent sales volume
levels, the Company has increased its use of sales discounting and incentives, As a result, it has taken significant additional
impairments in the North, Southeast and West regions. To date, the discounting has been most pronounced in the Company’s
West region due to dramatic price declines resulting from these markets expenencing more difficult conditions with regard to
affordability and mortgage financing availability. Of the Company’s total lots or homes with valuation adjustmenrs during 2006
and 2007, 1,394 lors with impairments were taken in the North, 3,170 in the Southeast, 108 in the Texas and 5,633 m the West
regions, respectively. Because the Company has impaired 100.0 percent, 87.8 percent and 100.0 percent of its lots owned in the
California, Las Vegas and Phoenix markets, respecrively, during 2007 and 2006, lot valuations in these markets at December 31,
2007 were approximately 32.0 percent of original carrving values and reflect current distressed market conditions. As a result of
these impairments and price discounts, sales declines in the West were more moderare in the fourth quarter of 2007,

The following table provides a summasy of the Company’s inventory impairments taken for the years ended December 31, 2007
and 2006:

2007 20000
OPTION OPTIHON

INVENTORY DEPOSIT FEASIBILITY INVENTORY  DEPOSIT  FEASIBILITY

VALUATION WRITE- COST VALUATION WRITL- COST
frn thsands} ADJUSTMENTS OFFS WRITE-OFFS  TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS OFFS WRITE-OFFS TOTAL
Narth $86,957 $24,697 $2,640  $114,294 §3.094 §2.330 $1.514 §7.547
Southeast 112,721 24,079 L7 137,971 1,789 kRt 2659 7657
Texas 2,744 501 274 3,519 LY 87 161 348
West 301,533 23,305 500 325,338 57,327 5.303 2.583 (5,213
T'otal $503,955 $72,582 $4,585  $581,122 $62.910 SL.Y38 S6.917  SHILTGOS

New Ordery

New orders for 2007 decreased 16.4 percent in the North, 22.2 percent in the Southeast, 27.1 percent in Texas and 4.6 percenr in
the West. New orders for 2006 decreased 31.1 percent in the North, 43.8 percenr in the Southeast, 12,6 percent in Texas and

54.7 percent in the West. In 2007 and 2006, the decline in new orders was primarily due to a softening of demand in most
markets and a more competitive sales environment. The cancellation rate was 37.0 percent for the vear ended December 31, 2007,
versus 37.1 percent and 22.3 percent for 2006 and 20053, respecti\‘el_\'.

The Company experiences seasonal variations in 1ts quarterly operating results and capital requirements, Historically, new order
activity is higher in the spring and summer months, As a result, it typically has more homes under construction, closes more
homes, and has greater revenues and operating income in the third and fourth quarters of uts fiscal year. This is pnmanly due ro
the preference of many homebuyvers 1o act dunng those penods.



The following table is a summary of the Company’s new orders (units and aggregate sales value) for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005;

2007 2006 2005

Y% Ya o " Yo "

(83 i millions) UNITS CHG DOLLARS CHG UNITS CHIG DOLLARS CHG O UNTIS (LG DOLLARS  CHG
North 2,49 (26.9)% §765  (21.1)% 27 (311" sY70 (2R 4,333 (1.9 $1.355 2H%
Southeast 2,461 (22.2) 653 (29.1} 31604 (43.8) 921 (43.2) 5,63 124 1,021 327
Texus 2,359 {21.1) 494 (24.3) 3.237 (12.0) 653 {3.9) 3702 12.2 680 234
West 1,666 (4@ 518 {22.3) 1,796 (547 666 (55.(?) 3 R52 (7.2) | 480 9.9
Total 8,982 (19.3)% $2,430 (24.3)% 11,134 (.”(1.4)"'0 S3210 (37.5)" 17537 3.48% $5,136 158"

The following table provides the Company’s cancellation percenrages for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005:

YEAR ENDELY DECEMBER 31,

2007 2006 2005

North 34.8% 315" 19.7%
Southeast 39.7 300 17.6
Texas 351 322 284
West 38.3 48.3 25.3
Total 37.0% 371" 2230,

The cancellation rate for the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2007, was 46.2 percent, compared to 43.0 percent in the third
quarter of 2007 and 49.2 percent in the fourth quarter of 2006.

Closings
The following table provides the Company’s closings and average closing prices for the vears ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005:

2007 200K K05

AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE

(8¢ it thosiands) UNITS PRICE UNITS PRICE UNITS PRICI
North 2,687 $£318 3,004 $320 4367 S310
Southeast 3,154 292 5,126 203 4,887 254
Texas 2,703 210 3546 193 3305 177
West 1,775 335 316 345 40054 350
Toal 10,319 $285 15,392 8295 16,673 $278

Ouitstanding Confracts

Outstanding contracts denote the Company’s backlog of homes sold but not closed, which are generally hutlt and closed, subject
to cancellation, over the subsequent rwo quarters, At December 31, 2007, the Company had outstanding contracts for 2,869 units,
representing a 31.8 percent decrease from the same period in 2006. The $786.4 million value of cutstanding contracis at
December 31, 2007, represented a decrease of 39.2 percent from the same period in 2006, pnmanly due 1o a 19.3 percent decline
in unit orders. Average sales price decreases resulted primarily from slowing market trends and a more competitive sales
environment. Quistanding contracts ar December 31, 2007, represented approximarely 33.8 percent of 2008 rargered closings.

DECEMBER 31, 2007 LDECEMBIER 31, 20006 DECEMBER 31, 2065

AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE

{85 in thowsnds) UNITS DOLLARS PRICE UNI1¥ DOLLARS PRICE  UNITS DOLLARS PRICI
North 966 $297,909 $307 1.157 S386.510 $334 1,774 $570.559 §322
Southeast 946 257,493 272 1,639 526,383 321 3o 1,106,344 x7
Texas 676 155,315 230 1.020 228415 224 1,329 258814 195
West 281 75,665 269 390 132,620 391 1,760 GRO,26 390
Total 2,869 $786,382 $274 42406 §1.293.928 S8 8464 $2,621,743 S3n
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STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

The following summary provides results for the homebuilding segments for the vears ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

(i thoresands) 2007 KNG 205
NORTH
Revenues $857,448 S1,196,335 S1,388,208
Lixpenses
Cost of sales 805,949 917,804 1,023.752
Selling, general and adminisirative expenses 88,576 107 895 123273
Toral expenses §94,525 1.0125,699 147,025
Pretax carmings (loss) $(37,077) S17L.636 SHLIH3
Housing gross profin marging 5.9% 23.4% 265"
SOUTHEAST
Revenues $929,168 §1,522.123 S1238.373
Iixpenses
Cost of sales 886,735 1,128,421 962,634
Selling, general and administrative expenses 101,852 140,582 116,497
Total expenses 988,587 1,269 (K13 1,079,134
Pretax cartings (loss) $(59,419) $253,120 $170.242
Housing gross profit margins 4.7% 25.9%% 23.4%
TEXAS
Revenues $571,689 $6Y3.356 5619332
Expensus
Cost of sales 479,802 5641013 509,818
Selling, general and admimistrative expenses 64,789 71499 65,2006
Total expenses 544,591 633,512 375,024
Pretax carnings $27,098 $59.854 S44.308
Haousing gross profit margins 16.1% 18.5" 17.9%
WEST
Revenues $601,889 SE240.106 S1459.838
fixpenses
Cuost of sales 861,313 1029847 1,041,399
Selitng, gencral and adminisirative expenses 96,159 120,726 138962
Total expenses 957,472 1,150,573 1180361
Pretax carnings {loss) $(355,583) SKY,533 §279.477
Housing gross proit marging (43.71)% 16.8" 284"
TOTAL
Revenues $2,960,194 $4.653.920 $4.725.751
Fxpenses
Cast of sales 3,033,799 3640075 35370603
Selling, generab and administrative expenses 351,376 440,702 43,038
Total expenses 3,385,175 B0 TTT 398154
Pretax eamings {loss) $(424,981) $573.143 744,210
[Tousing gross profit marging {2.5)% 218" 25.2"

Homebuilding Segments 2007 verins 2006

North—FHomebuilding revenues decreased by 28.3 percent to $857.4 million in 2007 from $1.2 hillion in 2006 primarily due to a
25.4 percent decline in the number of homes delivered. Gross margins on home sales were 3.9 percent in 2007, compared 1o
234 percent in 2006. This decrease was poimarily attributable to inventory valuation adjustments and wrire-offs of $111.7 million,
as well as to increased price concessions and sales incentives, which were 13.2 percent of revenues m 2007, versus 7.9 percent in
2000. As a result, the North region incurred $37.1 millton of pretax losses in 2007, compared with $170.6 million of pretax
earnings in 2006,

Southeast—Homebuilding revenues were $929.2 million in 2007, compared ro $1.3 billion in 2006, a decrease of 39.0 percent,
ptimarily due to a 38.3 percent decline in the number of homes delivered. Gross margins on home sales were 4.7 percent in 2007,
compared to 25.9 percenr in 2006. Gross margins on home sales decreased in 2007 primanly due to inventory valuation
adjustments and write-offs of $136.8 million, as well as to increased price concessions and sales incentives that toraled

12.2 percent of revenues for 2007, versus 3.6 percent for the same pedod in 2006. As a resul, the Southeast region incurred
$39.4 million of pretax losses in 2007, compared with 3253.1 million of premx earnings in 20006.

Texas—Homebuilding revenues decreased by 17.8 percen to $571.7 million in 2007 from 36954 million in 2006 primanly due to
# 23.8 percent dechine n the number of homes delivered, partially offset by an 8.8 percent increase in average sales price. Gross
margins on home sales decreased to 16.1 percent in 2007, compared o 18.5 percent in 2006, primarily due to the mix of product
delivered during the vear, as well as to inventory valuation adjustments and write-offs of $3.2 million and increased price
concesstons and sales incentives that totaled 7.4 percent of revenues for 2007, versus 6.3 percent for the same peniod in 2006, As
a result, the Texas region gencrated $27.1 million of pretax earnings in 2007, down from $59.9 million of pretax earnings in 2006.
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West—HMHomebuilding revenues decreased $638.2 million, or 31.3 percent, to $6011.9 million in 2007, compared 1o 31.2 billion in
2006, primarily due to a 43.0 percent decline in the number of homes delivered and 1o a 13.0 percent decrease n average closing
price. Gross margins on home sales were negarive 43.7 percent in 2007, compared o 16.8 percent in 2006. Gross margins on
home sales decreased in 2007 due to inventory valuation adjustments and write-offs of $324.8 million, as well as to increased price
concessions and sales incentives that totaled 14.7 percent of revenues for 2007, compared 1o 8.7 percent for 2006, In addinon,
sclling, general and administrative costs were 16.0 percent of revenues in 2007, due to declining leverage, severance and relocation
costs and feasibility cost write-offs. As a result, the West region incurred $355.6 million of prerax losses in 2007, compared with
$82.5 million of pretax earnings m 2006,

Flomebnilding Segments 2006 versus 2005

North—Homebuilding revenues decreased by 13.8 percent 1o $1.2 billion in 2006 from $1.4 billion in 2005 primanly duc to a
17.5 percent decline in the number of homes delivered in all of the markets in this segment, partially offset by 2 3.2 percent
increase in average closing price. Gross margins on home sales were 23.4 percent in 2006, compared to 26.5 percent in 2003.
Gross margins on home sales decreased in 2000 primarily due to increased price concessions and sales incentives that totaled
7.9 percent of revenues in 2006, versus 3.9 percent in 2003, As a result, the North region generated $170.6 million of pretax
earnings in 2006, down from $241.2 million of pretax earnings in 2003,

Southeast—Homebuilding revenues were $1.5 billion in 2006, compared to $1.3 billion 1 2005, an increase of 21.0 percent,
primarily due to a 4.9 percent rise in the number of homes delivered and a 154 percent increase in the average sales price. Gross
margins on home sales were 25.9 percent in 2006, compared to 23.4 percent in 20085, Gross margins on home sales increased in
2006 primarily due 1o a 15.4 percent rise in average sales price and 1o a change in mix in prices and profitability of homes
delivered, partially offset by an increase in price concessions and sales incentives. Price concessions and sales incentives, as a
percentage of revenue, for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, were 5.0 percent and 3.4 percent, respectively, As a
resulr, the Southeast region generated $253.1 million of pretax carnings in 2006, an increase from $179.2 million of pretax
amings in 2005,

Texas—Homebuilding revenues increased by 12.3 percent to $693.4 million in 2006 from $619.3 million in 2003 primarily due to
a 3.4 percent increase in the number of homes delivered and a 9.0 percent increase in average sales price. Gross margins on home
sales were 18.5 percent in 2006, compared to 17.9 percent in 2005, As a resulr, the Texas region generated 359.9 million of pretax
srnings m 2006, an increase from $4-40.3 mllion of pretax earmings in 2005,

West—Homebuilding revenues decreased $219.7 million, or 15.1 percent, 1o $1.2 hillion in 20006, compared to $1.5 hillion in
2005, primarily due to a 23.1 percent decline in the number of homes delivered, partially offset by an 8.1 percent increase m
average closing price. Gross margins on home sales were 16.8 percent in 2006, compared ro 28.4 percent in 2005. Gross margins
on home sales decreased mn 20006 due 1o an increase in sales incentives, inventory valuation adjustments and deposit write-offs.
Price concessions and sales incentives, as a percentage of revenue, were 8.7 percent and 3.5 percent for the vears ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. As a result, the West region generated $89.5 million of pretax earnings in 2006, down
from $279.5 million of pretax earnings in 2005,

Financial Services

The Company’s financtal services segment provides mortgage-related products and services, as well as ntle, escrow and insurance
services, to its homebuyers and subcontractors. By aligning its operations with the Company’s homebuilding segments, the
financial services segment leverages this relationship to provide lending services ro homebuyers. In addirtion to being a valuable
asset to customers, the financial services segment generates a profit for the Company. Providing mortgage financing and other
scrvices to its customers allows the homebuilder to better monitor its backlog and closing process. Currenty, the majority of all
loans are sold within one business day of the date they close. The third party then services and manages the loans, assuming the
credir risk of borrower defaulr. The Company also provides construction-related insurance to subcontractors in its western
markets. Additonally, the financial services segment provides insurance for liabiliry risks, specifically homeowners” warranty
coverage, arsing in connection with the homebuilding business of the Company.
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STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

YEAR ENDED PDECEMBIER 31,

(85 in thousands} 2007 2000 2005
REVENUES
Net gams on sales of mortgages
and morgage sesvicing rights $31,126 344,231 S45.918
Tule/escrow /insurance 33,734 41,086 28,489
Net origination fees 6,397 16,552 15032
[nterest and ather 1,143 1,427 2376
TOTAL REVENUES 72,400 103,296 91,815
EXPENSES 31,473 35,61 32442
PRETAX EARNINGS $40,927 S67,695 350073
Omngnacions (s} 7,653 11744 12,774
Ryland Heomes origination capture rate 78.8% B9 81.9%
Mortgage-Dacked securitics and notes receivable averape balance 5446 SE07 $7.365

In 2007, RMC’s mortgage origination operations consisted primarily of mortgage loans odginated in connection with the sale of
the Company’s homes. The number of mortgage originations was 7,633 for 2007, compared to 11,744 for 2006 and 12,774 for
2005. During 2007, total dollar originations were $1.9 billion, of which 99.6 percent was for purchases of homes built by the
Company and the remaining amount was for either purchases of homes built by others, purchases of existing homes or
refinancing of existing mortgage loans. The capture rate of morigages originated for customers of the Company’s homebuilding
operations was 78.8 percent in 20077 and 81.9 percent for both 2006 and 2005.

The financial services segment reported pretax earnings of $40.9 million for 2007, compared to $67.7 million for 2006 and

$59.4 million for 2005. The decrease in 2007, compared to 2006, was primarily artriburable 1o a 34.8 percent decline in the
number of mortgages onginated due to a stowdown in the homebuilding market, a decline in the availabiliey of mortgage products
and a 1.8 percent decrease in loan size, partially offser by a §4.4 million gain on the sale of msurance renewal business m the
fourth quarter of 2007. The increase in 2006, versus 2003, was primarily due to increased income from insurance services and a
6.5 percent rise in average loan size, offset by an 8.1 percent decrease in loans originated.

Revenues for the financial services segment declined 29.9 percent to $72.4 million for 2007, compared ro $103.3 million for 2006.
The decrease was primarily attributable to the reduced volume of loans originared and sold. In 2006, revenues for the financial
services segment increased 12.5 percent 10 $103.3 million from $91.8 million in 2005 due to a $312.6 million increase in utle,
escrow and insurance revenues, partially offset by reduced interest income from a declining investment portfolio and reduced
revenue from the origination and sale of mortgages.

General and administrative expenses decreased to $31.5 million for the vear ended December 31, 2007, from $35.6 million for the
vear ended December 31, 2006, primarily due to personnel reductions made in an effort to align overhead with lower production
volumes, partially offset by an increase of $2.0 million in mortgage indemnification expense. General and administrative expenscs
rose for the vear ended December 31, 2006, compared to 2005, primarily as a result of additional expenses incurred in the
Company’s insurance operations.

Interest expense decreased 52.2 percent for the vear ended December 31, 2007, compared to 2006, and declined 72.2 percent for
2006, compared to 2005, due to continued runoff and redempnion of the Company’s mortgage-backed securities portfolio.

In August 2007, increased delinquencies of primarily “subprime” mortgages in secondary markets resulted 1 a significanr
decrease in the availability of these mortgage products. During the fourth quarter of 2007, RMC did not onginate mortgage loans
that would be classified as “subprime” or “Ali-A.”" All of the mortgage loans originated by RAMC during the fourth quarter of 2007
were either “government” or “prime” mortgage loans. “Prime” mortgage loans are generally defined as agency loans
(ENMA/FHLMC) and any nonconforming loans that would otherwise meet agency cntena. Generally, they are borrowers with
FICO scores that exceed 620. Approximately 96 percent of the mortgage loans originated by RMC during the fourth quarter of
2007 were sold to Countnwide Financial Corporation (“Countrywide™) pursuant to their loan purchase agreement with the
Company. The remaining loans were sold to investors, such as U.S. Bank Corporation, or to specialized state bond loan
programs. With respect to the loan purchase program with Countrywide, except in rare circumstances, RAMC is not required 1o
repurchase mortgage loans where the borrower makes the first payment. Many of the morrgage loans originated by RMC are
insured against losses. Generally, the Company is required to indemnify Countrywide, or another participating lender to which
mortgage loans are sold, if there are losses due to errors caused by RMC or when it is shown that there has been fraud on the part
of the borrower that was known or should have been known by RAMC. Tt is unusual for the Company (o repurchase a mortgage
loan that it oniginates and has subsequently sold. As a result, the Company does not expect to suffer any material losses due to the
repurchase of nonperforming mortgage loans during the fiscal vear commencing January 1, 2008,

[{S]
(]



Corporate

Corporate expenses were $33.6 million for 2007, $66.0 million for 2006 and $74.3 million for 2005. Corporate expense for 2007,
compared to 2006 and 2003, declined primarily due to lower incentive compensation expense that resulted from declining
arnings and stock price,

In 2007, the Company recorded an aggregate expense of approximately $490,000 that was associated with the early redemprion of
$100.0 million of its 5.4 percent senior notes due June 2008, The Company redeemed $75.0 nulhion and $25.0 million, a1 stated
call prices of 100.2 percent and 100.8 percent, of the principal amount of the notes in August and December of 2007,
respectively,

In 2006, the Company recorded an expense of $7.7 million that was associated with the early redemption of $150.0 million of its
9.1 percent senior subordinated notes due June 2011, of which it owned $6.5 nullion, at a stated eall price of 104.6 percent of the
principal amount.

In 2005, the Company recorded an expense of $8.3 million that was associated with the eardy redemption of 3150.0 million of us
9.8 percent senior notes due September 2010, of which it owned $3.0 million, at a stated call price of 1049 percent of the
principal amount.

Investments in Joint Ventures

At December 31, 2007, the Company participated in seven active joint ventures in the Austin, Chicago, Dallas, Denvet, Las Vegas
and Orlando markets, one of which was consolidared. These joint ventures exist for the purpose of acquisition and co-
development of land parcels and lots, which are then sold to the Company, its joint venture parmers or others at market prices.
Depending on the number of joins ventures and the level of activity in the entides, annual eamnings from the Company’s
investment in joint ventures will van- significandy. ‘The Company’s investments in its unconsolidated joint ventures roraled

$30.8 million at December 31, 2007, compared to $13.5 million at December 31, 2006. The Company’s equity in earnings from
unconsolidated joint ventures in 2007 toraled approximarely $342,000, compared to losses of $260,000 in 2006 and catnings of
$315,000 in 2005. (See “Investments in Joint Ventures” within Note A, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.”)

Income Taxes

'The Company’s provision for income mx presented an effective income tax henefit rate of 20.6 percent for the year ended
December 31, 2007, compared 10 an effective provision rate of 36.5 percent and 38.0 percent for the same perieds in 2006 and
2003, respectively. The decrease in the effective tax rate for 2007, compared to 2006, was primarily due to 1 noncash tax charge of
$75.2 million establishing a valuation allowance related to the Company’s deferred tax assets in accordance with SFAS 10% and the
impact of lower pretax carnings for the vear. The decrease in the effective 1ax rate for 2006, compared to 2005, was primarily
attriburable to prior vears' tax provisions no longer required due 1o the expiration of vanous tax starutes. (See Note G, “Income
Taxes.”)

Financial Condition and Liquidity

The Company has hisrorically funded irs homebuilding and financial services operations with ¢ash flows from operating activites,
borrowings under its revolving credit facilities and the issuance of new debt secunines. In light of derertorating market conditions
in 2007, the Company took several specific actions during the vear to generate cash flow, reduce debr levels and strengthen its
balance sheet. These actions included terminating or renegotiating land option contracts, reducing inventory and unsold homes
under construction: reducing head count: consohdating or exinng underperforming markets and suspending stock repurchases. As
a result of this strategy, the Company lowered its debt by $111.0 miliion and ended the vear with $243.6 million o cash and cash
equivalents.

NIET

STOCKHOLDERS DEBT-1O-CAPITAL

(in millions) 1LQUTTY DERY RATIO
2005 $1.370 sh22 250"
24006 81,511 SUs0 327%
2007 51,125 $839 34.6%

At December 31, 2007, the Compamy’s ner debt-ro-capital ratio was 34.6 percent, an increase from 32.7 percent at December 31,
2006. The increase in the Company’s net debt-to-capital ratio at December 31, 2007, compared to December 31, 2006, was
primarily due to the decrease in retained earnings, mainly as a result of valuation adjustments taken, partially offset by debt
repayments funded with cash flows from operations. The Company remains focused on maintaining its liquidity so it can be
flexible in reacting to changing market conditions.



The following table summarizes the Company’s eash flow activities for the vears ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

{int Hatgsunds} 2007 2006 215
Operating activities $228,140 S14.637 S216,264
Investing actvitics (31,397) (51.589} {(42.566)
Iinancing activities (168,166) (209,394} 199,297
Net nerease {decrease) i cash and eash cquivalents $28,577 $(246.340) 8372995

During 2007, the Company generated $228.1 million of cash from its operations. The Company invested $32.1 million in
property, plant and equipment and used $168.2 million in financing activities, including debt repayments of $111.0 million, stock
repurchases of $59.3 million and dividends of $20.4 million. The ner cash flow generated during the vear ended December 31,
2007 was $28.6 million.

During 2006, the Company generated $14.6 million of cash from its operations, The Company invested $53.8 million in property,
plant and equipment and used $209.4 million in financing activities, including net proceeds of $6.5 million from additional debt
and outflows for stock repurchases of $250.1 million and dividends of $21.7 million. The net cash used during the vear ended
December 31, 2006 was $246.3 million.

During 2005, the Conipany generated $216.3 million of cash from irs operations. The Company invested $55.1 million in
property, plant and equipment and generated cash of $199.3 million from financing activities, including ner proceeds of

$353.0 million from additional debt and outflows for stock repurchases of $176.2 million and dividends of $11.4 mallion. The net
cash flow for the vear ended December 31, 2005 was $373.0 million,

Dividends totaled S0.48, $0.48 and $0.30 per share for the annual pedods ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Consolidated inventories owned by the Company decreased o $1.7 billion at December 31, 2007, from $2.5 hillion ar

December 31, 2006. The Company attempts to maintain a projected four- to five-year supply of land, with half controlled through
options. At December 31, 2007, the Company controlled 39,900 lots, with 26,647 lots owned and 13,233 lots, or 33.2 pereent,
under option. As a result of its efforts fo match conrrolled inventory with current unit volume levels, lots controlled declined by
33.9 percent, compared o 60,318 lots under control ar December 31, 2006. (Sce “[Housing Inventories” within Note A,
“Stgnificant Accounting Policies.”) The Company continues to evaluate its option contracts for changes in the viability of
communitics and abandonment potential. In an effort to increase liquidity, models have been sold and leased back on a selective
basis for generally 3 to 18 months. The Company owned 76.1 percent and 66.9 percent of 1ts model homes ar December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively.

The homebuilding segments’ borrowings include senior notes, an unsecured revolving credit facility and nontrecourse secured
notes pavable.

Senior Notes

Senior notes outstanding totaled $800.0 million and $900.0 million ar December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The Company
redeemed $75.0 million and $25.0 million of its 5.4 percent senor notes due June 2008 in Augusi and December 2007,
respectively. ‘The redemption prices were 100.2 percent and 100.8 percenr of the principal amount of the notes outsranding,
respectively, plus accrued interest as of the redemption dates, The Company recognized an aggregare loss of approximately
$490,000 related to the early retirement of these notes in 2007,

In 2006, the Company redeemed $150.0 million of its 9.1 percent senior subordinated notes due June 2011, of which it owned
$6.5 million. The redemption price was 104.6 percent of the principal amount of the notes outstanding, plus accrued interest as of
the redemption date. The Company recognized a $7.7 million loss related to the early retirement of these senior subordinated
notes in the third quarter of 2006. Additionally, the Company’s 8.4) percent senior notes, which rotaled $100.0 mllion, marured in
August 2006,

The $50.0 million of 5.4 percent senior notes due June 2008; the $250.0 million of 5.4 percent senior notes due May 2012; the
$250.0 million of 6.9 percent senior notes due June 2013; and the $250.0 million of 5.4 percent senior notes due January 2015 are
subject to cerrin covenants that include, among other things, restrictions on additional secured debt and the sale of assets, A
December 31, 2007, the Company was in compliance with these covenants.

In 2006, the Company terminated its treasury inferest rate locks {“treasury locks™), which were entered into to facihrare the
replacement of some of its higher-rate senior debt. (See Note 12, “Derivanive Instruments.”)



Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility

Duting 2007, the Company amended its unsecured revolving credit facility by reducing its borrowing capacity from $1.1 billion to
$750.0 million in an effort to reduce costs related 1o unused eapacity and 1o provide additional flexibility by modifving several
covenants. (See Note I, “Debt.”) The credit agreement maruges in January 2011 and provides access to §750.0 million of
additional financing through an accordion feature, under which the aggregate commitment may be increased up to $1.5 billion,
subject to the availabiliy of additional lending commitments. The revolving credit facility includes a $75.0 million swing-hne
facility and a $600.0 million sublimir for the issuance of standby letters of credit. In the amendment, among other things, the
Company removed the inferest rato covenant; increased the pricing grid, which is based on its leverage ratio and public deln
rating; provided a pricing premium and debt-ro-capital ratio reduction if its interest coverage ratio 15 less than 2:1; and changed
certain definirions thar would affect the method of calculating eamings before interest, taxes, deprecianon and amortization
(“EBITDA”). Amounts borrowed under the credit agreement are guaranteed on a joint and several basis by substantially all of the
Company’s 100 percent-owned homebuilding subsidiaries, Such guarantees are full and unconditional. Interest rates on
ourstanding borrowings arc determined either by reference to LIBOR, with margins determined based on changes in its leverage
ratio and credit ratings, or by reference 1o an alternate base rate. The credit agreement contains vagious customary affinmative,
negative and financial covenants. The Company was in compliance with these covenants at December 31, 2007,

The Company uses its unsecured revolving credit facility to finance increases in its homebuilding inventory and working capital,
when necessary. There were no borrowings outstanding under the agreements at December 31, 2007 or 2006. Under the
agreement, the Company had lerters of credit outstanding that totaled $157.8 million and $192.9 million at December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively. Unused borrowing capacity under the facility totaled $592.2 million and $940.6 million at December 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively. (See Note IF, *Debn.’™)

Under the debt covenants associated wirh the Company’s revolving credir facility, if it loses irs investment grade semor unsecured
debt ratings from both Moody's Investors Service (“Moody’s”) and Standard and Poor’s Ratings Services {(“S&P”), the Company
would be subject to a borrowing base limitation, as well as 1o restrictions on unsold homes and unsold land and lots. In December
2007, Moody’s lowered the Company’s rating to one level below investment grade with a negative outlook, while S&P maintained
the Company’s investment grade with a negative outlook. The borrowing base covenant limirs the Company’s addinonal
homebuilding borrowing capacity to the amount determined under the arrangement. The total horrowing capacity under the
credir facility of $730.0 million, of which $592.2 million was available ar Diecember 31, 2007, would have been reduced to

$282.3 million, with $124.5 million available, had the restdetion been in place. Additional restrictions hased on senior unsecured
debt ratings limir the ratio of the Company™s unsold homes o the trailing 6-month and 12-month unit home closings to

70.0 percent and 3000 percent, respectively, and limit the ratio of its unsold land and lots over consolidated tangible net worth 10
1:1. At December 31, 2007, these ratios were 29.1 percent, 13.7 percent and 0.9:1, respecnively.

In February 2008, the Company entered into a sccond amendment to its credit faciline (“Second Amendment”). The Second
Amendment reduces the hase amount for the minimum consolidared tangible net worth covenant the Company is required o
maintain under its credit facility to $850.0 million; increases the borrowing base by adding unrestricred cash up to $300.0 million;
and increases the definition of material indebredness to $20.0 million.

Nonrecourse Secured Notes Payable
To finance its land purchases. the Company may akso use seller-financed nonrecourse secured notes pavable. At December 31,
2007, such notes pavable outstanding amounted to $39.1 million, compared to $50.1 million at December 31, 2006.

Finance Subsidiaries

In January 2008, RMC entered info a mortgage warchouse line of credit agreement with Guaranty Bank (the “RMC Credit
Agreement”™). The RMC Credit Agreement matutes in January 2009 and provides for borrowings up to $40.0 million to fund
RMC’s mortgage loan origination operations. It is secured by underlving mortgage loans and by other assets of RMC, Faciliry
balances are repaid as loans funded under the agreement are sold 1o third parties. The RMC Credit Agreement’s interest rate is set
at LIBOR plus 0.9 percent, with a commitmenr fee of 0.125 percenr on the unused portion of the facility. 'The RMC Credn
Agreement contains representations, warranties, covenants and provisions defining events of default. The covenants require RMC
to maintain a2 minimum net worth and certain financial ratios.

Other

The Company filed a shelf registration statement with the SEC for up to $1.0 billion of its debt and equiry securities on Apal 11,
2005. At December 31, 2007, $600.0 million remained available under this registration. The registration statement provides that
securities may be offered, from time to tinme, in one or more series and in the form of senior, subordinated or convertible debr
preferred stock: preferred stock represented by depository shares; common stock; stock purchase comracrs; stock purchase umits;
and warrants ro purchase both debt and equity securities. In the future, the Company intends to continue to maintain effective
shelf registration statements that will facilitare access to the capiral markets. The tming and amounr of future offerings, if any, will
depend on market and general business condinons.

]
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During 2007, the Company repurchased approximately 1.3 million shares of its common stock ar a cost of $59.3 million. The
Company had existing anthorization from its Board of Directors to purchase approximately 5.2 million more shares at a cost of
approximately $142.3 million, based on the Company’s stock price at December 31, 2007, Outstanding shares were 42,151,085
and 42,612,525 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respeenvely, a decrease of 1.1 percent.

The following table provides a summary of the Company’s contractual cash obligations and commercial commitments at
December 31, 2007, and the effect such obligations are expected o have on hquidiry and cash flow in furure periods.

CONTRACTUAL PAYMENTS DU BY PERIOD

AFTER
{in thowsundi} TOYTAL 24008 203092016 a11-2012 22z
Debr, principal matunities $839,080 $75,512 $11,762 $251,806 $500,000
Interest on debt 248,346 45,182 88,125 79,727 35,312
OUperating leases 45,707 11,641 18,388 10,261 5,417
Fand option contracts! 23,881 4,237 19,644 - -
T'ogal at December 31, 2007 $1,157,014 $136,572 $132,919 $341,794 $540,729
! Represents abfigations studer opiion contnicts wath specific performuanee provisions, wei of auih deposits.

While the Company expects challenging economic conditons to continue, it 15 focused on managing land acquisitions,
development, construction activity and overhead in order 1o generate cash flow and maintain debr levels commensurate wirh its
business. Absent a more severe deterioration in market conditions, the Company believes that it will be able to continue to fund
its homebuilding and financial services operations, plus any furure cash needs (including debt matunties), through its existing cash
resources for the foreseeable furure.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into land and lot option purchase conrracts in order ro procure land or
lots for the construction of homes. Land and lot optien purchase contracts enable the Company to control significant lot
positions with a minimal capital investment, thereby reducing the risks associated wath land ownership and development. At
December 31, 2007, the Company had $74.7 million in cash deposits and letters of credit to purchase land and lots with a total
purchase price of $721.4 million. Only $24.2 million of the 3721.4 million in land and lot option purchase contracts contain
specific performance provisions. Additionally, the Company’s liability is generally limited ro forfeiture of the nonrefundable
deposirs, letters of credit and other nonrefundable amounts ncurred.

Pursuant 1o Interpretation No. 46 (“FIN 46”), “Consolidarion of Vadable Interest Entities,” as amended, the Company
consolidated $76.7 million of inventory not owned at December 31, 2007, $76.0 million of which pertained to land and lot option
purchase contracts, representng the fair value of the optioned property, and approximately $758,000 of which pertained to certain
of the Company’s homebuilding joint ventures. (See “Vanable Interest Enanes” and “Tnvesrments in Joint Ventures” within

Note A, “Summary of Sigmficant Accounting Policies.”)

At December 31, 2007, the Company had cutstanding letiers of credit under its revolving credit faciline totaling $157.8 million;
and development or performance bonds totaling $313.2 million, issued by third parties, to secure performance under various
contracts and obligations relating to land or municipal improvements, as compared to the prior vear. The Company expects that
the obligations secured by these letiers of credit and performance bonds will generally be sansfied in the ordinary course of
business and in accordance with applicable contracrual terms. To the extent that the obligations are fulfilled, the related letters of
credit and performance bonds will be released, and the Company will not have any conninuing obligations.

The Company has no matenal third-party guaranrees other than those associated with irs revolving credit faciliry, the RMC
Agreement, senior notes and investments in joint ventures. (See “Investments in Joint Venmges” within Note A, “Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies” and Note K, “Supplemental Guarantor Information.”)

Critical Accounting Policies

Preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements requires the use of judgment in the application of accounting
policies and estimates of inherently uncertain matters. Listed below are those policies that management helieves are critical and
require the use of complex judgment in their application.

Management has discussed the critical accounting policies with the Audit Commitiee of its Board of Directors and the Audir

Committee has reviewed the disclosure. There are items within the financial statements that require estimation, but are not
considered caneal.
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Use of Estimates

In budgeting land acquisitions, development and homebulding construction costs associated with real estate projects, the
Company evaluates market conditions: matenial and labor costs; buyer preferences; construction timing; and provisions for
insurance and warrann obligations. The Company accrues irs best estimate of the probable cost for resolutton of legal claims,
Estimates, which are based on historical experience and other assumptions, are reviewed contnually, updared when necessary and
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management belteves that the timing and scope of its evaluation procedures
are proper and adequate. Changes in assumptions relating to such factors, however, could have a material effect on the
Company’s results of operations for a particular quarterly or annual period.

Income Recognition

Revenues and cost of sales are recorded at the time cach home or lot is closed. ttle and possession are transferred to the buver
and there is no significanr confinuing involvement in accordance with SFAS 66. In order to match revenues with related expenses,
land, land development, interest, taxes and other related costs {(both incurred and estimated to be incurred in the future) are
allocated to the cost of homes closed, based upon the relative sales value basis of the toral number of homes to be constructed in
each community, in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 67 (“SFAS 677), “Accounting for Costs
and Initial Rental Operations of Real Estate Projects.” Estimated land, common area development and related costs of planned
communities, including the cost of amenites, are allocated to individual parcels or communities on a relative sales value hasis.
Changes to estimated costs, subsequent to the commencement of the delivery of homes, are allocated to the remaining
undelivered homes in the community. Home construction and related costs are charged 1o the cost of homes closed under the
specific-idennfication method.

Inventory Valuation

Housing projects and land held for development (inventory) and sale are stared at either the lower of cost or net reahzable value.
Inventory includes land and development costs; direct construction costs; capitalized indirect construction costs: capitalized
interest; and real estate faxes. [t may take one to three vears to develop, sell and deliver all of the homes in a rpical community,
The Company assesses these assets for recoverabiliry in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 144, SFAS 144 requires thar
long-lived assers and assets held-for-sale be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicare that
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable, Recoverability of housing inventories is measured by comparing the
carrving amount of an asset to future undiscounted net cash flows expected 1o be generated by thar asset or by the sales of
comparable asscts. Assets held-for-sale are carried at the lower of cost or fair value, less selling costs. These evaluations for
impairment are significantly impacted by esimates of revenues, costs and expenses, as well as by other factors. In addition, land,
or costs related to future communities, whether owned or under option, are reviewed to determine 1f the Company will proceed
with development and if all related costs are recoverable, If these assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment loss is
measured as the amount by which the carrving amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets and is recognized within
the same peniod that it 1s idendified. Management believes its processes are designed ro properly assess the market and carrying
values of assets.

Warranty Reserves

The Company’s homes are sold with limited third-party warranties. Warranty reserves are ¢stablished as homes close on a house-
by-house basis in an amount estimated to be adequate to cover expected costs of materials and outside labor during warranty
periods. Cerrain factors are considered in dercrmining the reserves, including the histonical range of amounts paid per house;
experience with respect to similar home designs and geographical areas; the historical amount paid as a percentage of home
construction costs; any warranry expenditures not considered to be normal and recurnng; and conditions that may affecr cerrain
subdivisions. Improvements in guality control and construction techniques expected to impact future warranty expendirures are
also considered. Accordingly, the process of determining the Company’s warranty reserves balance necessarily requires estimates
associated with various assumptions, each of which can positively or negatively impact the warranty reserves balance,

Generally, warranty reserves are reviewed maonthly o determine the reasonablencss and adequacy of both the aggregate reserve
and the per unit reserve amount originally included in home cost of sales, as well as the fiming of any reversals of the onginal
reserve. General warranty reserves not utilized for a particular house are evaluated for rensonableness in the aggregate on both a
market-bv-market and consolidated basis. Warranty payments for an individual house may exceed the relared reserve. Payments in
excess of the reserve are evaluared in the aggregate to determine if an adjusiment to the warranty reserve should be recorded,
which could result in 2 corresponding adjustment to home cost of sales,

The Company continues to evaluate the adequacy of its warranty reserves and believes that its existing estimation process is
materally accurate. Because the Company’s warranty reserves can be impacred by a significant number of factors, it is possible
that changes to the Company’s assumprions could have a material impact on its warranty reserve balances.
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Variable Interest Entities (“VIE™)

FIN 46 requires a VIE to be consolidared by a company if that company is subject to a majority of the rsk of loss from the VIE’s
activities and /ot entitled to receive a majority of the VIE's residual returns. FIN 46 also requires disclosure abour VIEs that the
Company is not obligated to consolidate but in which it has a significant, though not primary, varable interest. 'The Company
enters into joint ventures, from time to time, for the purpose of acquisition and co-development of land parcels and lots. Trs
investment in these joint venrures may cteate a variable interest in a VIE, depending on the contractual terms of the arrangement.
Additionally, in the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into lot option purchase contracts in order to procure land
for the construction of homes. Under such lot option purchase contracts, the Company funds stated deposits in consideration for
the right to purchase lots at a furure point in time, usually at predetermined prices. In accordance with the requirements of

FIN 46, cerrain of the Company’s lot option purchase contracts may resuli in the creation of a vanable interest in a VIE. The
Company believes the accounting for joint ventures and land option purchase contracts using the variable interest consolidation
methodology is a crtcal accounting policy because compliance with FIN 46 requires the use of complex judgment in its
apphcation.

Income Taxes

The Company calculates a provision for its income taxes by using the asset and liabiliry method, under which deferred rax assets
and liabilities are recognized by identifving the tempuorary differences arising from the different treatment of frems for tax and
accounting purposes. The Company evaluates its deferred tax assets on a quarterly basis to determine whether a valuasion
allowance is required. In accordance with SFAS 109, the Company assesses whether a valuanen allowance should be established
based on its derermination of whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be
realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets depends primarily on the generation of future taxable income during the
periods in which those temporary differences become deductible. Judgment is required in determining the furure fax
conscquences of events that have been recognized in the Company’s consolidated financial starements and/or tax returns.
Differences between the amounts recognized in s financial statements or fax returns and actual outcomes may anse upon
issuance of regulations and final guidance from federal and state 1axing authorities and could have a matenal impact on the
Company’s consohdated results of operanions or financial posirion.

Share-Based Payments

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company follows the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R}
(“SFAS 123(R)"), “Share-Based Payment,” which requires thar compensatian expense be measured and recognized at an amount
equal to the fair value of share-based pavments granted under compensation arrangements. The Company calculates the fair value
of stock options by using the Black-Scholes-Merton oprion-pricing model. The determination of the fair value of share-hased
awards at the grant date requires judgment in developing assumptions, which involve a number of varables. These vamables
include, but are not limited to, expected stock-price volatilin' over the term of the awards, expected dividend vield and expecred
stock option exercise behavior. Additionally, judgment is also required in estimating the number of share-based awards that are
expected to forfeit. 1f actual results differ significantly from these estimates, stock-based compensation expense and the
Company’s consolidated results of operations could be materially impacted. The Company believes the accounting for
stock-based compensation is a critical accounting policy because it requires the use of complex judgment in its application.

Outlook

In 2007, the Company continued to experence a decline in sales orders for new homes, compared ro the same peniod lase vear.
‘The Company believes its sales orders reflect broader market trends that reflect soft demand for residential housing. Nearly all
markets have been affected by reductions in the affordabiline of homes, the availability of mortgage products and the consumer
demand for homes, leading to the continued buildup of new and resale home inventories. At December 31, 2007, the Company’s
backlog of orders for new homes totaled 2.869 units, or a projected value of $786.4 million, reflecting a 39.2 percent decline in
dollar value from December 31, 2006, As long as the imbalance of housing supply and demand continues, the Company will
remain focused on its liquidity and balance sheet, while seeking to oprimize its earnings and to position itself for 4 return to 2
more favorable cconomic environment.



[tem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market Risk Summary

The following table provides information about the Company’s significant financial instruments that are sensitive to changes in
interest rafes. For debt obligations, the rable presents pnncipal cash flows and related weighted- average mterest rates by expected
maturity dates. For other financial instruments, weighted-average rates are based on implied forward rates as of the reporting date,

Interest Rate Sensitivity

Principal Amount by Expected Maturity

IFAIR
THERE- VALUL
fine thowsands) 2008 2AMK=2011 2012 AFTER TOTAL 12/31/2007
Sengor notes (fixed rate) $50,000 — $250,000 $500,000 $800,000 $£751,885
Average interest rie 5.4% 5.4% 6.1% 5.8%
Onher financial imstrurmenis
Mortgage interest rate lock
commitments:
Naotional amount $66,126 $— $— Lo $66,126 $298
Average nterest e 6.2% 6.2%
Forward-delivery contracts:
Notional amount 47,500 - - - 47,500 (181)
Average mterest rate 5.5% 5.5%

Interest rate risk 1s a primary marker ask facing the Company. Interest rate risk not only arises pnncipally in the Company’s
financial services segment, but also in respect to the homebuilding segments’ revolving credir facility. The Company enters into
forward-delivery contracts and may, at times, use other hedging contracts to mitigate its exposure to movements in Interest rares
on mortgage inrerest rate lock commirments (“TRLCs”). In managing mnterest rate risk, the Company does not speculate on the

direction of interest rates.



Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

YEAR ENDLED DECEMBER 31,

i1t fhomsndy, exept share dita) 2007 2N 20015
REVENUES
Homebukding $2,960,194 $4.653.920 $4,725.751
Financial services 72,400 103,290 91,815
TOTAL REVENUES 3,032,594 4,757.216 4,817,566
EXPENSES
Cost of sales 3,033,799 3641075 3,537,003
Sclling, general and administrative 351,376 J0, 02 443038
Finaneial services 31473 35,0601 32442
Comorae 35,554 66,035 74,255
lixpenses related to carly retirement of deb 490 7.095 H.277
TOTAL EXPENSES 3,452,692 4,190,108 4096515
EARNINGS
Vamings {loss) before taxes {420,098) 367 108 721051
Tax expense (bencfin (86,572) 207166 273099
NET EARNINGS (LOSS) $(333,526) $3519.942 $447.052
NET EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE
Basic $(7.92) $8.14 $9.52
Diluted (1.92) 7.843 9.03
AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING
Basic 42,136,315 44,228 502 46906 317
Difuted 42,136,315 45,944 448 49,900,887
DIVIDENDS DECLARED PER COMMON SHARE $0.48 S0.48 80,30

See Notes ta Consoliddated Vinancial Staements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DICEMBER 31,

it thonsanes. exapt shure ditu) 2007 20
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $243,6014 215,037
Housing mventories
Homes under construgtion 717,992 1,079,702
Land under development and mproved lots 1,017 867 1,427 930
Consolidaged nventory not owned 76,734 263,853
Total nventones 1,812,593 2771485
Property, plant and equipment 75,538 76,887
Netdeferred taxes 158,065 B, 199
Other 252,369 269,082
TOTAL ASSETS 2,542,179 3416697
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 114,050 186,868
Accrued and other habilites 395,404 586,797
Dbt 839,080 950,117
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,348,534 1,723,782
MINORITY INTEREST 68,919 181,749
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock, SLO0O par value:
Authorized—200,0000,000 shares
Issucd—42.151 085 shares at December 31, 2007
(42,612,525 shares at Decernber 31, 20063 42,151 42,612
Retamned caminggs 1,078,521 1.463.727
Accumulated other comprehensive income 4,054 4.827
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 1,124,726 1,511,166
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY $2,542,179 $3,416,697

See Noter to Convolidated Vinandual Xlateneniv.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

ACCUMULATED

OTHER TEYTAL
COMMON PATD-IN RETAINED  COMPREHENSIVE STOCKHOLDERS
(i thonsands, exveps per ihare detu) STOCK  CAPITALL EARNINGS INCOMIE EQUITY
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2005 S47.348 S— S1AH1 242 S24 SLO560,.834
Comprehensive income:
Net cartungs 447,052 47052
Oither Cumprchcnsi\‘u mcome, net of tax:
Change in net unrealized gam on cash flow hedpng
mnstruments and available for sale secuntics, nel of taxes
of $1.685 2720 2.7
Total comprehensive income 449,772
Common stock dividends (per share $0.30) (14.138) (14.138)
Repurchase of comman stock {2.558) (58,189 (M13.467) {176.214)
Emplovee stock phans and related mcome tax benehit 1,578 58,189 3.767
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2005 46,308 -~ 1.326.08Y 2964 1,376,021
Comprehensive income:
Net carnings 359942 350042
Other comprehensive mcome, net of tax:
Change in net unrealized gain on cash fow hedging,
nstruments and avaitable for sale securities, net of taxes
of §1,154 1,863 1,863
Toral comprehensive incorne 361,805
Common stack dividends {per share SU.48) (21.214) (21.214)
Repurchase of common stock (700 (43,728) (2H.690) {250,118)
Iimplovee stock plans and relared ineome tax benetit Y44 43,728 4,672
BALANCE AT DECENBER 3, 206 42612 - [ 463,727 4827 1,511,166
Comprehensive income:
Net carnings (oss) (333,526) (333,520)
Other comprebensive meome, net of fax:
Change et unaealized ggam on cash flow hedging
instrurnents and available for sale seeuntios, oet of axes
of $479 (773) (713)
Total comperehensive ncome (334,299
Comman stock dividends (per share S0.18) (20,286) {20,286)
Repurchase of common stock (1,265) {26,622) {31,394) (59,281}
Limployee stock plans and related income tax Denetin 304 26,622 27,426
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2007 $42,151 §— $1,078,521 $4,054 $1,124,726

See Notes tn Convolidated Vinanctl N taterttents.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

{tsr thouvands) 2007 2006 2N
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net earnings {loss) $(333,526) $354.942 S447,052
Adjustments to reconeile net carmings Goss) 1o net cash provided by operaung acovities:
Depreciation and amertzatm 54,494 46731 43,1660
Stock-based compensation expense 12,257 25593 18,862
Inventory and other asset impairments and ware-offs 583,363 81,314 3798
Deferred tax valuatien allowance 75,166 - -
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Deerease (increase) in mventories 273,355 (263 ,444) (494,709)
Net change m other assets, pavables and other habilites (412,984) (217,488) 175358
“Tax benefit trom exercise of stock options and vestng of restricted s1ock - - 36,503
Fxcess wx benefits from stock-based compensaton (6,714} (14.632) -
(nher operating achivitics, net 17,271y (3.379) (1.708)
Net cash provided by operating activines 228,140 14637 216,204
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net additions to propesty, plant and eyuipment (32,147) (53.839) (55,127
Orther investing activitics, net 750 22350 12561
Net eash used for investing activivies (31,397) (51.589) (42,566)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash proceeds of long-term debr - 2504000 SO0,
Repayment of leng-term dehbt (100,000) (2435043 (147,003
(Drecrease} increase in short-term borrowings (11,037) 21,047 10,028
Common stack dividends (20,365) (21.660) (11,383}
Common stock repurchases (59,281) (250.118) (176,214)
Tssuance of common stock under stock-based compensation 15,808 19.659 29.262
lixeess tax benetits from stock-based compensation 6,714 14,632 -
(ther financing activities, net (5) (48) (5,396)
Nt cash (used for) provided by financing activities (168,166) (209,394) 199,297
Net inerease (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 28,577 (246.346) 372995
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of vear 215,037 461,383 88,388
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $243,614 §215,037 $461,383
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash pad for mterest, net of eapitalized interest $1,097 $1,295 SR
Cash pad for income taxes 25,569 258,205 230,291
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH ACTIVITIES
(Deerease) increase n consohidated myventone not owned related 1o land options $(104,415) 89,139 564,503

SNee Nates to Cousolidated Vinaneial Siatements.
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Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policics

Bauis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of The Ryland Group, Inc. and its whollv-owned substdiaries.
Intercompany rransactions have heen climinated in consolidation. Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform
to the 2007 presentation,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, requires
management o make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying
notes. Actual results could differ from these estimares.

Carly and Cash Eqnivalents

At December 31, 2007, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of $243.6 million, of which $13.5 million was resiricted. The
Company considers all highly liquid short-term investments and cash held in escrow to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents
totaled $193.6 million and $187.0 million ar December 31, 2007 and 20006, respectively.

Per Share Data
Basic net earnings per common share is computed by dividing ner earnings by the weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding. Additionally, diluted net carmings per common share give effect to dilutive common stock equivalent shares.

Stock-Bused Compensution

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company complies with the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123(R) by using the
maodified-prospective transition method. Under that transition method, compensation cost recognized in 2007 and 2006 includes:
(&) compensation cost for all share-based payvments granted prior to January 1, 2006, but not vet vested, based on the grant-date
fair value estimated n accordance with the original provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123

(“SFAS 1237), “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” and () compensation cost for all share-based payments granted
subsequent to January 1, 2006, based on the grant-date fair value estimated m accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123(R).
Results for prior periods have not been restated.

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for stock-based emplovee compensation by adhering to the provisions and
related interpretation of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 (“APB 257), “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,”
permitted by SFAS 123, as amended. Therefore, except for costs related fo restricred stock units, no stock-based employee
compensaton cost was recognized in net carnings, as all options granted under those plans had an exercise price equal to the
marker value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant.

Homebuilding Revenues

In accordance with SFAS 66, homebuilding revenues are recognized when home and lot sales are closed, ntle and possession are
transferred to the buver and there is no significant continuing involvement. Sales incennves offser revenues and are expensed
when homes are closed.

Housing Lnventories

Housing inventores consist pancipally of homes under construction, land under development and improved lots. lnventory
includes land and development costs; direct construction costs; capitalized indirect construction costs; capitalized mterest: and real
estafe taxes. Inventories to be held and used are stated at cost unless 2 community is determined to be impaired, in which case the
impaired inventories are written down to fair value. Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrving amount of an asset mav not be recoverable. Recoverabihine of assers 1s measured by
comparing the carrving amount of an asset to furure undiscounted net cash flows expecied 1o be generated by that asset or by the
sales of comparable assets. Undiscounted cash flow projections are generared at a comnuniry level based on estimares of
revenues, costs and other factors. The Company’s analysis of these communities generally assumes flar revenues when compared
with current sales orders for particular or comparable communities. The Company’s determinaton of fair value is primarily based
on discounting estimated cash flows at a rare commensurate with inherent risks that are associated with assets and related
estimated cash flow streams. Inventories to be held and used or disposed of are stated ar erther the lower of cost less estimated
selling costs or fair value and are reported net of valuation reserves. Write-downs of impaired inventories ro fair value are
recorded as adjustments to the cost basis of the respective inventory. Valuation reserves related to inventories to be disposed of
amounted to $488.1 million at December 31, 2007 and $59.7 million at December 31, 2006. The net carrving values of the related
inventories amounted to $388.3 million and $12:.3 million ar December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.



Costs of inventory include direct costs of land and land development; materal acquisition; and home construction expenses. The
costs of acquiring and developing land and constructing certain related amenities are allocated to the parcels to which these costs
relare. Interest and taxes are capitahized during the land development stage.

The following table is a summary of capitalized interest:

(in thostvanids) 2007 2006
Capatalized interest at January 1 $98,932 875,890
Interest capitalized 62,024 71,750
Interest amortized 1o cost of sales (41,689 (48,704
Capitahzed interest an December 31 $119,267 SURG32

The following table summarizes each reporting segment’s total number of lots owned and lots controlled under option

agreements:

DECEMBER 31, 2007 DECEMBER 31, 2006
LOTS LOTS LOYIS 1LOTs

OWNED QPTIONED TOTAL CAWNED OPTIONED TOTAL
North 5,999 5,787 11,786 5,880 10,747 16,627
Southeast 9,957 3,192 13,149 11016 10,142 21208
Texas 5,784 3,434 9,218 6,760 5.430 12,190
West 4,907 340 5,747 7.595 2698 10,203
Total 26,647 13,253 39,900 31,251 29,067 60,318

1V ariable Interest Entities

FIN 46 requires a VIE to he consolidated by a company if that company is subject to a mujority of the nsk of loss from the VIE's
activities and/or entitled to receive a majority of the VIEs residual returns. FIN 46 also requires disclosures about VIEs thae the
Company is not obligated to consolidate bur in which 11 has a significant, though not primary, varialle interest.

The Company enters into joint ventures, from fime to time, for the purpose of acquisition and co-development of land parcels
and lots. Its investmentr in these joint ventures may create a variable interest in a VIE, depending on the contractual terms of the
arrangement. Additonally, in the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into Jot optien purchase contracts in order 10
procure land for the construction of homes. Under such lot option purchase contracrs, the Company funds stated deposits in
consideration for the right to purchase lots at a future point in nme, usually at predetermined prices. In accordance with the
requirements of FIN 46, certain of the Company’s lot option purchase contracts may result in the creation of a variable interest m

a VIE.

In compliance with the provisions of FIN 46, the Company consolidated $76.7 million of inventory not owned at December 31,
2007, $76.0 million of which pertained 1o land and lot option purchase contracts representing the fair value of the optioned
property and approximately $758,000 of which pertained te the Company’s homebuilding joint ventures. (See further discussion
that follows under “Investments in Joint Ventures.”) While the Company may not have had legal title to the optioned land or
guaranteed the seller’s debt associated wirh that property, under FIN 46 ir had the primary variable interest and was required to
consolidate the particular VIE’s assets under option at fair value. Additionally, to reflect the fair value of the inventory
consolidated under FIN 46, the Company climinated $8.1 million of its related cash deposits for lot option purchase contracts,
which are included in “Consolidated inventory not owned.” Minoriry interest rotaling $67.9 million was recorded with respect to
the consolidation of these contracts, representing the selling entities’ ownership interests in these VIEs. At December 31, 2007,
the Company had cash deposits and letters of credit rotaling $13.9 million relating to lot option purchase contracts that were
consolidated, representing its current maximum cxposure to loss. Creditors of these VIEs, if any, have no recourse against the
Company. At December 31, 2007, the Compuny had cash deposits and/or letters of credit rotaling $47.2 million that were
assoctated with lot option purchase contracts having an aggregate purchase price of $456.9 million and relating ro VIEs in which
it did not have a primary vanable inrerest.

Service Liabifities
Service, warranty and completion costs are estimated and accrued at the time a home closes and updated as experience requires.

Luvestments in Joint 17 erntures

The Company enters info joint venrures, from time to time, for the purpose of acquisiton and co-development of land parcels
and lots. Currently, the Company participates in seven homebuilding joint venrures in the Ausun, Chicago, Dallas, Denver, Las
Vegas and Orlando markets. The Company participates in a number of joint ventures in which it has less than a controlling
mrerest. The Company recognizes its share of the respective joint ventures’ earnings from the sale of lots ro other homebuilders.
It does not, however, recognize earnings from lots that it purchases from the joint ventures. Instead, it reduces its cost basis in
these Jots by its share of the eamings from the los,



The following table summarnizes each reporting segment’s total estimated share of lots owned and controlled by the Company
under its joint ventures:

DECEMBER 31, 2007 DECENMBER 31, 206

LOTS LOTS LOTS FOTS
OWNED OPTIONED TOTAL OWNED OPTIONED TOTAL
Naorth 681 - 681 836 - 56
Southeast 45 - 45 356 - 350
Texas 189 - 189 203 - 203
West 410 1,209 1,619 1 1,209 1650
Total 1,325 1,209 2,534 1,856 1,200 3065

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company’s investments in its unconsolidated joint ventures toraled $30.8 million and

$13.5 million, respectively, and were classified in the consolidated balance sheets under “Other” assets, For the year ended
December 31, 2007, the Company’s equity in earnings from unconsolidated joint ventures toraled $342,000, compared 10 losses of
$260,000 and earnings of $315,000 for the same pertods 1 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The aggregate assets of the unconsolidared joint ventures in which the Company patticipated were §785.9 million and

$649.2 million at December 31, 2007 and 20006, respectively. The aggregate debr of the unconsolidated joint ventures in which the
Company participated totaled $508.4 mitlion and $429.0 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. One of its joint
ventures had assets of $644.2 million and debt of $435.3 million at December 31, 2007, The Company had a 3.3 percent pro rata
interest in this debt, or $14.5 million, and a completion guarantee related 10 project development. At December 31, 2006, this
joint venture had total assets of 3399.0 million and debr of $407.2 million, of which the Company’s pro rata interest in the debt
was $13.5 million. Additionally, the Company has guaranteed up to 50.0 percent of a $55.0 million revolving credit facilire for one
of 1ts unconsolidared joint ventures. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the acrual borrowings against the revolving credit faciliry
for this joint venture were $30.6 million and $33.8 million, respectively, of which the Company’s pro raw share of the debt was
$25.3 million and $26.9 million, respectively. The guaranices apply if the joint venture defaults on irs loan arrangement and the
fair value of the collateral, which includes land and improvements, is less than the loan balance.

In 2007 and 2006, cerrain of the joint ventures in which the Company participated were consolidated in accordance with the
provisions of IFIN 46, as the Company was determined to have the primary variable interest in the entities. In association with
these consolidated joint ventures, the Company recorded pretax eamings of approximately $108,000 and $685,000 for 2007 and
2000, respectively. Total assers of approximarely $782,000, including consolidated inventory not owned and minority interest of
$1.1 million, were consolidated at December 31, 2007, Total assets of $78.3 million, including consolidared inventory not owned;
total liabilities of $60.5 million; and minonty interest of $9.5 million were consolidared ar December 31, 20006,

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, which included model home furnishings of $69.6 million and $69.4 million w1 December 31, 2007
and 2006, respeciively., are carried ar cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization, Depreciation is provided for,
principally, by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assers, Model home furnishings, which are amortized
over the life of the community as homes are closed, are mcluded 1 cost of sales.

Purchase Price in Exccess of Net Asiety Acguired

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 (“SFAS 1427), “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assers.” requires thar
goodwill and certain intangible assets no longer be amortized but be reviewed for impairment at least annually. Intangible assers
with finite lives will continue 10 be amortized over their estimated useful lives. SFAS 142 also requires that goodwill included in
the carrving value of equity-method investments no longer be amornzed.

The Company performs impairment tests of its goodwill annually as of March 31, or as needed. The Company rests goodwill for
impairment by using the two-step process prescaibed in SFAS 142, The first step idennfies potential impairment, while the second
step measures the amount of impairment.

Goadwill 1s allocated to the reporting unit from which 1t onginates. The Company recorded a $15.4 million goodwill impairment
charge, which is reported under “Selling, general and administrative expenses,” during the first quarter of 2007, This impairment
was relared to the 1986 acquisition of M| Brock & Sons, a California homebuilder based in the Company’s West region. At
December 31, 2007, the Company’s remaining goodwill totaled $2.8 milhion, net of $2.3 million of accumulated amortization, and
15 related to the Sourtheast region. Goodwill toraled $18.2 million at December 31, 2006 and there was no impairment in 2006.

As a result of the Company’s application of the nonamortization provisions of SFAS 142, no amornzatton of goodwill was
recorded in 2007, 2006 or 2005.



Inconre Taxes

The Company files a consolidated federal income tax return. Certain items of income and expense are included in one period for
financial reporting purposes and in another for income tax purposes. Deferred income taxes are provided in recognition of these
differences. Deferred tax assets and habilities are determined based on enacted tax rares and are subsequently adjusted for changes
in these rares. A change in deferred tax assets or hiabilities results in a charge or credit to deferred 1ax expense. (See Note G,
“Income Taxes.”)

Loan Origination Feer. Costr, Mortgage Discaunty and Loan Salei

Loan origination fees, net of related direct origination costs and loan discount points, are recognized i current earnings upon the
sale of related mortgage loans. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 140 (“SFAS 140°7),
“Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assers and Exninguishments of Liabilities,” gains or losses on the sale of
mortgage loans and related servicing rights are recognized when the Company transfers title to the purchaser.

Derivative histruments

In the normal course of business and pursuant to its nsk-management policy, the Company enters, as an end user, into dernvative
mstruments, including forward-delivery contracts for loans; eptions on forward-delivery contracts; futures contracts; and options
on futures contracts, fo minimize the impact of movements in market interest rates on IRLCs. Major factors influencing the use
of various hedging contracts include general market conditions, interest rates, types of mortgages originated and the percentage of
IR1.Cs expected to fund. The Company is exposed to credit-relared losses in the event of nonperformance by counterpartics to
certain hedging contracts. Credit risk is limited ro those instances where the Company is in a net unrealized gain position. Tt
manages this credit risk by entering into agreements with counterparries meeting its credir standards and by monmitoring position
limits. The Company elected not to use hedge accounting trearment with respect 1o its economic hedging activities. Accordingly,
all derivative instruments used as economic hedges are carried in the consolidated balance sheets in “Other” assets or “Accrued
and other liabilides” ar fair value, with changes in value recorded in current carnings. The Company’s mortgage pipeline includes
IR1.Cs, which represent commitments that have been extended by the Company 1o those borrowers who have applied for loan
funding and have met certain defined credit and underwriting criteria. RMC periodically purchases forward optional loan sale
commirments from a third party. These commitments enable RMC to sell loans at a fixed rate for a stipulated period of time. The
Company determined thar its IRLCs and optional loan sale commitments meet the definition of derivarives under Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 133 (“SFAS 133”), “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as
amended.

In 2006, the Company rerminated two rreasury locks, which were entered into to facilitate the replacement of higher-rate senior
} ¥ l0CKs, P £
and senior subordinated debt. (See Note D, “Denvauve Instruments.”)

Adpertising Costy
The Company expenses advertising costs as they are incurred, Advertising costs totaled $28.7 million, $34.9 million and
$25.3 million in 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively.

Comprebensive Tncome

Comprehensive income consists of net earnings or losses and the increase or decrease in unrealized gains or losses on the
Company’s available-for-sale securides, as well as the increase or decrease in unrealized gains or losses associated with the treasury
locks, net of applicable taxes. Comprehensive income totaled losses of $334.3 milhan, compared to eamnings of $361.8 million and
$449.8 million for the vears ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively.

New Acconnting Prousnncements

FIN 48

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FIN 48, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in
income raxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial sratements. FIN 48 also prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement
attribute for a rax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The new pronouncement also provides guidance on
derecognition; classification: interest and penalties; accounting in interim periods; disclosure: and transition. The Company
mmplemented the provisions of FIN 48 effective January 1, 2007, and determined that no adjustment upon adoption was required.
(See Note G, “Income Taxes.”)

EITF 06-8

In November 2006, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) ratified 3ITT lssue No. 06-8 (“EITF 06-87), “Applicability of the
Assessment of a Buver's Continuing Investment under SFAS 66 for Sales of Condominiums.” EITT 06-8 states that the adequacy
of the buyer’s invesiment, under SFAS 66, should be assessed in determining whether to recogmize profit under the percentage-
of-completion method on the sale of individual units in a condominium project. EITF 06-8 could require that additional deposirs
be collected by developers of condominium projects that wish to recognize profit under the percentage-of-completion method
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during the construction period. ETTF 06-8 is effective for fiscal vears beginning after March 15, 2007, EITF 06-8 is not expected
to have a material effect on the Company’s financial conditon or resulis of operations.

SFAS 157

In Seprember 2006, the FASB issued Statemenr of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157 (“SFAS 1577), “Fair-Value
Measurements.” SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generaliv accepted accounnng
principles and expands disclosures about fair-value measurements, SFAS 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal
vears beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company will adopt SFAS 157 on a
prospective basis beginning 2008. The Company is currently reviewing this statement and has not vet derermined the impact, if
any, on its consolidated financial statements.

SAB 109

In November 2007, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 109 (“SAB 1097), “Watten Loan Comnutments Recorded ar
Fair Value ‘Through Earnings.” SAB 1019, which revises and rescinds portions of SAB No. 105, “Application of Accounting
Prnciples to Loan Commitments,” specifically states thar the expected net furure cash flows related ro the associated servicing of
a loan should be included in the measutement of all written loan commitments that are accounted for at fair value through
earnings. The provisions of SAB 109 are applicable to wrrten loan commitments issued or modified beginning on January 1,
2008. The Company has adopted SAB 109 effective January 1, 2008, and 1t does not expeer the impact of this statement to be
materal to its consolidated financial statements.

SFAS 158

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158 (“SFAS 158”), “Emplovers’
Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretitement Plans—an Amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106
and 132(R).” SFAS 158 requires that the funded status of defined henefit pension plans and other postretirement plans he
recognized in the balance sheet, along with a corresponding after-tax adjustment to stockholders’ equiry. The recognition of the
funded srarus provision of SFAS 158 applies prospecrively and is effective December 31, 2007, SFAS 158 also requires
measurernent of plan assets and benefic obligarions ar the enrity’s fiscal vear-end, effective December 31, 2008. SFAS 158 did not
and is not expected to have a material effecr on the Company’s financial conditon or results of operations.

SFAS 159

In February 2007, the FASB issued Sratement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 159 (“SFAS 1597, *“The Fair-Value Option
for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilines, Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115.7 SFAS 159 permits a
company fo measure certain financial instruments and other items at fair value. This starement is effective for fiscal vears
beginning after November 15, 2007, The Company will adopt SFAS 159 on a prospective basis beginning 2008, and it does not
expect the impact of this statement to be matenal to us consolidated financial statements.

SFAS 160

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounnng Standards No. 160 {(“SFAS 1607), “Noncontroiling
Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements, an Amendment of ARB No. 51.” SFAS 160 establishes accounting and reporting
standards pertaining to ownership interests in subsidiaries held by parties other than the parent; the amount of net income
atrributable to the parent and ro the noncontrolling inrerest; changes in a patent’s ownership interest; and the valuation of any
retained noncontrolling cquity investment when a subsidiary is deconsolidared. SFAS 160 also establishes disclosure requirements
that clearly identify and distinguish between the interesis of the parent and the interests of the noncontrolling owners. SFAS 160
15 required to be adopted prospectively for the first annuat reporting penod afrer December 15, 2008. The Company is currently
reviewing this statement and has not ver determined the impact, if anv, en irs consolidated financial statements,

Note B: Segment Information

The Company 1s 4 leading national homebuilder and mortgage-relared financial services firm. As one of the largest single-family
on-site homebuilders in the United States, it builds homes in 28 markets. The Company consists of six segments: four
geographically determined homebuilding regions; financial services; and corporate. The Company’s homebuilding operations
consists of four regional reporting segments, referred 1o as North, Southeast, Texas and West. The homebuilding segments
specialize in the sale and construcrion of single- family artached and defached housing, Its financial services segment includes
RAIC, RHIC, LPS and CNRRG. The Company’s financial services segment provides loan origination and offers mortgage, utle,
escrow and msurance services. Corporate 1s a nonoperating business segment with the sole purpose of supporting operations.
Cerrain corporate expenses are allocated to the homebwlding and financial services segments, while certain assets relating to
emplovee benefit plans have been artributed to other segments in order to best reflect the Company’s financial position and
results of operations.



The Company evaluates performance and allocates resources based on a number of factors, including segment prefax earnings.
The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in Note A, “Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies.”

Selected Segment Information

YEAR ENDED DECEMBIR 31,

fenr thnssaands) 2007 200006 20005
REVENUES
Homebuilding:
North $857,448 $1,196,335 S1.388.208
southeast 929,168 1522123 1,254,373
T'exas 571,689 (5,350 019,332
West 601,889 1,240,100 1.45Y 834
Financial services 72,400 143,200 91.E15
Total 53,032,594 54,757,216 $4.817.500
EARNINGS (LOSS) BEFORE TAXES
Homebuilding
North $(37,07TT) S170.636 S241,183
Southeast (59,419) 253,120 179,242
Texas 27,098 59 854 44,308
West (355,583) 89533 279,477
Financial services 40,927 67,695 59373
Corporate and unallocated (36,044} (73.730) {82,532
Total $(420,098) S507, 14 §721.051
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
Homebuilding
North $9,080 $9.620 SHLROD
Southeast 8,252 10,913 9483
Texas 6,856 7.366 6.049
West 27,552 15,981 14,595
Financial services 1,054 1,225 1LY
Corporate and unallocated 1,700 1,626 1517
Total $54,494 846,731 S43.1660

DECEMBER 31,

(1 thousundv} 2007 2006
IDENTIFIABLE ASSETS
Homebuilding
North $724,105 SU41.791
Southeast 693,532 v31.275
Texas 421,359 440,743
West 379,640 RO 40
IFinancial services 93,200 #1.540
Corporare and unallocared 230,343 151,308
Toal $2,542,179 $3.416,697




Note C: Earnings Per Share Reconciliation

The following table sets forth the computarion of basic and dilured camings per share:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 35,

{in thaswsunds, exvept share ditu) 2007 200K 2K
NUMERATOR
Net errmings {loss) $(333,526) $359,992 S447.052
DENOMINATOR
Basic earmings per share—weighted-averagye sharees 42,136,315 44,228 5002 46,966,517
lifteet of dilutive securitics:
srock oprions - 1,294,237 2, 140,2t0
Liquity incentive plan - 421,709 Jad,370
Dilutive potential of common shares - 1,715,940 2524570
Dilutive camings per share—adjusted weighted-average shares and assumed
CONVETSIONS 42,136,315 45944 448 $9,400, RRT
NET EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE
Basic $(1.92) SK.14 $9.52
Dilured {1.92) 7.43 9.03

For the vear ended December 31, 2007, the effect of outstanding restricted stock umits and stock options was not included in the
dilured earnings per share calculaton as their effect would have been anndilunive due to the Company’s net loss for the vear.
Options to purchase 1.1 millon shares and 205,000 shares of common stock at various prices were outstanding ar December 31,
2006 and 2003, respectively, but were not included in the computation of dilured earnings per share for those annual periods
because their effect would have been anndilutive since their exercise prices were greater than the average marker price of the
common shares,

Note D: Derivative Instruments

The Company, which uses derivarve financial instruments in its normal course of operations, has no derdvative financial
instruments that are held for trading purposes.

The contract or notonal amounts of these financial instruments at December 31 were as follows:

fin thowsandi) 2007 N6
Mortgage mierest rate lock commioments $66,126 $124.027
tedgng contracts:

Forward-delivery contracts 47,500 1,00

IRLCs represent loan commutments with customers at matket rates generally up to 180 days before settlement. IRLCs expose the
Company to marker risk as a result of increases 1 mortgage interesr rates. At December 31, 2007, IRLCs had interest rates
generally ranging from five to seven percent, compared to five to ten percent at December 31, 2006.

Hedging contracts are regularly entered into by the Company for the purpose of mitigating its exposure to movements in interest
rates on IRLCs. The selection of these hedging contracts is based upon the Company’s secondary markenng straregy, which
establishes a risk-tolerance level. Ajor factors influencing the use of vanous hedging contracts include general market condinons,
interest rates, tvpes of mortgages originated and the percentage of IRLCs expected to fund. The marker risk assumed while
holding the hedging contracts generally mitgares the market risk associated with IR1.Cs.

The Company is exposed to credit-related losses in the event of nonperformance by counterparties to certain hedging contracts.
Credit risk is limited to those instances where the Company is in a net unrealized gain position. The Company manages this credit
sk by entering into agreements with counterparties meeting its credit standards and by monitoring position limits.

During the second quarter of 2006, the Company terminated its $100.0 million treasury lock ar 4.2 percent and its $150.0 million
treasury lock ar 4.1 percent. These hedges were entered in1o to facilitare the replacement of higher-rate senior and senior
subordinated debt in 2006 and were evaluated and deemed to be highly effective at the incepnion of the contracts. The Company
accounted for the treasury locks as cash flow hedges, in accordance with SFAS 133, As a result of changes in the timing of the
Company’s debt 1ssuance and in the term of debt issued in the second quarter of 2006, a gain of $9.2 million was recognized
during thar period, reflecuing the meffective portion of those cash flow hedges. For the vear ended 2006, the Company recognized
prerax gains of $9.9 million from the termination of these treasury locks. The $8.4 million effective portion of the settlement value
of the $150.0 million treasury Jock was recorded. net of income tax effect, in “Accumulated other comprehensive income™ and
will be amoruzed over the seven-vear life of the related debt instrument. The Company recorded amortization of $1.2 million and
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approximately $704.000 related to the effective portion of this termination for the vears ended December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.

Note E: Fair Values of Financial [nstruments

The Company’s financial instruments are held for purposes other than trading. The fair values of these financial mstruments are
based on quoted marker prices, where available, or are estimated by using either present value or other valuation techniques.
Estimated fair values are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including discount rates and estimates of cash flows. In
that regard, derived fair value estimates cannot always be substantiated by comparison to mdependent markers.

"The rable below sets forth the carrving values and fair values of the Company’s financial instruments ar December 31, 2007 and
2006. It excludes nonfinancial instruments, and accordingly, the aggregare fair value amounts presented do not represent the
underlying value ro the Company.

2007 M)
CARRYING FAIR CARRYING AR
{in thonsamds) VALUE VALUE VALUE VALULY
OTHER ASSETS
Mortgage loans held-for-sale $12,557 $12,813 $11,767 $11,939
DEBT
Senior notes $800,000 $751,885 SO UK SR 095
OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Martgage inrerest rare lock commitments $298 $208 5598 S598
Forvard-delivery contracts (181) (181} 152 152

The carrving amaounts of cash and cash equivalenrs and secured notes pavable are reported 1n the balance sheet and approximate
their fair values. The fair values of the semor notes, mortgage loans held-for-sale, forward- delivery contracts and IRLCs are based
on either quoted market prices or marker prices for similar financial instruments. The fair values of the IR1.Cs do not include
amounts associated with the furure servicing of loans.

Note F: Debt

Debt consists of the following at December 31:

(in thonsands) 2007 2006
SEor notes $800,000 SO0 000
Secured notes pavable 39,080 50,017
Total $839,080 950,117

At December 31, 2007, marturitics of debt are scheduled as follows:

(in Hhwssanids )

208 $75,512
24019 7,842
2010 3,920
2011 1,408
After 2011 750,398
Total delyt $839,080

At December 31, 2007, the Company had ourstanding {#) $50.0 million of 3.4 percent senior notes due June 2008; (6

$250.0 million of 5.4 percent sentor notes due May 2012; () $250.0 million of 6.9 percenr senior notes due June 2013; and (@)
$250.0 milien of 5.4 percenr senior notes due January 2015, Each of the senior notes pays interest semiannually and mav be
redeemed at a stated redemption price, at the option of the Company, in whole or in part, ar any time.

During 2007, the Company redecemed $75.0 million and $25.0 million of its 5.4 percent senior notes due June 2008 in August and
December 2007, respectively. The redemption prices were 130.2 percent and 100.8 percent of the principal amount of the notes
outstanding, respectively, plus accrued interest as of the redemption dates. The Company recognized an aggregate loss of
approximately §490,000 related to the early retirement of these notes in 2007, (See “Financial Conditon and Liquidine” within
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.™)

In 2006, the Company redeemed $150.0 million of its 9.1 percent senior subordinated notes due June 2011, of which 1t owned
$6.5 million. The Company recorded an expense of $7.7 million related to the early retirement of debrt for the vear ended

December 31, 2006. Additienally, the Compam?’s 8.0 percent senior notes, which totaled 3100.0 million, matured 1n August 2006,
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(See “Financial Condition and Liquidity” within “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condirtion and Resulrs of
Operations.™)

Also in 2006, the Company terminated its treasury locks, which were entered into 1o facilitate the replacement of higher-rate
senior and senior subordinated debt in 2006. The Company recognized gains of $9.9 million for the vear ended December 31,
2006, related to the termination of these locks. (See Note 1D, “Derivative lnstruments.”™)

The senior notes and indentute agreements are subject to certain covenants that include, among other things, restrictions on
additional secured debit and the sale of assets. The Company was in compliance with these covenants at December 31, 2007

During 2007, the Company amended its unsecured revolving credit facility from $1.1 billion to §750.0 million. The credit
agreement, which marures in January 2011, also provides access to an additional $750.0 million of financing through an accordion
fearure, under which the apgregate commitment may be increased up to $1.5 billion, subjecr to the availability of addinonal
lending commitments. The revolving credit facility includes a $75.0 million swing-line facility and a 5600.0 mallion sublimit for the
issuance of standby letters of credit. Amounts borrowed under the credit agreement are guaranteed on a joinr and several basis by
substantially all of the Company’s 100 percent-owned homebuilding subsidiaries. Such guarantees are full and unconditional.
Interest rates on outstanding borrowings are determined cither by reference to LIBOR, with margins derermined based on
changes in the Company’s leverage ratio and credit ratings, or by reference to an alternare base rate. The credit agreement 1s used
for general corporate purposes and containg vatous customary affirmative, negative and financial covenants. The Company was
in compliance with these covenants a1 December 31, 2007, There were no borrowings outstanding under the agreement a1
December 31, 2007 or 2006. Letters of credir aggregating $137.8 million and $192.9 million were outstanding under the facility at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Under the facility, the unused borrowing capacity totaled $392.2 million and

$940.6 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. (See “Financial Condinion and Liquidin™ within “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”)

In February 2008, the Company entered into a Sccond Amendment (o its $750.0 million credit facility, The Second Amendment
reduces the base amount for the minimum consolidated tangible net worth covenant the Company is required to maintun under
its credit facility to $850.0 million; increases the borrowing base by adding unrestricted cash up to $300.0 million; and increases
the definition of matenal indebredness o $20.0 million.

At December 31, 2007, the Company’s obligarions 1o pay principal, premium, if any, and interest under 11s $7530.0 million
unsecured revolving credit facility: 3.4 percent sendor notes due June 2008: 5.4 percent sentor notes due May 2012; 6.9 percent
sentor notes due June 2013; and 5.4 purcent sentor notes due January 2005 are guammecd on a joint and several basis by
substantially all of its wholly-owned homebuilding subsidiaries. Such guarantees are full and uncondinonal. (See Note K,
“Supplemental Guarantor Information.”)

To finance irs land purchases, the Company may also use scller-financed nonrecourse secured notes pavable. At December 31,
2007 and 2006, owstanding scller-financed nonrecourse notes payable were $39.1 million and $50.1 million, respectively.

Note G: Income Taxes

Deferred x assers are recognized for the estimared rax effects artriburable to deductible temporary differences and tax
carrvforwards relared to tax credits and operating losses and are realized when existing temporary differences are carried back to
profitable vear(s) and for carried forward 1o future years having taxable income. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuarion
allowance if it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax asser will not be realized. The Company generated
significant deferred tax assets in 2007 largely due to the inventory impairments it incurred dunng the vear. The Company
evaluates its deferred tax assers on a quarterly basis to determine whether a valuation allowance 1s required. In accordance with
SFAS 109, the Company assesses whether a valuation allowance should be established based on irs determination of whether it is
more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assers will not be realized. In light of the continued downrarm in
the housing market and the uncerminty as to its duration, which limits the Company’s ability to predict raxable income bevond the
near term, the Company determined that an allowance against its deferred tax asset was required. Therefore, dunng the fourth
quarter of 2007, the Company recorded a valuation allowance of $75.2 million against its deferred tax assets, which was reflected
as a noncash charge (o income tax expense. The valuation allowance is comprised of net state taxes of $21.7 million, for which
carrybacks are generally statuterily not allowed, and federal taxes of $53.5 million that may not be realized through a carryback to
a profitable year or be offset against taxable income in the near term. For federal purposes, net operating losses can be carried
forward 20 vears and, for state purposes, can generally be carrded forward 10 to 15 years depending on the 1axing junsdiction. To
the extent that the Company generates sufficient taxable income in the future 1o utilize the tax benefits of related deferred tax
assets, the Company expecets 1o experence a reduction in its effective 1ax rate as the valuation allowance is reversed.



As a result of the noncash fax charge, the Company's effective income tax benefit rate was 20.6 percent for the vear ended
December 31, 2007, as compared to an effective provision rate of 36.5 percent and 38.0 percent for the vears ended 2006 and
2003, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, no valuation allowance for the deferred tax asset was
required. The decrease in effective income tax rate in 2006, compared to 2005, was primarily due to the Company’s reversal of
prior vear tax provisions no longer required due 1o the expiration of various mx statutes of limitations and the impact of lower

prefax earnings for the vear. The Conmpany had # net current ax receivable of $9.1 million at December 31, 2007, and a net
current fax lability of $36.4 million at December 31, 2006. These amounts are reporied in the consolidared balance sheets in

“Accrued and other liahilines.”

The following table reconciles the starutory federal income tax rate o the Company’s effective income tax rate for the vears ended

December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005;

2007 2006 2AN5
Incomu taxes at federal statutory rate 35.0% 3540 35400
Srate mcome taxes, net of federal tax 32 3.2 32
Domestic production acuvity deducuon - (0. {.8)
Resolution of ax contingency 2.0 (1.9 -
Goodwitl (1.4) - -
Deferred tax asset allowance (17.8) - -
Ohther {0.4) 0.2 0.6
liffective tax rate 20.6% 36.3% 3B

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrving amounts of assers and liabiliries
for financial reporiing purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of the Company’s
deferred tax assets and liabilites at December 31 were as follows:

(7n thossanidv) 2007 20600
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
Warranty, legal and other aceruals $23,801 $29.024
Emplovee benefits 18,574 31427
Noncash charge tor impairment uf Tong-lived assets 187,385 25,105
State net operating loss carryforwurds 1,755 -
Crther 4,435 8411
Toal 265,950 111972
Vahnon allowance (75,166) -
Total deterred tax assets 190,784 111,972
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
Deferred recognition of income and gains (2,224) (H037)
Capmalized expenses {27,605) (19.183)
Other (2,890 (4.553)
Total deferred tax labilitics (32,7119) (27.773)
NET DEFERRED TAX ASSET $158,065 SB4199
The Company’s expense for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, 13 summarized as follows:
(in thosiandy) 2007 2006 2M5
CURRENT EXPENSE (BENEFIT)
Federal $(14,323) 52006635 243,220
State 1,617 32,700 36,852
Toral current expense (benetu) (12,706) 239,434 28,072
DEFERRED EXPENSE (BENEFIT)
lederal (84,872) {27.848) {(5.214)
State 11,006 {44200 (799
Tonal defeered expense (benetin (73,866) {32.268) (6073)
Total expense {beneti) $(86,572) S207 166 S273.999

The Company implemented the provisions of FIN 48 effective January 1, 2007, As of the date of adoption, the Company’s net
lability for unrecognized tax benefits was $11.4 million, which represented $15.6 million of gross unrecognized tax benefirs less
$4.2 million of indirect tax benefits. The Company accounis for interest and penalties on unrecognized tax benefits through s
provision for income taxes. As of December 31, 2007, the Company’s liability for gross unrecognized rax benefirs was

$11.8 mulhon, of which $8.3 nullion, if recogmzed, will affect the Company’s effective tax rate. The Company had $4.4 million and

$5.8 mullion 1n accrued mterest and penalties at January

1 and December 31, 2007, respectively. The Company estimates that,

within 12 months, $2.4 million of gross state unrecognized tax benefits will reverse due 1o the andcipated expiration of ume 1o

A83€8S tax.
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The Company’s summary of accounting for tax uncertaintics at December 31, 2007, and for the period then ended follows:

{in thotsands) 2007
Balance at January $15,555
Additons related to corrent year pasitinns 1,947
Additions related to prior vear positions 1,898
Reductions due to setlements (300)
Reductions due to expiration of the statwe of Imitations {7,256)
Balance at December 31 511,844

As of December 31, 2007, the 2004 through 2007 rax vears remain open for examination.
Note H: Emplovee Incentive and Stock Plans

Retirement Savings Opportunity Plan (*RSOP")

All full-time emplovees are eligible to participate in the RSOP. Part-time emplovees are eligible to paricipate in the RSOP
following the completion of 1,000 hours of service within the first 12 months of emplovment or within any plan vear after the
date of hire. Pursuant to Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code, the plan permits deferral of a portion of a participant’s
income inro a varery of investment options. Total compensation expense related to the Company’s marching contnibutions for
this plan amounted to $10.0 million, $12.0 million and $11.0 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan {“ESPPT)

All full-time emplovees of the Company, with the exception of its executive officers, are eligible to participate in the ESPT.
Eligible employees authodze pavroll deductions to be made for the purchase of shares. The Company marches a portion of the
emplovee’s contribution by donaring an additional 20.0 percent of the emplovee’s payroll deducton. Stock is purchased by a plan
administrator on a regular monthly basis. All brokerage and transaction fees for purchasing the stock are paid for by the
Company. The Company’s expense related to irs matching contriburion for this plan was approximately $354,000, $495,000 and
$514,000 1 2007, 2006 and 2005, respecrively.

Supplemenial EExecntive Retirement Plans

The Company has supplemental nonqualified retirement plans, which generally vest over five-vear periods beginning in 2003,
pursuant fo which the Company will pay supplemental pension benefits to key emplovees upon retirement. In connection with
these plans, the Company has purchased cost-recovery life insurance on the lives of certain emplovees. Insurance conrracts
associated with the plans are held by trusts established as part of the plans to implement and carry out their provisions and
finance their related benefits. The rrusts are owners and beneficiaries of such contracts. The amount of coverage is designed to
provide sufficient revenue to cover all costs of the plans if assumptions made as to employment term, mortality experience, policy
carnings and other factors are realized. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the cash surrender value of these contracts was

$28.5 million and $24.8 million, respectively, and is included in “Orther” assets. The net periodic benefit cost of these plans for the
vear ended December 31, 2007, was $5.7 million and included service costs of $4.5 million, interest cosrs of §1.4 mallion and
investment earnings of 3217,000. The net periodic benefir cost of these plans for the vear ended December 31, 2000, was

$3.3 million and included service costs of $4.3 million, interest costs of $1.1 million and investment earnings of $2.1 million. The
£24.0 million and $18.0 million projected benefic obligations a1 December 31, 2007 and 20006, respectively, were equal to the net
liability recognized in the balance sheet at those dates. The weighted-average discount rate used for the plans was 7.7 percent for

both 2007 and 20006,
Note I: Stock-Based Compensation

The Ryland Group, Inc. 2007 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan™) permits the granting of stock optons, restricted stock awards,
stock units or any combinarion of the foregoing 10 emplovees. Stock options granted in accordance with the Plan generally have a
maximum term of five vears and vest in cqual annual installmenrs over three vears. Qutstanding stock options granted under
predecessor plans have a maximum term of five and ten vears. Qutstanding restricted stock units granted under predecessor plans
generally vest in three equal annual installments. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, stock options or other awards or units available
for grant toraled 1,587,725 and 240,645, respectively,

The Ryland Group, Inc. 2006 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan {the “Director Plan™) provides for a stock award of 3,000
shares to each non-emplovee director on May 1 of each vear. New non-emplovee direcrors will receive a pro-rata stock award

30 days after their date of appoiniment or election based on the remaining portion of the plan vear in which thev are appointed or
elected. Stock awards are fully vested and non-forfeitable on their applicable award dates. At December 31, 2007 and 20006, there
were 93,000 and 120,000 stock awards available for future grant in accordance with the Direcror Plan, respecuvely. Previously,
The Ryland Group, Inc. 2004 Non-Emplovee Director Equity Plan and its predecessor plans provided for automauc grants of
non-statutory stock options to directors. These stock options are fully vesred and have a maximum term of ten vears.
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All outstanding stock options, stock awards and restricred stock awards have been granted in accordance with the terms of the
applicable Plan, Director Plan and their respective predecessor plans, all of which were approved by the Company’s stockholders,
Certain option and share awards provide for accelerared vesting if there is a change in control {as defined in the plans).

SFAS 123(R) requires cash flows artriburable ro tax henefirs resulting from tax deductions in excess of compensation cost
recognized for those stock options (“excess tax benefits”) ro be classified as financing cash flows. Excess tax benefits of
$6.7 million and $14.6 million for the 12 months ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, have been classified as
financing cash inflows in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

The Company recorded $12.3 million and $25.6 million of stock-based compensation expense for the vears ended December 31,
2007 and 20006, respectively. Stock-based compensanon expenses have been allocared to the Company’s reportable segments and
are reported in “Corporate.” “Financial services” and “Selling, general and administrative” expenses.

The following rable illustrates the effect on ner earnings and earnings per share had the Company applicd the fair value
recognition provisions of SFAS 123 to stock options granted under the Company’s equity-based compensation pl.ms in rthe yea
ended December 31, 2005, For purposes of this pro forma disclosure, the grant-date fair value of the Company’s stock optmm
was estimated by using a Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing formula and amortized ro expense over the stock options’ vesting
periods.

{in thonsands, exeept per shart dutd) 2(M15
Net eamings, as reported S447.052
Add: Stock-based emplovee compensation expense mcluded i

reported net earnmgy, net of related ax effects! 11,695
Deduct: Total stock-based emplovee compensation expense deteemined under fair value method for all awurds,

net of related tax effects (17.653)
Pro forma net eamings SH41,095
Farmimgs per share:

Basic—as reported §0.52

Basic—pro forma .39

Diluted—as reported U413

Ehluted—pro forma g1

aaunt represents the Company s net viack-buved vompesnaiion expenie wsiocaied aith redricted stock wnits,

The Company has determined the grant-date fair value of stock options u‘;ing the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing formula.
Expected volatliry is based upon the historcal volatlin- of the Company’s common stock. The expected dividend vield 1s based
on an annual dividend rate of S0.48 per common share. The risk-free interest rate for periods within the contractual life of the
stock option award 1s based upon the zero-coupon U.S. Treasuny bond on the date the stock option 1s granted, with a matunty
equal to the expected option life of the stock option granted. The expected option life is derived from historcal experdence under
the Company’s share-based payment plans and represents the period of fime that stock option awards granred are expected 1o be
ourstanding. The following table presents the weighted-average inpurs used and fair values determined for stock options granted
during the vears ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

2007 206 2003
lixpected volaality 35.8% 384 IRAN
Lxpected dividend vield L1% (L8 5%
Expected term (i years) 34 32 30
Risk-free rate 4.6% 34 L ALt
Weighted-average grant-date fair value $12.70 $10.17 $18.99




A summarv of srock option activity in accordance with the Company’s plans as of December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, and

changes for the vears then ended follows:

WEIGTHTTED-
AVERAGI
REMAINING

WEIGIHTEED- AGGREGATL

AVERAGLE CONTRACTUAL INTRINSIC
BENERCISE LIFEE VALLUE
STTARIER PRICIY {in years) (in thnandy)
Oprions outstanding at January 1, 2003 5.535,39R $1U.15 .38
Granted 569,750 05.36
Exercised (1.408973) 14.84
Forfeited (4 L.605) 42,52
Options outstanding at [ecember 31, 2005 4,654,570 §3591 571 $215.199
Avalable for future grant 1.612.463
T'vtal shares reserved 0.267.4033
Opuons exercisable at December 31, 2KI5 33601535 $17.62 513 183,191
Opaons outstanding at January 1, 2006 4654570 §25.91 5.7
Granted 374500 6231
Exercised (798,218) 12.34
Forteited (66,710) 50.83
Options outstanding at Decemnber 31, 2000 4164142 $31.29 502 $1416,250
Available for future grant 360045
Twal shares reserved 4524787
Opdons exercisable at December 31, 2(kK 3,365,335 $25.54 5.04 102,729
Options outstanding at January 1, 2007 4,164,142 $31.29 5.02
Granted 658,500 43.60
Exercised (638,232) 12.62
Forfeited (156,244 53.07
Options outstanding at December 31, 2007 4,034,166 $35.4 4.31 $23,744
Available for future grant 1,680,725
Total shares reserved 5,714,891
Options cxercisable at December 31, 2007 3,103,087 $31.22 4.42 $23,744

The Company recorded stock-based compensation expense related to stock options of $4.9 miilion and $10.4 million for the vears
ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. On a pro forma basts, stock-based compensation expense related to stock
options for the vear ended December 31, 2005 was $9.7 million.

A summary of stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2007 follows:

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING

OPTLONS EXNERCISABLLE

WEIGIHTLELD- WEIGHTED- WEIGHTED-
RANGIE OF AVERAGI AVERAGE AVERAGIH
EXERCISE NUMBIER REMAINING FEXERCISE NUMHER EXERCISE
PRICES QUTSTANDING LIFE (Years) PRICIS EXNERCISABLE PRICE
$ 41Nws 638 727,802 1.6 $5.99 721,802 $5.99
$ 101908 244 914,161 4.5 18.74 914,161 18.74
$ 356lw08 5754 1,600,953 5.5 43.92 965,370 44.16
$§ 6l¥ws 83.13 791,250 4.2 64.66 495,754 66,10

The toral intrinsic values of stock options exercised during the vears ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, were
$17.8 million, $38.3 mullion, and $77.7 million, respectively. The intrinsic value of a stock aption is the amount by which the
market value of the underlying stock exceeds the exercise price of the option.

A summary of the Company’s non-vested options as of and for the vears ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, follows:

2007 LY 2005

WEIGHTED- WEIGHTED- WEIGHTED-

AVERAGE AVERAGLE AVERAGL

GRANT-DATE GRANT-1IATIE GRANT-DATE

SHARES FAIR VALUE SHARES FATR VALULL SHARES FAIR VALULL

Nonvested ophions outstanding ag January 1 798,807 $16.40 1,204,135 SEAA0 1,858,407 S0.19
Giranted 658,500 12.70 374,500 1917 56Y.750 1899
Vested (375,984) 1457 (R3.018) 1282 (1092517 9.21
Forfeited (150,244) 15.54 {60,711 16,82 {41.0605) 1205
Nonvested options outstanding at December 31 931,079 $14.67 TUR RO 16,40 1,294,035 S13.40
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As of December 31, 2007, there was $8.5 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nenvested stock option
awards granted under the Company’s plans. That cost is expected to be recogmzed over the next 2.3 vears.

The Company has made several restricted stock awards to senior executives under the Plan and its predecessor plans,
Compensation expense recognized for such awards was $6.1 million, $13.3 million and $18.8 million for the vears ended

December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The following 15 a summary of activity relating to restricted stock awards:

2007 2006 2005

Restncted shares at January 1 435,664 HHLOK 356,800
Shares awarded 25,000 133,001} 253,000
Shares vested (182,664) (138.336) {168.800)
Shares forfeired (36,000} - -
Restricted shares at December 31 242,060 435,664 41,000

At December 31, 2007, the outstanding restricted shares will vest as follows: 2008—121,331; 2009-—80,669; and 2010—40,000.

‘The Company has granted stock awards to its non-employee directors pursuant to the terms of the Director Plan. The Company
recorded stock-based compensation expense relared 1o such grants in the amount of $1.2 million and $1.9 milhon during the years
ended December 31, 2007 and 20006, respectively.

Note J: Commitments and Contingencics

Commitlmenty

1o the normal course of business, the Company acquires rights under option agreements to purchase land or lots for use in future
homebuilding operations. At December 31, 2007, it had related cash deposits and letrers of credir outstanding that totaled

$74.7 million for land options pertaining to land purchase contracts with an aggregate purchase prce of 3721.4 million. At
December 31, 2007, the Company had commitments with respect to option contracts having specific performance provisions of
approximately $24.2 million, compared to $34.2 million ar December 31, 2006.

Rent expense primanly relates to office facilities, model homes, furnirure and equipment.

YEAR ENDIED DECEMBER 31,

(in thoiands) 2007 2006 2005
Total rent expense $26,760 533232 S17.050
|ess ncome from subleases (246) {950 (32
INet rent expense $26,514 $22,282 S16,738

At December 31, 2007, future minimum rental commirments under noncancelable leases with remaining terms in excess of one
vear are as follows:

(7 thenesands)

2008 $12,056
2009 10,827
2014 8,417
2011 6,334
2012 4,018
Thereafter 5,417
1.ess sublease mcome (1,362)
Total lease commitments $45,707

RMC purchases optional commitments from third parties for the purpose of mirigating its exposure to movements in interest
rates on customet-financing commitments. RMC pavs the investor a fixed one-time premium for these commitments. In return,
RAIC receives the option of selling a Joan at a fixed rate in the commitment for a stipulated period of time. Optional
commitments with investors are non-transferable and RAC’s risk is limited ro the inirial premium paid. Fair values of opuonal
commirments are estimared based on the premium paid and amortized over the duration of the commitment. The ourstanding
commitments at December 31, 2007 and 2006, were $32.5 million and $183.6 million, with fair values of approximately $15.000
and $12,000, respectively.

Contingencies
As an on-site housing producer, the Company 1s often required by some municipalities to obtain development or performance

bonds and letters of credit in support of its contractual obligattons. Ar December 31, 2007, total development bonds were
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$313.2 million, while total related deposits and letrers of credit were $50.0 million. In the event that any such bonds or letters of
credir are called, the Company would be required to reimburse the issuer; however, it does not expect that any currently
outstanding bonds or letters of credir will be called.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, once of the joint ventures in which the Company participates had debt of $435.3 million and
$407.2 million, respectively. In this joint venture, the Company and its parters provided guarantees of delit on a pro rata basis.
The Company had a 3.3 percent pro rata interest on the debt, or $14.5 million and $13.5 mullion, at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively, and a completion guarantee related to project development that would require the Company to pay a pro rata
amount of additional development costs. The guarantees apply if the joint venture defaults on its loan arrangement and the fair
value of the collateral, which includes land and improvements, is less than the loan balance. Tn another of its joint ventures, the
Company has guaranteed up o 50.0 percent of a $55.0 million revolving credit facility. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the
actual borrowings againse the revolving credit facility for this joint venture were $50.6 million and $53.8 million, respectively, of
which the Company’s pro rata share of debt was $25.3 million and $26.9 million, respectively,

TRLCs represent loan commitments with customers at market rates generally up ro 180 dayvs before setilement. At December 31,
2007, the Company had outsranding IRI.Cs totaling $66.1 milhon. Hedging contracts are utilized to mitigate the risk associated
with interest rate fluctuations on IRLCs. (See Note D, “Denvative Instruments.”)

The Company provides product warranties covering workmanship and marerials for one vear, certain mechanical svstems for two
vears and structural systems for ten vears, The Company estimates and records warranty liabilities based upon historical
experience and known risks at the fime a home closes, and in the case of unexpected claims, upon identification and
quantification of the obligations. Actual future warranty costs could differ from current estimates,

Changes in the Company’s product liability reserve during the period are as follows:

fin Mol 2007 2006
Balance at January | 544,102 S41,647
Warrantics ixsued 11,820 29828
Sertlerments made (19,365) (27.373)
Balance at December 31 $36,557 S44,102

The Company requires substantially all of its subcontractors to have general Hability insurance, which includes construction defect
coverage, and workmans compensation insurance. These insurance policies protect the Company against a portion of its risk of
loss from claims, subject to cerrain self-insured retentions, deductibles and other coverage limits. However, with fewer insurers
participating, general hability insurance for the homebuilding industry has become more difficult to obtain over the pasr several
vears. As a result, RHIC provides insurance services to the homebulding segments’ subcontractors in certain markets. At
December 31, 2007, RHIC had $34.1 million in cash and cash equivalents, of which $13.5 mullion was restneted, and $28.3 mullion
in subcontractor product lability reserves, which are included under *Cash and cash cquivalents” and “Accrued and other
liabilities,” respectvelr. At December 31, 2006, RIH1C had $28.9 million in cash and cash equivalents and $22.5 million in
subcontractor product liability reserves, which are included in the consolidated balance sheets.

Changes in the Company’s insurance reserves during the period are as follows:

{onr thoetserrels) 2007 20K
Balanee at January 1 $22,521 $16,907
Insurance expense provisions 5,772 5,614
Balance at December 31 $28,293 §22.521

The Company is party to various legal proceedings generally incidental to 1ts businesses. Lingation reserves have been established
based on discussions with counsel and the Company’s analvsis of historical claims. The Company has, and requires the majority of
1ts subcontractors o have, general hability insurance to protect it aganst a portion of its risk of loss and cover 1t agamst
construction-related claims. The Company establishes reserves to cover its self-insured retentions and deductible amounts under
those policies. ue to the high degree of judgment required in determining these estimated reserve amounts and the inherent
varability in predicting furure sertfements and judicial decisions, actual future litipation costs could differ from the Company’s
current estimates. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company had legal reserves of $15.3 million and $21.0 million,
respectively. (See “Ttem 3. Legal Proceedings.”)

Note K: Supplemental Guarantor Information

The Company’s obligations to pay principal, premium, if any, and interest under its $750.0 million unsecured revolving credit
facility; the RMC Agreement; 5.4 percent senior notes due June 2008; 5.4 percent senior notes due May 2012; 6.9 percent senior
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notes due June 2013; and 5.4 percent sentor notes due January 2015 are guaranteed on a joint and several basis by substantially all
of its 100 percent-owned homebuilding subsidianes (the “Guarantor Subsidiaries™}. Such guarantees are full and unconditional.

In lieu of providing separate financial starements for the Guarantor Subsidiaries, the accompanving condensed consolidating
financial statements have been included. Management does not believe thar separate financial starements for the Guaranror
Subsidiartes are material to investors and are, therefore, not prescnrcd.

The following information presents the consolidaring statements of earmings, financial position and cash flows for {4) the parent
company and issuer, The Ryland Group, Inc. (“I'RG, Inc.™); (5) the Guarantor Subsidiaries; (¢ the non-Guarantor Subsidianes;
and (4} the consolidation eliminarions used to arrdve ar the consolidated information for The Ryland Group, Inc. and subsidiaries.

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

NON-
GUARANTOR GUARANTOR CONSOLIDATING CONSOLIDATED
(eu thoeraseds) TRG, INC. SUBSIDIARIES SUBSIDIARIES ELIMINATIONS TOTAL
REVENUES 51,863,482 $1,147,957 $74,001 $(52,846) $3,032,594
EXPENSES
Corporaie, general and admmistrative 2,034,125 1,437,849 33,074 (52,846) 3,452,202
lixpenses related to early retirement
of debr 490 - - - 490
TOTAL EXPENSES 2,034,615 1,437,849 33,074 (52,846) 3,452,692
Larmings {loss) before taxes (171,133} (289,892) 40,927 - (420,098)
Tax expense (benefit) (35,266) (59,740) 8434 - (86,572)
Liquity in net eamings (loss) of
subsidianies (197,659) - - 197,659 -
NET EARNINGS (LOSS) $(333,526) $(230,152) 32,403 $197,659 $(333,526)
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF EARNINGS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006
NON-
GUARANTOR GUARANTOR CONSOLIDATING  CONSOLIDATED
(in thonsaned) TRG, INC SUBSIDIARIES SUBSIDIARIES FLIMINATIONS TOTAL
REVENUES S2 859,744 SEOUR 416 $117.342 S(128,280) $4.757.216
EXPENSES
Corporate, general and administrative 3450382 LRG0 49,0647 {(128,286) 4182413
lixpenses relared w early retirement
of debi 7,695 - - — 7095
TOTAL EXPENSES 2458.077 E410,670 40,647 (128,2806) 4,190,108
liamings before taxes 401,667 97,746 67,695 - 567,108
‘Fax expense 145,125 36,055 25,386 - 207,166
liguity m net earmings of subsidianes 103, 4K) - - (103,400 -
NET EARNINGS S350 942 S610u1 542,300 S{103.40 5359042
CONSOLIDATING STATEXNENT OF FARNINGS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
NOIN-
GUARANTOR GUARANTOR CONSOLIDATING  CONSQLIDATED
{in thowsands) TR TN, SUBSIDIARIES SUBSIDIARIES ELIMINATIONS TOTAL
REVENUES 2777565 §2,064,488 $91.815 $(116,302} $4,817.566
EXPENSES
Cormporate, general and administrative 234722 1,797 376 32442 (116,302 4 088 23R
lixpenses related to early retirement
of debt 8277 - — — 8.277
TOTAL EXPENSES 2,382,999 1.797.376 3242 {116,302} 4096515
Earnings before taxes 304306 267,112 59,373 - 721,051
Tax expense 150, 104 101,502 22,391 - 273990
Hquity in net eamings of subsidiaries 202592 - - (202,592} —
NET EARNINGS S447,052 S165,610 S36,982 ${202,592 $447,032
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CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 3t, 2007
NON-
GUARANTOR GUARANTOR CONSOLIDATING CONSOLIDATED
(i thentianedi) TRG, INC. SUBSIDIARIES SUBSIDIARIES ELIMINATIONS TOTAL
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $12,908 $172,363 $58,343 $— $243,614
Consolidated inventones owned 1,165,740 570,119 - - 1,735,859
Consolidated inventories not owned 1,179 6,940 68,615 - 76,734
Total inventories 1,166,919 577,059 68,615 - 1,812,593
Investment in subsidiaries/
intercompany recevables 758,282 - 2,028 (760,310) -
Oither assets 354,883 95,239 35,850 - 485,972
TOTAL ASSETS 2,292,992 844,661 164,836 (760,310 2,542,179
LIABILITIES
Accounts pavable and other accrued
liabilities 333,192 114,842 61,420 - 509,454
Debt 835,074 4,006 - - 839,080
Iercompany pavables - 316,296 - (316,296) -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,168,266 435,144 61,420 {316,296) 1,348,534
MINORITY INTEREST - - 68,919 - 68,919
STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY 1,124,726 409,517 34,497 (444,014) 1,124,726
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY $2,292,992 $844,661 $164,836 $(760,310) $2,542,179
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBLR 31, 2006
NON-

(in thenesiantidv)

TR, INC.

GUARANTOR
SUBSIDIARIES

GUARANTOR
SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDANTED
TOTAL

CONSOLIDATING
LELIMENATIONS

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Consolidated inventones owned
Consolidated inventones not owned
Total mventonies
Investment in subsidiaries/
intercompany reecivables
Oither assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accenunts payable and other aceraed
liabilities
13eht
Intercompany pavables
TOTAL LIABILITIES
MINORITY INTEREST
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

843,129 S129.079 $42.429 S— $215.037
1,563,246 44,380 - - 250,632
5,055 859 250,139 - 263.853
1.568.901 9532445 2500139 - 2771485
1023975 - 12,1748 (1.036,153) -
297071 1{K), 781 32,323 - 130,175
2033076 1,182,305 337400 (1,036,153 3416097
dRORTT 162,758 130,000 - 773.005
9414199 9018 - - Y3017
- 370,558 - {370.858) -
1,421,910 542,634 130,096 {370.858) 1,723,742
- - 181,749 - 181,749
1511166 [ VXYA] 25,624 {603,203) 1,511,166
$2933076 S1,182,305 $337.409 $(1.036,153) 53,416,697




CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

NON-
GUARANTOR GUARANTOR CONSOLIDATING CONSOLIDATED
{in thowsandy) TRG, INC, SUBSIDIARIES SUBSIDIARIES ELIMINATIONS TOTAL
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Net operating carnings (loss) $(333,5206) $(230,152) $32,493 $197.659 $(333,526)
Adsrments o recencile net carmngy (loss) 1o net
cash provided by operating activities 439,486 284,210 1,584 - 725,280
Changes i assets and Habilities 24,480 63,056 (29,506) (197,659) (139,629}
Other operating activitics, net (23,985) - - - (23,985)
Net cash provided by operaung acuvites 106,455 117,114 4,571 - 228,140
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Ner additions to property, plant and equipment {17,239 (14,256) 48 - {32,147y
Orther investing activitics, net - - 750 - 750
Net eash (used for) provided by investing activities {17,939) (14,256) 798 - {31,397)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Decrease in debre (106,025) (5,012) - - (111,037)
Commoen stock dividends, repurchases and stock
based cormpensation (57,124) - - - (57,124)
Intercompany balances 44,412 (54,562) 10,150 - -
Chther financing activirics, net - - 5) = (5}
Net cash (used for) promided by inaneing activioies (118,737) (59,574) 10,145 - (168,166}
Net (deerease) inerease moeash and eash equivalents (30,221) 43,284 15,514 - 28,577
Cash and cash equivalenrs at beganning of vear 43,129 129,079 42,829 - 215,037
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF YEAR $12,908 $172,363 $58,343 $— $243,614
CONSOLIDATING STATEAIENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENTHD DECEMBER 31, 2006
NON-
GUARANTOR GUARANTOR  CONSOLIDATING  CONSOLIDATELD
(i thassandy) TREG, N SUBSIDIARIES  SUBSIDIARIER ELIMINATIONS TOTAL
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Net operating earnings SI59.942 $61,091 S42.304 SE103.400) S359.042
Adjustments to reconcile net carnings to net cash
provided by operating activities 62,600 BOU4) 1,992 - 153.638
Changes in assers and Rabsliries {438,743) (116943) {28,049) 13 400 (480,932
Orher uperating actvities, net {13,011} - - - {1801y
Net cash (used for) provided by operaring acuvirics {34,200 33187 15,656 - 14,637
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Net additions to property. plnt and cquipment {31,280 (21,373 (1.187) - (53.839)
(rther vesting acuvities, net — -~ 2,250 - 2,250
Net easgh {psed for) provided by mvesting actvites {31,280 {21,372 1.063 — {5E.58%)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in debr 33,363 5.216) - - 28,147
Common stock dividends, repurchases and stock
based compensation (237993 - - - {237.493)
Intercompany balances 230,850 (237.229) 6379 — -
Chher financing activities, et - - {48) - {48)
Net cash provided by (used for) fmancing acuvities 26,720 {242.445) 0,331 - {200,394
Net (decrease} inerense i cash and cash equivalents {38.760) {230,630) 23080 — {246,346)
Cash and cash equivadents at beginming of vear 81,895 I5NT0Y 19,779 - 461,383
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF YEAR $43.129 $129.079 $42.829 S 5215037




CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR EXDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

GUARANTOR

NON-
GUARANTOR

CONSOLIDATING

CONSOLIDATED

fin thaysands) TRG, INC, SUBRIDIARIES  SURSIDIARIES LLIMINATIONS TOTAL
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES
Net operating camings SH7.052 S165.010 S36,982 §(202.392) SH47.052
Adjustments L reconcife net camings to net cash

provided by operating activives 43,292 2022 1512 - 65,820
Changes i assers and liabalities (359.842) {163,952) 1.791 202,592 (314t
Other operating acuvities, net 22997 - - - 22,797
Net cash provided by operating activites 153,299 22,680 U1 285 — 216,264
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES
Net addinions to preperty, plant and equipment (27.496) (20.880) (745) - {55,127
Onher investing activities, net - - 12,501 - 12,501
Net cush {used for) provided by investing activities (27.496) (26,886) 11 816G - (12,5663
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES
Incrense (deerease) in deln 360,124 13,394 (10,4909 - 363028
Common stock dividends, repurchases and stock

based compensation (158,333) - - - (158,333)
Intercompany balances (281,787, RIPRK) (37.349) - -
Other financing sctivitics, net - - (5.3960) - {5.396)
Net cash {used for) provaded by financing activitics (79.998) 332,525 (53.230) - 199,297
Net merease {deerense) in eash and cash equivaients 15,805 32R.319 (1.129) — 372995
Cash and cash equvalenss at beginamg of year 36,090 31,390 20968 - A8,384
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END

OF YEAR SH1.895 S350.709 $19.779 S S461,383

Note L: Subsequent Events

In January 2008, RMC entered into the RMC Credit Agreement. The RMC Credit Agreement matures in January 2004 and
provides for borrowings up 1o $40.0 million to fund RMC’s morigage loan origination opcmtions. It 15 secured by underlying
mortgage loans and by other assets of RALC, Faciliry balances are repaid as loans funded under the agreement are sold o rthird
parties. The RMC Credit Agreement’s interest rate 1s set at LIBOR plus 0.9 percent, with a commitment fee of 0.125 percent on
the unused portion of the facility. The RMC Credit Agreement contains representations, warranties, covenants and provisions
defining events of default. The covenants require RMC to maintain a minimum net worth and certain financial ratios,

In February 2008, the Company entered into a Second Amendment o its $750L0 million credit facility. The Second Amendment
reduces the base amount for the minimum consolidated tangible net worth covenant the Company is required to maintain under

its credit facility ro $850.0 million; increases the borrowing base by adding unrestricred cash up 1o $300.0 million; and increases
the definiton of materal indebtedness to $20.0 million.

Supplementary Data

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

(ot thomvandd. exvept sheare duta) sutandited 20607 2006
DEC.31 SEPT.30 JUN.30 MAR.31 1EC. M ST 30 JUN. 30  MAR. 31
CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
Revenues $854,143 $732,336  $739,685  $706,430 S135454F  $1,130942 S1196.802  $1,074.834
Larnings (loss) before tases {206,111) (94,521)  (88,825)  (30,641) E39.448 131,907 151,706 144,047
T'ax expense (benefit) ($,200)  (39,78D)  (36,394)  (6,196) 52,293 43966 56889 54013
Net camings (loss) $(201,910)  5(54,740) S$(52,431) S(24,848)  SA7T155  S87041  SUAKIT  SOU(D
Net carnings {loss) per comimon share:
Hasic $(4.80) $(L30)  $(125)  $(0.58) 5205 52.04 Sa1t 5195
Diluted (4.80) (1.30) (1.25) (0.58) 198 197 203 1.86
Weighted-average common shares onstanding;
Basic 42,096 41,958 42,011 42,485 42.5%4 43,159 45,026 46,134
Diluted 42,096 11,958 42,011 42,485 44123 14,542 40,763 44,334
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Report of Management

Management of the Company is responsible for the integrity and accuracy of the financial statements and all other annual report
information. The financial statements are prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and mclude
amounts based on management’s judgments and estimates.

The accounting systems, which record, summarize and report financial information, are supported by internal conrrol systems
designed to provide reasonable assurance, at an appropriate cost, that the assets are safeguarded and that transactions are recorded
in accordance with Company policies and procedures. Developing and maintaining these systems are the responsibility of
management. Proper selection, training and development of personnel also contribute to the effectiveness of the internal control
systems. For the purpose of evaluating and documenung its systems of internal control, management elected to use the ntegrated
framework promulgated by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (*COSO”). The
Company’s systems, evaluation and test results were documented. The Company’s internal auditors regularly test these systems.
Based on its evaluation, management believes that its systems of internal control over financial reporting were effectve and 1s not
aware of any material weaknesses,

The Company’s independent registered public accounting fiym also reviewed and rested the cffectiveness of these systems to the
extent it deemed necessary 10 express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements and systems of internal control.

The Audit Commitree of the Board of Directors penodically meets with management, the internal auditors and the independent
registered public accounting firm to review accounting, auditing and financial matters. Both internal auditors and the independent
registered public accounting firm have unrestricted access to the Audit Commirtee.

e Sl

ordon A, Milne
Executive 17ice President and

Chief Financial Officer

w Fristoe
enor |- 'ice President, Conrroller and

Chief Acvounting Qfficer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND STOCKHOLDERS
THE RYLAND GROUP, INC.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Ryland Group, Inc. and subsidiaries
as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, stockholders’
equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007. Qur audits also
included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15(a). These financial statements and
schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation, We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of The Ryland Group, Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our
opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whale, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note A to the financial statements, in 2006 the Company changed its method of accounting
for share-based payments.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of The Ryland Group, Inc.’s internal control over financial
reporting as of Decemnber 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated
February 22, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Los Angeles, California
February 22, 2008 G ;"—‘7’% I




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND STOCKHOLDERS
THE RYLAND GROUP, INC.

We have audited The Ryland Group, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). The Ryland Group, Inc.’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying
Report of Management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal control aver
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

A company’s internal centrol over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, The Ryland Group, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the COSO criteria,

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of The Ryland Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, stockholders’ equity,
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007, and our report dated
February 22, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Los Angeles, California G P MLL v

February 22, 2008




Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

The Company has procedures in place for accumulating and evaluating informarion thar enable 1t to prepare and file reporrs with
the SEC. At the end of the period covered by the report on Form 10-K, an evaluation was performed by the Company’s
management, including the CEO and CFO, of the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as defined
mn Rule 13a-13(c) promulgated under the Exchange Act. Based on that evaluanon, the Company’s management, including the
CEO and CFO, concluded that the Company’s disclosure contrels and procedures were effectuve as of December 31, 2007,

The Company has a committee consisting of kev officers, including the chief accounting officer and general counsel, to ensure
that all information required 1o be disclosed in the Company’s reports is accumulated and communicated o those individuals
responsible for the preparanion of the reports, as well as 1o all prinaapal exeowiive and finanaial officers, 1n 2 manner thar will allow
umely decisions regarding required disclosures.

The Company’s management, including the CEO and CFO, has evaluated any changes in the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting that occurred during the quarterly period ended December 31, 2007, and has concluded that there was no
change during this period that has materially affecred, or 1s reasonably likely to matertally affect, the Company’s internal contrel
over financial reporting,

At December 31, 2007, the Company completed a detailed evaluation of s internal control over fimancial reporting, including the
assessment, documentation and resting of s controls, as required by the Sarbanes-Oxler Act of 2002. No marenal weaknesses
were tdentfied. The Company’s management summarized its assessment process and documented its conclusions in the Report
of Management, which appears in “Part 11, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dara.”

NYSE Certification

The NYSE requires that the chief exceutive officers of its listed companies certify annually ro the NYSIZ that they are not aware
of violations by their companies of NYSIE corporate governance histng standards. The Company submitted a non-qualified
certification by its Chief Exccutive Officer to the NYSE last vear, in accordance with the NYSI2’s rules. Further, the Company
files certifications by its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer with the SEC, in accordance with the
Sarbanes-Oxley Acr of 2002. These cernfications are filed as exhibits 1o this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 9B. Other Information

N()HC.



PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Executive Officers of the Company

The following sets forth certain information regarding the executive officers of the Company:

Name

Age

Position (dute edected fo ponilron)
Prior Business Experience

R. Chad Dreier

Larrv T, Nicholson

Gordon A. Milne

Keith E. Bass

William M. Butler

Robert |. Cunnion, 111

Erc k. Elder

David L. Fristoe

Timothy J. Geckle

Dantel (5. Schreiner

Peter G. Skelly

Ken L. Trainer

60

50

43

60

(S]]
(S

N
=

51

55

44

12

Chairman of the Board of Directors (since 1994); President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company (since 1993)

Execurive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of the Company
{since 2007Y; Sentor Vice President of the Company and President of the
Southeast Region of Ryland Homes (2035-2007); President of the
Orlando Division of Ryland Flomes (1999-2005)

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company
{since 2002); Sentor Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company (2000-2002)

Senior Vice President of the Company and President of the Southeast
Region of Ryland Homes {since 2007); President of the Orlando
Division of Ryland Homes {2004-2007); Vice President of Land
Resources for the Southeast Region of Ryvland Homes (2003-2004);
Region President for Tavlor Woodrow (1997-2003)

Senior Vice President of the Company and President of the West Region
of Ryland Homes {since 2007); President of the Denver Division of
Ryland Homes (19962007}

Senior Vice President, Human Resources of the Company (since 1999)

Senior Vice President, Alarketing and Communications of the Company
(since 2000)

Senior Vice President, Controller and Chief Accountng Officer of the
Company (since 2005); Senior Vice President, Controller,

Chief Accounting Officer and Chiet Information Officer of the
Company (2000-2005)

Semor Vice Prestdent, General Counsel and Secretary of the Company
(since 1997)

Senior Vice President of the Company (since 1999); President of
Ryland Mortgage Company (since 1998)

Senior Vice President of the Company and President of the North
Region of Ryland Homes (since 2006); President of the Chicago Division
of Rvland Homes (1999-2000)

Sentor Vice President of the Company and President of the Texas
Region of Ryland Homes (since 2006); President of the Austin/San
Antonio Division of Ryland Homes (2002-2006)



The Board of Directors elects all officers.

There are no family relationships between any director or executive officer, or arrangements or understandings pursuant to which
the officers listed above were elected. FFor a description of the Compamy’s employment and severance arrangements with certain
of its executive officers, see the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2008 Aunwal Meeting of 3 tockboiders (the “2008 Proxy Statement™),
which 15 filed pursuant to Regulation 143 under the Exchange Acr.

Information as to the Company’s direcrors, executive officers and corporate governance is incorporated by reference from the
Company’s 2008 Proxy Statement, including the determination by the Board of Directors, with respect to the “Audi Committee’s

financial expert,” and the identine of each member of the Audit Commiriee of the Board of Directors.

The Company has adopted a code of ethics thar is applicable to us sentor officers, directors and employees. To retrieve the
Company’s code of ethics, visit mmeryland.com, select “Investors” and scroll down the page to “Code of Erhics.”

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The infornmation required by this item is incorporated by reference from the 2008 Proxy Statesent. The Compensarion Committee
Repaort to be included in the 2008 Praxy Statenent shall be deemed furnished in this Annwal Report on Form 10-K and shall not be
incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securdties Act or the Exchange Act as a result of such furnishing i this

Item 11,

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item set forth on page 14 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated by reference
from the 2008 Proxy Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the 2008 Proxy Stutement.
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the 2008 Proxy Statement.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

S

1.

Financial Statements

Consolidated Statements of Earnings—vears ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 30
Consolidated Balance Sheets—December 31, 2007 and 2006 M
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ iquity—-vears ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 32
Consolidated Statements of Cash I'lows—yvears ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 33
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 34

Financial Statement Schedule

Schedule [I—Valuation and Quahfying Accounts 62

Schedules not listed above have been omitted either because they are inapplicable or because the required information
has been provided in the financial statements or notes thereto,

3. Exhibirs

The following exhibits are included with this report or incorporated herein by reference as indicated below:

31

e
o

4.1

4.2

4.3

14

10.1

10.2

10.4

Articles of Restatement of The Ryland Group, Inc., us amended
(Incorpotated by reference from Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2005)

Brlaws of The Ryland Group, Inc., as amended
(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-K for the vear ended December 31, 1996)

Senior Notes, dated as of June 3, 2003
{Incorporated by reference from Registration Sratement on Form 5-3, Registration No. 333-100167)

Sentor Notes, dated as of January 11, 2005
(Incorporated by reference from Registration Statement on Form 8.3, Registration No. 333-121469)

Senior Notes, dated as of May 9, 2005
{(Incorporated by reference from Registration Statement on Form S-3, Registration No. 333-124000)

Senior Notes, dated as of Mav 30, 2006
(Incorporated by reference from Registration Statement on Form 5-3, Registrarion No. 333-124000)

Credit Agreement, dated as of January 12, 2006, berween The Ryland Group, Inc. and certain financial
mnstirutions
{Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K, filed January 13, 2006)

First Amendment to Credir Agreemeny, dared October 17, 2007, between The Ryland Group, Inc. and
certain financial institutions
{Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K, filed Ocrober 17, 2007)

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated February 15, 2008, berween The Ryland Group, Inc. and
certain financial instirutions
{Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K, filed February 15, 2008)

Credit Agreement, dated January 24, 2008, between Ryland Mortgage Company and Guaranty Bank
(Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K, filed January 29, 2008)

1992 Equity Incentive Plan of the Ryvlund Group, Inc.
(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1992)

2002 Equity Incentive Plan of The Ryland Group, Inc.
(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-Q) for the quarter ended June 30, 2002)

2005 Equity Incentive Plan of The Ryland Group, Inc.
(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2005)



3

Exhibits,

10.8

10.9

10,10

16.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10,24

10.25

conitited

The Ryland Group, Inc. 2007 Lquiry Incentive Plan
(Tncorporated by reference from Form 10-Q) for the quarter ended March 31, 2007)

Form of Non-Qualifted Srock Opnion Agreement
(Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K, filed Aprl 29, 2005)

Form of Amended and Restated Stock Unit Agreement
{Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K, filed April 18, 2006)

Non- Emplovee Director Stock Unit Plan, effective January 1, 1998, berween The Ryland Group, Inc. and
the Board of Directors
{Incorporated by reference from Form 1)-K for the vear ended December 31, 1997)

2000 Non-Employee Director Equiny Plan of The Ryland Group, Inc., as amended
{Incorporated by reference from Form 10-K for the vear ended December 31, 2000)

2004 Non-Emplovee Director Equine Plan of The Ryland Group, Inc.
{Incorpurated by reference from Form 10-0) for the quarter ended Alarch 31, 2004)

Non-Emplovee Director Stock Plan, effective Apnl 26, 2006
{Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K, filed April 27, 2006)

Amended and Resrated Employmenr Agreement, dated as of April 20, 2005, berween The Ryland
Group, Inc. and R, Chad Dreter
{Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K /A, filed AMay 4, 2003)

The Ryland Group, Inc. Dreter supplemental Execunve Retrement Plan
{Incorporated by reference from Form 10-Q) for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

The Ryland Group, Inc. Dreier Supplemental Exceeutive Retirement Plan 11
{Incorporared by reference from Form 8-K/A, filed May 4, 2005)

‘The Ryland Group, Inc. Senior Executive Supplemental Retirement Plan
(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-(} for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

Form of Senior Executive Severance Agreement between The Ryland Group, Inc. and certain executive
officers of the Company
(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-(} for the quarter ended September 30, 2000)

Form of 2007 Senior Executive Severance Agreement berween The Ryland Group, Inc. and cerrain
executive officers of the Company
(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-K for the vear ended December 31, 2006)

Amendment and Restatement of the Exceutive and Director Deferred Compensation Plan, effectuve
March 1, 1998

(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-K for the vear ended December 31, 1999)

The Ryland Group, Inc. Executive and Director Deferred Compensation Plan 11, effective January 1, 2005

(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-K for the vear ended December 31, 2006)

TRG Incentive Plan, as amended and restated, effective January 1, 2003
(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003)

The Ryland Group, Inc. Performance Award Program, effective July 1, 2002
(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-QQ for the quarter ended March 31, 2003)

The Ryland Group, Inc. Senior Executtve Performance Plan
(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Aarch 31, 2003)
Lease Agreement, dated as of December 29, 1999, by and berween The Ryland Group. Inc. and Kilrov

Realty Group
(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-K for the vear ended December 31, 1999)

First Amendment to Office Building Lease, dated August 26, 2003, by and berween The Ryland
Group, Inc. and Kilroy Realry, L.P.
(Incorporated by reference from Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005)

60



3

LExhibits, continsed

10.28

Lease Agreement, dated February 28, 2006, by and berween The Ryland Group, Inc. and PCCP HC
Kietland, LLC
(Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K. filed March 6, 20006)

Computanion of Ratio of Eamings to Fixed Charges
(FFiled herewithy

Subsidiaries of the Registrant
(Filed herewith)

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounung Firm
(Filed herewith)

Power of Attomey
(Filed herewith)

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxlev Act of 2002
(Filed herewith)

Certification of Prncipal Financial Officer Pursuant to Scction 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acr of 2002
{Filed herewith)

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
{Furnished herewith)

Cerification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant 1o Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
{Furnished herewith)

6l



The Ryland Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule I[—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

BALANCE AT CHARGED TO DEDUCTTONS BALANCI AT
BEGINNING CORTE AND AND END OF
(i Heonscisnds) QF PMERIOD TRANSEERS PERIOD
Valuanon allowances:
Homebulding inventories
2007 $59,735 §503,955 $(75,584) $488,106
2N 4806 62910 (3.661) 59,735
2005 1405 At (1.723) 486
Other real estate assets
2007 $670 $2,241 $(530) $2,381
206 263 549 (142) 670
205 ? - (+) 263
Deferred tax asseis
2007 >~ $75,166 5 $75,166




Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the Company has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

The Ryland Group, Inc.

By: /M
/ (i Ze L February 28, 2008

R. Chad Dreier

Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Exchange Act, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

PrinciZl?cutive ficer:

4 7

/ ( kﬂ February 28, 2008
R. Chad Dreier
Chairman, President and

Chief Executive Officer

Principal Financial Officer:
% February 28, 2008
Gordon A. Milne

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Principal Accounting Offic

/} / February 28, 2008
o/

L
avid L. Fristoe
Senior Vice President and
Chief Accounting Officer

A majority of the Board of Directors: R. Chad Dreier, Leslie M. Frécon, Roland A. Hernandez,
William L. Jews, Ned Mansour, Robert E. Mellor, Norman . Metcalfe and Charlotte 5t. Martin

By: A i : z
)/J February 28, 2008

Timothy . Eeckie
As Attorney-in-Fact
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Exhibit 12.1 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

YEAR ENDED DECEMBUER 31,

{rt thansarneds, exept nutio) N3 204 25 2006 2007
Consolidated pretax income (loss) S$306.217 $5321.212 $721.051 8567108 $(420,098)
Shure of distributed income of 500 s-or-less-owned

affiliates aet of equity pickup 94 (5.772) (315) 260 (342)
Amuortzation of capialized nterest 38,263 41,764 45,483 48,708 41,689
[nterest 5,125 53,242 66097 T1Y35 62,122
Less interest capitalized during the penod {42,602 {52.015) (65.939) (71,759 (62,024)
Interest pornon of reneal expense 54973 5,034 5.678 7.736 8,911
EARNINGS (LOSS) S48 UT0 S564.070 S772.035 $624017 $(369,742)
Imerest $50.125 $53.242 $66,697 §71,Y55 $62,122
Inwerest portion of rental expense 3073 5.0 5,674 1,736 8,911
FIXED CHARGES S56,098 S58,.881 §72,375 $79.091 $71,013

Rauo of carnings to fixed charges 7.99 .58 10.08 7.83 (5.21)




Exhibit 21: Subsidiaries of the Registrant
As of December 31, 2007, the following subsidiaries represent the sigmificant subsidianes of the Registranu:

Ryland Homes of California, Inc., a Delaware corporarion
Ryland Homes of Texas, Inc., a Texas corporation

The Ryland Corporanon, a California corporation

Ryland Organizanon Company, a California corporation



CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements:

(1) Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-100167) and related Prospectus of The Ryland
Group, Inc.,

(2) Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-113756) and related Prospectus of The Ryland
Group, Inc.,

3) Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-121469) and related Prospectus of The Ryland
Group, Inc.,

4) Registration Statement (Form $-3 No. 333-124000) and related Prospectus of The Ryland
Group, Inc.,

(5) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 33-32431) pertaining to The Ryland Group, Inc.
Retirement Savings Opportunity Plan,

(6) Registration Statement (Form 5-8 No. 333-68397) pertaining to The Ryland Group, Inc.
Executive and Director Deferred Compensation Plan and The Ryland Group, Inc. Non-
Employee Directors' Stock Unit Plan,

{7) Registration Statement (Form $-8 No. 333-133602) pertaining to The Ryland Group, Inc.
2006 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan,

(8) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-142431) pertaining to The Ryland Group, Inc.
2007 Equity Incentive Plan, and

of our reports dated February 22, 2008, with respect to the consohidated financial statements and
schedule of The Ryland Group, Inc., and the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting of the Ryland Group Inc., included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year
ended December 31, 2007.

Los Angeles, California £ A f— W/“ s

February 28, 2008



Exhibit 24: Power of Attorney

The undersigned directors of The Ryland Group, Inc., a Maryland corporation, constitute and appoint
Timothy J. Geckle the true and lawful agent and attorney-in-fact of the undersigned, with full power and
authority in said agent and attorney-in-fact to sign for the undersigned, in their respective names as
directors of The Ryland Group, Inc,, the Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Ryland Group, Inc. for the
fiscal vear ended December 31, 2007, and any amendments thereto, to be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission under the Exchange Act, as amended.

E gl

R. Chad Dreier, Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

DATED: February 28, 2008

Danie! T. Bane, Director

Leslie M. Frécon, Director

Roland A. Hernandez, Director

William L. Jews, Director

Ned Mansour, Director

Robert E. Mellor, Director

Norman ]. Metcalfe, Director

Charlotte St. Martin, Director




Exhibit 24: Power of Attormey

The undersigned directors of The Ryland Group, Inc., a Maryland corporation, constitute and appoint
Timothy J. Geckle the true and lawful agent and attorney-in-fact of the undersigned, with full power and
authority in said agent and attorney-in-fact to sign for the undersigned, in their respective names as
directors of The Ryland Group, Inc., the Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Ryland Group, Inc. for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, and any amendments thereio, to be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission under the Exchange Act, as amended.

DATED: February 28, 2008

R. Chad Dreier, Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

Dame] T. Bane %

Leslie M. Frecon Director

Reland A. Hernandez, Director

William L. Jews, Director

Ned Mansour, Director

Robert E. Mellor, Director

Norman ]. Metcalfe, Director

Charlotte St. Martin, Director




Exhibit 24: Power of Attorney

The undersigned directors of The Ryland Group, Inc, a Maryland corporation, constitute and appoint
Timothy ]J. Geckle the true and lawful agent and attorney-in-fact of the undersigned, with full power and
authority in said agent and attorney-in-fact to sign for the undersigned, in their respective names as
directors of The Ryland Group, Inc., the Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Ryland Group, Inc. for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, and any amendments thereto, to be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission under the Exchange Act, as amended.

DATED: February 28, 2008

R. Chad Dreier, Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

Daniel T. Bane, Director

Les%m Director
4 - /4111/7 P

Rol’and A. Hernandez, Director

William L. Jews, Director

Ned Mansour, Director

Robert E. Mellor, Director

Norman J. Meicalfe, Director

Charlotte St. Martin, Director



Exhibit 24: Power of Attorney

The undersigned directors of The Ryland Group, Inc, a Maryland corporation, constitute and appoint
Timothy ]. Geckie the true and lawful agent and attorney-in-fact of the undersigned, with full power and
authority in said agent and attorney-in-fact to sign for the undersigned, in their respective names as
directors of The Ryland Group, Inc., the Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Ryland Group, Inc. for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, and any amendments thereto, to be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission under the Exchange Act, as amended.

DATED: February 28, 2008

R. Chad Dreier, Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

Daniel T. Bane, Director

Leslie M. Frécon, Director

J e —

- =
William L. Jiv/p{w

Ned Mansour, Director

Robert E. Mellor, Director

Norman J. Metcalfe, Director

Charlotte St. Martin, Director




Exhibit 24: Power of Attorney

The undersigned directors of The Ryland Group, Inc., a Maryland corporation, constitute and appoint
Timothy ]. Geckle the true and lawful agent and attorney-in-fact of the undersigned, with full power and
authority in said agent and attorney-in-fact to sign for the undersigned, in their respective names as
directors of The Ryland Group, Inc., the Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Ryland Group, Inc. for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, and any amendments thereto, to be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission under the Exchange Act, as amended.

DATED: February 28, 2008

R. Chad Dreier, Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

Daniel T. Bane, Director

Leslie M. Frécon, Director

Roland A. Hernandez, Director

W)Zﬂ)l/ew irgctor

Ked Mansour, Director

Robert E. Mellor, Director

Norman J. Meicalfe, Director

Charlotte St. Martin, Director



Exhibit 24: Power of Attorney

The undersigned direciors of The Ryland Group, Inc.,, a Maryland corporation, constitute and appoint
Timothy J. Geckle the true and lawful agent and attorney-in-fact of the undersigned, with full power and
authority in said agent and attorney-in-fact to sign for the undersigned, in their respective names as
directors of The Ryland Group, Inc,, the Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Ryland Group, Inc. for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, and any amendments thereto, to be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission under the Exchange Act, as amended.

DATED: February 28, 2008

R. Chad Dreier, Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

Daniel T. Bane, Director

Leslie M. Frécon, Director

Roland A. Hemmandez, Director

William L. Jews, Director

Ned M?so r, Diregtor
! -
| Mo Mtpye—

_Robert E. Mellor, Director

Norman ]. Metcalfe, Director

Charlotte St. Martin, Director



Exhibit 24: Power of Attorney

The undersigned directors of The Ryland Group, Inc.,, a Maryland corporation, constitute and appoint
Timothy ]. Geckle the true and lawful agent and attorney-in-fact of the undersigned, with full power and
authority in said agent and attorney-in-fact to sign for the undersigned, in their respective names as
directors of The Ryland Group, Inc., the Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Ryland Group, Inc. for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, and any amendments thereto, to be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission under the Exchange Act, as amended.

DATED: February 28, 2008

R. Chad Dreier, Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

Daniel T. Bane, Director

Leslie M. Frécon, Director

Roland A. Hemandez, Director

William L. Jews, Director

Ned Mansour, Director

Robert E. Mellor, Director

o FFZ

Noz{an ]. Metcalfe, %ctor 4

Charlotte St. Martin, Director



Exhibit 24: Power of Attorney

The undersigned directors of The Ryland Group, Inc., a Maryland corporation, constitute and appoint
Timothy J. Geckle the true and lawful agent and attorney-in-fact of the undersigned, with full power and
authority in said agent and attorney-in-fact to sign for the undersigned, in their respective names as
directors of The Ryland Group, Inc,, the Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Ryland Group, Inc. for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, and any amendments thereto, to be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission under the Exchange Act, as amended.

DATED: February 28, 2008

R. Chad Dreier, Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

Daniel T. Bane, Director

Leslie M. Frécon, Director

Roland A. Hermandez, Director

William L. Jews, Director

Ned Mansour, Director

Robert E. Mellor, Director

Ngfman J. Metcalfe, Director .

Charlotte St. Martin, Director




Exhibit 31.1:  Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a - 14(a)
Under the Exchange Act

I, R. Chad Dreier, certify that:
1. Thave reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Ryland Group, Inc. (the “Company”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Company as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

4. The Company's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures {as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15{f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Company and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the Company, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is
being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
Company’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The Company's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the Company's auditors and the audit committee of the Company’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Company's ability to record, process, summarize and report

financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the

Company's internal control over financial repotting.
.
& g

R. Chad Dreier
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 28, 2008




Exhibit 31.2:  Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a - 14(a)
Under the Exchange Act

I, Gordon A. Milne, certify that:
1. Thave reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Ryland Group, Inc. (the “Company”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Company as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

4. The Company’s other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e}} and internal controi over financiai reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Company and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the Company, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is
being prepared;

b} Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
Company’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The Company's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the Company's auditors and the audit committee of the Company’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Company's ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
Company's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 28, 2008 bavd ﬂé‘-’—-m‘___

Gordon A. Milne
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1:  Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Principal Executive Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.5.C. 1350

I, R. Chad Dreier, Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer {principal executive officer) of The Ryland Group, Inc. (the
“Company”), certify, to the best of my knowledge, based upon a review of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year

ended December 31, 2007 of the Company (the “Report”), that:

{1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act, as amended; and

2) The information contained and incorporated by reference in the Report fairly presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

s //JA —

R. Chad Dreier
February 28, 2008




Exhibit 32.2:  Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Principal Financial Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.5.C. 1350

I, Gordon A. Milne, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (principal financial officer) of The Ryland Group, Inc.
(the "Company”), certify, to the best of my knowledge, based upon a review of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2007 of the Company (the “Report”), that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a} of the Exchange Act, as amended; and

(2) The information contained and incorporated by reference in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects,
the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

P Ay 7%,

Gordon A. Milne
February 28, 2008




